
HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 
NOTICE OF AND AGENDA FOR A REGULAR MEETING  

TO BE HELD BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

DATE:    TUESDAY, MARCH 27, 2018 

TIME:    5:30 PM 

PLACE:    PHARR CITY HALL 

2nd FLOOR CITY COMMISSION CHAMBERS 

118 SOUTH CAGE BOULEVARD 

PHARR, TEXAS 78577 

PRESIDING: S. DAVID DEANDA, JR, CHAIRMAN 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

INVOCATION 

CALL TO ORDER OF A WORKSHOP 

1. Review of Fiscal Year 2017 Financial Statement and Independent Auditors Report for the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility
Authority.

2. Review of Fiscal Year 2017 Annual Compliance Report.
3. Review of Overweight/Oversized permit fees.

CALL TO ORDER AND ESTABLISHMENT OF A QUORUM FOR REGULAR MEETING

1. REPORTS

A. Report on Program Manager Activity for 365 Tollway Project and IBTC Environmental Clearance Document – Eric Davila,

HCRMA 

B. Report on Construction Activity for US 281/Military Highway Overpass/BSIF Connector Project and Donna Lift Station – 

2. CONSENT AGENDA (All matters listed under Consent Agenda are considered to be routine by the Governing Body and will be
enacted by one motion. There will be no separate discussion of these items; however, if discussion is desired, that item(s) will
be  removed  from  the Consent Agenda and will be  considered  separately. The Governing Body may also elect  to go  into
Executive Session on any item on this agenda, whether or not such item(s) are posted as an Executive Session Item, at any
time during the meeting when authorized by provisions of the Open Public Meeting Act.)

A. Approval of Minutes for the Regular Meeting held February 27, 2018.

B. Approval of Project & General Expense Report for the period from February 7, 2018 to March 9, 2018.

C. Approval of Financial Report for January 2018 and February 2018

D. Approval of  Resolution  2018‐12  – Approval  of Work Authorization  3  ‐  Supplemental  3  to  the  Professional  Services

Agreement with SAMES Inc. for a no cost‐extension to invoice 100% of Parcel 5P5, HVI acquisition. 

E. Approval of Resolution 2018‐13  ‐ Approval of Work Authorization 14  ‐  Supplemental 1  to  the Professional  Services 

Agreement with SAMES Inc. for a no cost‐extension for the outfall development. 

F. Approval of Resolution 2018‐14 – Approval of Work Authorization 17 with SAMES Inc. for the HCID2 parcel adjacent to 

Parcel 65P9 near Hi Line road. 

 

Ramon Navarro, HCRMA   



G. Approval of Resolution 2018‐15 – Approval of Contract Amendment 12  to  the Professional Service Agreement with 

SAMES, Inc. to increase the maximum payable amount for Work Authorization Number 17. 

3. REGULAR AGENDA

A. Resolution 2018 –02 – Approval of Change Order Number 9 and Final Closeout with Foremost Paving,  Inc. for the US

281/Military Highway Overpass/Border Safety Inspection Facility Connector Project. 

B. Resolution 2018‐09 – Approval of Fiscal Year 2017 Financial Statement and Independent Auditors Report for the Hidalgo 

County Regional Mobility Authority. 

C. Resolution 2018‐10 – Approval of Fiscal Year 2017 Annual Compliance Report. 

D. Resolution 2018‐11 – Approval of one year extension of the Professional Service Agreement with Bracewell LLP to provide 

legal services for the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority. 

4. CHAIRMAN’S REPORT

A. None. 

5. TABLED ITEMS

A. None.

6. EXECUTIVE SESSION, CHAPTER 551, TEXAS GOVERNMENT CODE, SECTION 551.071 (CONSULTATION WITH ATTORNEY),
SECTION 551.072 (DELIBERATION OF REAL PROPERTY), AND SECTION 551.074 (PERSONNEL MATTERS)

A. Consultation  with  Board  Attorney  on  legal  issues  pertaining  to  the  Texas  Department  of  Transportation  State
Infrastructure Bank Loan for the 365 Tollway Project (Section 551.071 T.G.C.)  

B. Consultation  with  Board  Attorney  on  legal  issues  pertaining  to  Professional  Service  Agreements  for  Engineering,
Surveying and Environmental Services (Section 551.071 T.G.C.). 

C. Consultation with Board Attorney on legal issues pertaining to the deliberation of real property for various parcels for
the 365 Tollway Project (Sections 551.071 and 551.072 T.G.C.). 

D. Consultation with Board Attorney on legal issues pertaining to the use of Eminent Domain to acquire property required
to complete the project alignments of the 365 Tollway Project (Sections 551.071 and 551.072 T.G.C.). 

E. Consultation  with  Board  Attorney  on  legal  issues  pertaining  to  the  Environmental  Clearance  Document  for  the
International Bridge Trade Corridor Project (Section 551.071 T.G.C.). 

F. Consultation with Board Attorney on legal issues pertaining to Authorizing the Issuance, Sale and Delivery of one or more
Series of Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority Senior Lien Revenue Bonds, Series 2017 in accordance with certain 
financing parameters; Approving the Form of, and Authorizing the Execution and Delivery of, the First Supplemental Trust 
Indenture; Appointing Authorized Officers  to Authorize, Approve and Determine certain  terms and provisions of  the 
Series 2017 Bonds; Authorizing the execution and delivery of a contract of purchase for the Series 2017 Bonds; Approving 
the  preparation  of  an Official  Statement  in  connection with  the Offering  and  Sale  of  such  Bonds;  Authorizing  the 
Execution and Delivery of Documents and Instruments in Connection with the Foregoing; and Enacting other provisions 
relating to the subject (Section 551.071 T.G.C.). 

G. Consultation with Board Attorney on legal issues pertaining to the Toll System Installation, Integration and Maintenance 
Contract with ETC Corporation for the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority 365 Tollway Project (Section 551.071 
T.G.C.). 

H. Consultation with Board Attorney on legal issues pertaining to the award of contract to Johnson Bros. Corporation for 
Construction of the 365 Tollway Project from US 281/Military Highway to FM 396 (Anzalduas Highway) (Section 551.071 
T.G.C.). 

PUBLIC COMMENT 

ADJOURNMENT OF REGULAR MEETING 

 



C E R T I F I C A T I O N 

I,  the Undersigned  Authority,  do  hereby  certify  that  the  attached  agenda  of  the Hidalgo  County  Regional Mobility 
Authority Board of Directors is a true and correct copy and that I posted a true and correct copy of said notice on the 
Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority Web Page (www.hcrma.net) and the bulletin board  in the Hidalgo County 
Court House (100 North Closner, Edinburg, Texas 78539), a place convenient and readily accessible to the general public 
at all times, and said Notice was posted on the 21st day of March 2018 at 12:00 pm and will remain so posted continuously 
for  at  least  72  hours  preceding  the  scheduled  time  of  said meeting  in  accordance with  Chapter  551  of  the  Texas 
Government Code. 

Maria E. Alaniz 

Administrative Assistant 

Note:  If you require special accommodations under the Americans with Disabilities Act, please contact Maria E. Alaniz at 
956‐402‐4762 at least 24 hours before the meeting. 

PUBLIC COMMENT POLICY 

Public  Comment  Policy:  “At  the  beginning  of  each  HCRMA  meeting,  the  HCRMA  will  allow  for  an  open  public 

forum/comment period. This comment period shall not exceed one‐half  (1/2) hour  in  length and each speaker will be 

allowed a maximum of three (3) minutes to speak. All individuals desiring to address the HCRMA must be signed up to do 

so, prior to the open comment period. The purpose of this comment period  is to provide the public an opportunity to 

address issues or topics that are under the jurisdiction of the HCRMA. For issues or topics which are not otherwise part of 

the posted agenda for the meeting, HCRMA members may direct staff to investigate the issue or topic further. No action 

or discussion shall be taken on issues or topics which are not part of the posted agenda for the meeting. Members of the 

public may be recognized on posted agenda items deemed appropriate by the Chairman as these items are considered, 

and the same time limitations (3 minutes) applies.” 
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HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 
         

AGENDA RECOMMENDATION FORM 
 

 
               BOARD OF DIRECTORS        X                     AGENDA ITEM                     1                   

PLANNING COMMITTEE           DATE SUBMITTED           03/19/18                   
FINANCE COMMITTEE     MEETING DATE        03/27/18  
TECHNICAL COMMITTEE    
 
 
1. Agenda Item:  WORKSHOP ITEM 1 – REVIEW OF FISCAL YEAR 2017 FINANCIAL 

STATEMENT AND INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT FOR THE HIDALGO COUNTY 
REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY.          

 
2. Nature of Request:  (Brief Overview)  Attachments:     X  Yes          No 
 
 Review of annual Financial Statement and Independent Auditors Report prepared by Burton  

McCumber & Longoria, LLP for Fiscal Year 2017.  The report is required by Texas Administrative 
Code Title 43, Part I, Chapter 26, Subchapter G §26.65(a) Annual Reports to the Commission.  

 
3. Policy Implication:  Board Policy, Local Government Code, Texas Government Code, Texas  

Transportation Code, TxDOT Policy                         
 
4. Budgeted:          Yes           No       X   N/A 
 
 
5. Staff Recommendation: Presentation only.          
 
6. Program Manager’s Recommendation:       Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
7. Planning Committee’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
8. Board Attorney’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
9. Chief Auditor’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
10. Chief Financial Officer’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       _X   None 
 
11. Development Engineer’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X    None 
 
12. Construction Engineer’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X    None 
 
13. Executive Director’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X    None 
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FINANCIAL SECTION 



The Right Choice. 

I Burton 
\ Mccumber 
& Longoria, ttP 

I CPlls a lldvi:;nrs 
McAllen Brownsville 

Independent Auditors' Report 

To the Board of Directors 
Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority, as of and 
for the year ended December 31, 2017, and the related notes to the financial statements, as listed in the table of 
contents. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, 
and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit 
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable 
to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United 
States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of 
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the 
auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements 
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also 
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting 
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinions. 

Opinions 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial 
position of Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority, as of December 31, 2017, and the changes in financial 
position and cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted 
in the United States of America. 

BM L y Fragoso, S.C. 
Matamoros, MX 

205 Pecan Boulevard, McAllen, TX 78501 

956-618-2300 • www.bmltexas.com 



Other Matters 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Management's Discussion and 
Analysis on pages 7 through 10 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not 
a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to 
be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, 
or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance 
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management 
about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management's 
responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic 
financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited 
procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

Other Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise Hidalgo 
County Regional Mobility Authority's basic financial statements. The Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State 
Awards, as required by the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform 
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance) and State 
of Texas Uniform Grant Management Standards Chapter IV State of Texas Single Audit Circular, are presented for 
purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. 

The Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State Awards is the responsibility of management and was derived from and 
relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the bm;ic financ~al st~tements. Such 
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain 
additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and 
other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other 
additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our 
opinion, the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State Awards are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to 
the basic financial statements as a whole. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated March 21, 2018 on our 
consideration of Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests 
of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements, and other matters. The 
purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and 
the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That 
report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering Hidalgo 
County Regional Mobility Authority's internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 

McAllen, Texas 
March 21, 2018 

- 6 -



MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (MD&A) 

As management of the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority (the Authority), we offer readers 
of the Authority's financial statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the 
Authority for the year ended December 31, 2017. 

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 

• The Authority's net position grew by nearly $4.9 million or 11 %. This growth was expected and 
was due to the continued growth of overweight permit fees and conservative administrative 
operational costs. 

• Capital assets grew by more than $28.3 million or 29.4%. The majority of this increase was an 
increase in construction in progress. 

• Capital grants received from the federal and state were $12.4 million and $SOK in local funding. 

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

The financial section of this annual report consists of three parts: management's discussion and analysis 
(this section), the basic financial statements, and the notes to the financial statements. 

The financial statements provide both long-term and short-term information about the Authority's overall 
financial status. The financial statements al.m iiicli.1de not~s that explain some uf the information in i.he 
financial statements and provide more detailed data. 

The Authority's financial statements are prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) as applied to governmental units on an accrual basis. 
Under this basis, revenues are recognized in the period in which they are earned, expenses are recognized 
in the period in which they are incurred, and depreciation of assets is recognized in the statements of 
revenues, expenses, and changes in net assets. All assets and liabilities associated with the operation of the 
Authority are included in the statement of net position. 

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE AUTHORITY 

Net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of the Authority's financial position. In the case of 
the Authority, assets exceeded liabilities by roughly $46.1 million at the close of the year ended December 
31,2017. 
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (MD&A) 

The Authority's condensed Statement of Net Position along with last year's balances are presented for 
comparison in the following table: 

Authority's Net Position 
Table 1 - Dollars in Millions 

2017 2016 
Assets 
Current and other assets $ 7.4 $ 27.3 
Capital assets 124.7 96.3 

Total assets 132.1 123.6 

Liabilities 
Long-tenn liabilities 78.5 79.l 
Other liabilities 7.4 3.4 

85.9 82.5 
Net Position 
Net invested in capital assets, 

net ofrelated debt 39.5 32.5 
Restricted 2.2 1.1 
Unrestricted 4.4 7.6 

Total net position $ 46.l $ 41.2 

By far the largest portion of the Authority's net position ($46.1 million) is reflected in net invested in capital 
assets, mainly in construction in progress, less any related debt used to acquire those assets that is still 
outstanding. The Authority will use these capital assets to provide services to users; consequently, these 
assets are not available for future spending. Although the Authority's investments in its capital assets are 
reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided 
from other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities. 

Net position for debt service totaling $2,183,711 represents resources that are subject to bond covenants. 
Unrestricted net position represents resources that can be used to finance day-to-day operations without 
constraints total $4,391,222. 
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (MD&A) 

The Authority's condensed Changes in Net Position along with last year's numbers are presented for 
comparison in the table below. 

Authority's Change in Net Position 
Table 2 - Dollars in Millions 

2017 2016 

Revenues 

Program Revenues 

Charges for services $ 6.3 $ 6.3 

Capital grants, contributions and other 12.6 4.8 
18.9 11.1 

Expenses 
Other 14.0 5.9 

Excess ofrevenues over expenses 4.9 5.2 

Net position - beginning 41.2 36.0 

Net position - ending $ 46.1 $ 41.2 

Authority's net position increased by nearly $4.9 million, mainly due to zn increase in overweight fees and 
capital grants and contributions. 

CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION 
Capital Assets 

The Authority's investment in capital assets (net ofaccumulated depreciation) amounts to $124.7 million. 
This investment in capital assets includes construction in progress as well as land and office equipment. 
The total increase in the Authority's investments in capital assets for the current year was $28.3 million or 
29.4%. The details of the change in capital assets from last year are reflected in the table below. 

Authority's Capital Assets 

(Net of DeEreciation) 
Table 3- Dollars in thousands 

2017 2016 

Office equipment $ 9 $ 

Land 441 

Construction in progress 124,281 96,362 

$ 124,731 $ 96,362 

Additional information on the Authority's capital assets can be found in the Notes to the Financial 
Statements in this report under section II, subsection C-Capital Assets. 
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (MD&A) 

Long-Term Obligations 

At the end of the current year, the Authority had a total of contractually obligated long-term debt of $77.8 
million (not including unamortized premium activity). The details of the change in debt from last year are 
as indicated: 

Table 4 - Dollars in thousands 

(not including unamortized activity) 

Bonds 

2017 

$ 77,839 

$ 77,839 

2016 

$ 78,275 

$ 78,275 

The net decreased in long-term debt was $436K, which is the principal retirement of the current existing 
debt. This year, principal accretion was added in the amount of$704K as stipulated in loan documents. 

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR 

• The continued growth of vehicle registration fees is expected. 
• The continued growth of overweight permit fees usage is expected. 
• Continued partnership with Texas Department of Transportation is expected. 

All of these factors were considered in preparing the Authority's budget for the year 2018. 

REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION 

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the Authority's finances for all those with 
an interest in the Authority's finances. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report 
or requests for additional financial information should be addressed to Hidalgo County Regional Mobility 
Authority, 203 W. Newcombe Ave., Pharr, TX 78577. 
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BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 



HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

DECEMBER 31, 2017 

Current assets: 
Cash 
Cash with fiscal agent 
Investments 
Receivables (net of allowance for uncollectible) 

Vehicle registration fee receivable 
Due from governmental agencies 

Prepaid expense 
Restricted assets: 

Cash trustee 
Investments 

Total current assets 
Noncurrent assets: 

Capital assets (nondepreciable ): 
Land 
Office equipment 
Construction in progress 

Total noncurrent assets 

Total assets 

Current liabilities payable not from restricted assets 
Accounts payable 
Other payable 
Current portion oflong-tenn debt 
Unearned revenue 

Current liabilities payable from restricted assets 
Accrued interest payable 

Total current liabilities payable 

Noncurrent liabilities: 
Long-term debt (net of current portion) 

Total noncurrent liabilities 

Total liabilities 

~ 

LIABILITIES 

NET POSITION 
Net invested in capital assets 
Restricted for: 

Debt service 
Unrestricted 

Total net position 

Total liabilities and net position 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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$ 754,427 
10,450 

2,807,179 

380,930 
1,062,109 

12,383 

2,327 
2,417,204 
7,447,009 

441,105 
8,607 

124,281,133 

124,730,845 

$ ===1=32='=17=7'=85=4= 

$ 562,804 
5,377,193 
1,251,452 

73,450 

233,493 

7,498,392 

78,575,436 

78,575,436 

86,073,828 

39,529,093 

2,183,711 
4,391,222 

46,104,026 

$ ===1=3=2,=l 7=7=,8=54= 



HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER31,2017 

Operating revenues: 

Charges for sales and services: 

Vehicle registration fees 

Overweight permit fees 

Total operating revenues 

Operating expenses: 

Personnel services 

Supplies 

Other services and charges 

Total operating expenses 

Operating income 

Non-operating (expenses) revenues: 

Investment earnings-unrestricted 

Investment earnings-restricted 

Intergovernmental 

Interest expense (principal accretion) 

Non-capitalized construction cost 

Miscellaneous 

Total non-operating (expenses) revenues 

Change in net position 

Total net position - beginning 

Total net position - ending 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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$ 

$ 

5,926,870 

393,309 

6,320,179 

475,732 

7,820 

446,940 

930,492 

5,389,687 

40,498 

19,979 

12,519,445 

(704,147) 

(12,439,445) 

59,264 

(504,406) 

4,885,281 

41,218,745 

46,104,026 



HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Receipts from vehicle registrations and overweight permit fees 

Payments to suppliers 

Payments to employees 

Payments for contractual services 

Change in accounts payable 

Net cash provided by operating activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Receipts from other governmental entities 

Payments from others 

Net cash provided by noncapital and related financing activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Acquisition and construction of capital assets 

Non-capitalized construction cost 

Principal paid on long-term debt 

Interest paid on long-term debt 

Amortization of premium 

Net cash used by capital a'ld related financing activiti'!s 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
Net sales of investments 

Interest income received 

Net cash provided by investing activities 

Net increase in cash 

Cash beginning of fiscal year 

Cash end of fiscal year 

Reconciliation of operating income to net cash provided by operating activities: 

Operating income 

Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash provided by operating activities: 

Increase in unearned revenue 

Increase in prepaid expense 

Increase in accounts payable 

Total adjustments 

Net cash provided by operating activities 

The notes to the .financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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$ 6,384,099 

(7,820) 

(475,732) 

(457,106) 

12,268 

5,455,709 

13,232,481 

59,264 

13,291,745 

(21,509,551) 

(12,439,445) 

(1,140,000) 

(2,871,353) 

(76,452) 

(38,036)~0 1 ) 

19,843,066 

60,477 

19,903,543 

614,196 

140,231 

$ 754,427 
=========== 

$ 5,389,687 ---------
62,550 

(8,796) 

12,268 

66,022 

$ 5,455,709 
============ 



HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2017 

NOTE I - ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 
POLICIES 

A. Reporting Entity 

The Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority (Authority) is an independent governmental 
agency created in November 2005 pursuant with Chapter 370 of the Transportation Code. The 
Authority is governed by a seven-member Board of Directors (the Board) appointed by the 
Governor of the State of Texas and the Hidalgo County Commissioners' Court. The Board is 
responsible for setting policies, identifying priorities and ensuring the Authority is operated 
effectively. Board members, appointed to serve two-year terms, are volunteers and are not 
compensated for their service. 

The Authority was created to be a proactive partner empowering the community to address 
congestion and mobility concerns through local means with local leadership. It was created to plan, 
develop, fund and maintain a transportation system to serve the estimated 1.5 million residents 
living in Hidalgo County by 2025. The Authority's mission is to develop a publicly owned 
transportation system that creates jobs through increased mobility and access, is locally funded for 
reliable delivery, pays for itself in terms of future maintenance and also funds new projects to meet 
the future transportation needs of Hidalgo County. In its petition to create the Hidalgo County 
R~giunal Mobility Authority, Hidalgo Couuiy identiiied the Hidalgo Loop System tthe Loop 
System) as the initial set of projects to be developed under the guidance of the Authority. The 
planning for the Loop System started in 2000 by Hidalgo County and the Hidalgo County 
Metropolitan Planning Organization. The Authority concluded its additional planning effort for 
the Loop System around the urban part of Hidalgo County in 2010. Based on this effort, the 
Authority identified two independent projects, the Trade Corridor Connector (TCC) and the 
International Bridge Trade Corridor (IBTC), that provide utility to County residents and together 
begin building the Loop System. Additional state aid through the Texas Department of 
Transportation and the addition of a potential third project, the La Joya Relief Route, has required 
the Authority to re-examine the initial projects. A five-year Strategic Plan approved in March 2012 
emphasizes the Authority's efforts to begin development of the Loop System projects, which 
prioritize State Highway 365 (formerly TCC), the International Border Trade Corridor, and State 
Highway 68 (formerly Segment D). 

The Authority is not included in any other governmental "reporting entity" as defined by GASB 
Statement No. 14, "The Reporting Entity." There are no component units included within the 
reporting entity. 

B. Basis of Accounting 

The financial statements of the Authority have been prepared in conformity with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) as applied to government 
units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting 
body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. 
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HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2017 

NOTE I - ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 
POLICIES - (Continued) 

B. Basis of Accounting - (Continued) 

The operations of the Authority are accounted for within a single proprietary (enterprise) fund on 
an accrual basis. The accounting and financial reporting treatment applied is determined by 
measurement focus. The transactions of the Authority are accounted on a flow of economic 
resources measurement focus. 

The financial statements of the Authority measure and report all assets, liabilities, revenues, 
expenses, and gains and losses using the economic resources measurement focus and accrual basis 
of accounting. 

Under this basis, revenues are recognized in the period in which they are earned, expenses are 
recognized in the period in which they are incurred, depreciation of assets is recognized and all 
assets and liabilities associated with the operation of the Authority are included in the Statement 
of Net Position. Operating expenses include the cost of administrative expenses. All revenues and 
expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-operating revenues and expenses. 

C. Cash, Cash with Fiscal Agent, and Investments 

Cash and cash with fiscal agent inciude cash on hanci, demand deposits, and cash held by a third 
party for prepaid overweight permit fees (ProMiles Software Development Corp.). These deposits 
are fully collateralized or covered by federal deposit insurance. 

Investments in government securities are reported at fair value. The net chijnge in fair value of 
investments is recorded on the statements of revenues, expenses and changes in net assets and 
includes the unrealized and realized gains and losses on investments. The Authority's major 
investments are held by a third party, Wilmington Trust, per bond covenants. The Authority's 
local government investment pools are recorded at amortized cost as permitted by GASB 
Statement No. 79, "Certain Investment Pools and Pool Participants. " 

D. Capital Assets 

Capital assets at year-end represent capitalized costs for legal, consulting and engineering relating 
to advance planning on the Loop projects, which prioritize State Highway 365 (formerly TCC), 
the International Border Trade Corridor, and State Highway 68 (formerly Segment D). It also 
includes office equipment and land. Depreciation and amortization on construction in progress 
will not begin until the project is operational. Depreciation on office equipment will begin once 
the equipment is placed in service. 

E. Restricted Assets 

Proceeds of the Authority's bonds and certain resources set aside for their repayment are classified 
as restricted assets on the Statement ofNet Position because their use is limited by applicable bond 
covenants. These restricted assets are held and disbursed by Wilmington Trust, fiscal agent. 
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HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2017 

NOTE I - ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 
POLICIES - (Continued) 

F. Receivables 

All receivables are shown net of allowance for uncollectible balances. The allowance is based on 
historical activity and there is currently no amount identified as uncollectible. 

G. Classification of Operating and Non-operating Revenues and Expenses 

The Authority defines operating revenues and expenses as those revenues and expenses generated 
by a specified program offering either a good or service. This definition is consistent with GASB 
Statement No. 9 which defines operating receipts as cash receipts from customers and other cash 
receipts that do not result from transactions defined as capital and related financing, non-capital 
financing or investing activities. 

When an expense is incurred that can be paid using either restricted or unrestricted resources, the 
Authority's policy is to first apply the expense toward restricted resources, and then towards 
unrestricted resources available for use. 

H. Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Generally Accepted Accounting 
Principles (GAAP) requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the 
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the 
date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the 
reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

I. Personnel Liabilities 

The Authority does not have any employees nor any personnel liabilities; the employees who 
perform operating activities for the Authority are loaned to the Authority by the City of Pharr, TX. 
All personnel reside with the City of Pharr. Actual costs incurred by the City of Pharr are 
reimbursed by the Authority. 

J. Income Taxes 

The Authority is an instrumentality of the State of Texas. As such, income earned in the exercise 
of its essential government functions is exempt from state or federal income taxes. Bond 
obligations issued by state and local governments are tax-exempt only if the issuers pay rebate to 
the federal government of the earnings on the investment of the proceeds of a tax-exempt issue in 
excess of the yield on such obligations and any income earned on such excess. 
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HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2017 

NOTE I - ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 
POLICIES - (Continued) 

K. Bond Premiums, Discounts, and Issuance Costs 

The Authority amortizes premiums and discounts over the estimated useful life of the bonds as an 
adjustment to capitalized interest using the straight-line method. Bond issuance cost is expensed 
as incurred, in accordance with Governmental Accounting Standards Board ("GASB") Statement 
No. 65, "Items Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities." 

L. Rounding Adjustments 

Throughout this annual financial report, dollar amounts are rounded, thereby creating differences 
between the details and the totals. 

NOTE II - DETAILED NOTES ON THE AUTHORITY'S ACTMTY 

A. Cash and Investments 

Plains Capital Bank maintains the Authority's deposits for safekeeping and secures the funds with 
pledged securities in an amount sufficient to protect the Authority's funds, currently at 103% of 
unsecured deposits. The pledge of securities is provided in excess of the deposits above the Federal 
Deposit Insurance Corporation ("FDIC") insurance. At December 31, 2017, the Authority's 
deposits were entirely covered by federal deposit insurance or were secured by collateral held by 
the Authority's agent in the authority pursuant to the Authority's Depository Agreement with 
Plains Capital Bank. At December 31, 2017, the carrying amount of all of the Authority's deposits 
was $754,427. 

The Authority invests in Local Government Investment Cooperative ("LOGIC"). LOGIC is a 
local government investment pool organized in conformity with the Interlocal Cooperation Act, 
Chapter 791 of the Texas Government Code, and the Public Funds Investment Act, Chapter 2256 
of the Texas Government Code (the "PFIA"). These two acts provide for the creation of public 
funds investment pools (including LOGIC) and authorize eligible government entities to invest 
their public funds under their control through the investment pools. As permitted by GASB 
Statement No. 79, "Certain External Investment Pools and Pool Participants", the Authority's 
investments in LOGIC are stated at cost, which approximates fair value. 

The Authority has investments that are unrestricted and restricted. The unrestricted investments 
are the funds not legally restricted for a specific purpose and are invested in LOGIC Investment 
Pools and government securities, which are held by Wilmington Trust. The Authority's restricted 
investments are from funds received from the issuance of debt and restricted by bond covenants 
for a specific purpose. Wilmington Trust is the fiscal agent for the Authority who is authorized to 
invest the restricted funds; they are currently investing in LOGIC Investment Pool and government 
securities. 
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HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2017 

NOTE II - DETAILED NOTES ON AUTHORITY'S ACTIVITY - (Continued) 

A. Cash and Investments - (Continued) 

The Authority categorizes its fair value measurements with the fair value hierarchy established by 
generally accepted accounting principles. The three levels of fair value hierarchy are as follows: 

• Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. 

• Level 2: Inputs (other than quoted prices included within Level 1) that are observable for 
the asset or liability either directly or indirectly. 

• Level 3: Unobservable inputs - market data are not available and are developed using the 
best information available about the assumptions that market participants would use when 
pricing an asset or liability. 

The Authority has the following fair value measurements as of December 31, 2017: 

Government Securities-Unrestricted 

Government Securities-Restricted 

Interest Rate Risk 

Fair Value 

$1,474,330 

336,351 

Fair Value Measurement Using 

Level 1 Inputs Level 2 Inputs Level 3 Inputs 

$ 1,474,330 $ $ 

336,351 

$ 1,810,681 $ 1,810,681 $ $ 
=-==-==-

Interest rate risk is the risk that the changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of 
an investment. Interest rate risk may be mitigated by investing operating funds primarily in shorter 
term securities, money market funds or similar investment pools and limiting the average maturity 
of the portfolio. At year end, the Authority was not exposed to interest rate risk. All investments 
held by the Authority are short term in nature as follows: 

Investment Maturities (in Years) at the end of December 31, 2017 
Fair Value Less Than 1 1-2 2-3 3-4 

LOGIC $ 1,332,849 $ 1,332,849 $ $ $ 
Government Securities-Unrestricted 1,474,330 1,474,330 
LOGIC-Restricted 2,080,853 2,080,853 
Government Securities-Restricted 336,351 336,351 

$ 5,224,383 $ 5,224,383 $ $ $ 
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HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2017 

NOTE Il - DETAILED NOTES ON AUTHORITY'S ACTMTY - (Continued) 

A. Cash and Investments - ( Continued) 

Credit Risk 

Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counter party to an investment will not fulfill its 
obligation. As of December 31, 2017, the investments in the State's investment pools were rated 
AAAm by Standards and Poor' s. 

Custodial Credit Risk 
Deposits and investments are exposed to custodial credit risk if they are not covered by depository 
insurance and the deposits and investments are uncollateralized, collateralized with securities held 
by the pledging financial institution, or collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial 
institution's trust department or agent but not in the Authority's name. 

The Authority has a process of maintaining contact with the trust department of its depository bank 
to eliminate all custodial credit risk once a need for an increase in collateral is identified the trust 
department adjusts the collateral amount accordingly. As ofDecember 31, 2017, the Authority's 
bank balance was not exposed to custodial credit risk and was over-insured and over-collateralized 
via Plains Capital's investment in federal securities held by a third party in the name of the 
Authority to cover the amount of deposits over the FDIC collateral. 

Concentration of Credit Risk 

The Authority's investment holdings at December 31, 2017 were strictly confined to LOGIC and 
government securities. The investment policy is silent in the concentration of holdings in the 
various types of securities and investments. 

B. Unearned Revenue 

The Authority reports unearned revenue in connection with resources that have been received, but 
not yet earned. As of December 31, 2017, the Authority's unearned revenues totaled $73,450. 
Unearned revenues totaling $10,450 were due to prepayments by customers who purchased 
commercial truck overweight permits. The third party who is acting as the Authority's Fiscal 
Agent is Promiles, the company that owns the software that is used for online overweight permit 
purchases. 

Additionally, the Authority received $63,000 from the City of Donna for a future proposed 
drainage outfall project that will be undertaken by the Authority. 
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HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2017 

NOTE II- DETAILED NOTES ON AUTHORITY'S ACTIVITY - (Continued) 

C. Capital Assets 

Capital asset activity for the year ended December 31, 2017, was as follows: 

Capital Assets, not being depreciated: 

Land 

Office equipment 

Construction in Progress 

Total Capital Assets not being 

depreciated 

$ 

Balance 

12/31/2016 

96,362,312 

$ 96,362,312 

Increases Decreases 

$ 441,105 $ 

8,607 

27,918,821 

$ 28,368,533 $ 

Balance 

12/31/2017 

$ 441,105 

8,607 

124,281, 133 

$ 124,730,845 

As of December 31, 2017, office equipment was not being depreciated as the equipment had not 
been placed in service. Depreciation on office equipment will begin once the equipment is placed 
in service. 

Increase in construction in progress consists of the following: 

Consulting and engineering $ 1,083,435 

Interest expense 2,827,307 

Legal and professional 1,332,799 

Loop project: SH 365/IBTC 1,666,972 

US 281/BSIF 525,291 

SIB and local acquisitions 20,483,017 

$ 27,918,821 

D. Non-capitalized Construction Costs 

Non-capitalized construction costs include costs associated with projects which will not be owned 
or maintained by the Authority once the project is completed. Costs associated with these projects 
are expensed as incurred. Total non-capitalized construction costs totaled $12,439,445 for the year 
ended December 31, 2017. 
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HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECE1\1BER31, 2017 

NOTE II - DETAILED NOTES ON AUTHORITY'S ACTIVITY - (Continued) 

E. Long-Term Obligations 

1. Revenue bonds 

The Authority issued bonds for which it pledged revenues derived from vehicle registration fees 
to pay the debt. 

$61,600,000 refunding bonds, Series 2013 due in various installments through 
2043 with interest of 2.0% to 5.2%. 

$20,000,000 Junior Lien Bond, Series 2016A due in various instalhnents 
through 2049 with interest of3.5% 

Principal accretion on Junior Lien Bond, Series 2016A. 

Total outstanding balance on Junior Lien Bond, Series 2016A 

Total principal outstanding 

Bond premium 

Total bonds payable 

$57,135,000 

$20,000,000 

704,147 

20,704,147 

77,839,147 

1,987,739 

$ 79,826,886 

The Junior Lien Bond, Series 2016A was executed December 1, 2016 in the amount of 
$20,000,000. The first principal installment in the amount of $210,000 is due December 1, 2026 
and the first interest payment is due December 1, 2021. Interest will accrete at a rate of 3.5% per 
annum, compounding semi-annually on June 1 and December 1 of each year until June 1, 2021. 
As of December 31, 2017, accretion to date totaled $704,147. Total accretion of interest totaling 
$2,673,363 will be recognized in future periods until the final accretion date. 
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HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2017 

NOTE II - DETAILED NOTES ON AUTHORITY'S ACTIVITY - (Continued) 

E. Long-Term Obligations - ( Continued) 

1. Revenue bonds - ( Continued) 

Debt service requirements on long-term obligations at December 31, 2017 including principal 
accretion are as follows: 

Year Ended 
December31 Principal Interest Total 

2018 $ 1,175,000 $ 2,801,912 $ 3,976,912 
2019 1,220,000 2,754,912 3,974,912 
2020 1,255,000 2,718,318 3,973,318 
2021 1,305,000 3,077,218 4,382,218 
2022 1,360,000 3,434,125 4,794,125 

2023-2027 8,307,000 16,073,275 24,380,275 
2028-2032 11,421,000 13,680,041 25,101,041 
2033-2037 14,825,000 10,791,892 25,616,892 
2038-2042 21,328,000 6,597,330 27,925,330 
2043-2047 10,937,000 2,254,585 13,191,585 
2048-20::il 7,379,510 658,628 8,038,138 

$ 80,512,510 $ 64,842,236 $ 145,354,746 

Less: principal accretion* (2,673,363) 

$ 77,839,147 

* Principal accretion will increase principal outstanding balance in future periods. 

The Authority and Hidalgo County authorized the pledge of the vehicle registration fee revenues 
to secure payment of the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority Debt in a term not 
exceeding 40 years. The $2,417,204 sinking fund amount for the fiscal year ended December 31, 
2017 is recorded as restricted assets, exclusive of $233,493 in accrued interest payable. These 
funds are required by the bond ordinance to be set aside to pay the bond debt. These funds are 
managed by a Trustee, Wilmington Trust, and are currently held in the Logic Investment Pool and 
government securities. 
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HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2017 

NOTE II - DETAILED NOTES ON AUTHORITY'S ACTIVITY - (Continued) 

E. Long-Term Obligations - ( Continued) 

Long-term obligations outstanding at December 31, 2017 are as follows: 

Balance Balance Due Within 

12/31/2016 Increases Decreases 12/31/2017 One Year 

Bond Payable 

Revenue Bond Series 2013 $ 58,275,000 $ - $ 1,140,000 $ 57,135,000 $ 1,175,000 

Premium on Bonds 2,064,190 76,452 1,987,738 76,452 

TotalBonds Payable 60,339,190 1,216,452 59,122,738 1,251,452 

Jr. Lien Bonds Series 2016A (1) 20,000,000 704,147 20,704,147 

Total Long-Tenn Obligations $ 80,339,190 $ 704,147 $ 1,216,452 $ 79,826,885 $ 1,251,452 

(1) Future principal accretion-$2,673,363 not included. 

2. Other Payable 

During the year, the Authority went through a condemnation process to acquire land. The 
Authority has paid a total of $7,407,616 and still owes $5,377,193. Currently, the Authority is 
paying 5% interest on the outstanding amount. As soon as funding is available, the Authority 
plans to pay-off the outstanding amount. 

3. Arbitrage 

In 2013, the Authority issued long-term debt for capital construction projects. These bonds are 
subject to arbitrage regulations. Arbitrage regulations call for the return of the difference in interest 
revenue against interest expense. At December 31, 2017, there was no liability of arbitrage that 
would have been owed to the federal government. 

F. Finance-Related Legal and Contractual Provisions 

In accordance with GASB Statement No. 38, "Certain Financial Statement Note Disclosures," 
violations of finance-related legal and contractual provisions, if any, are reported below, along 
with actions taken to address such violations: 

Violation 
None 
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HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2017 

NOTE III - OTHER INFORMATION 

A. City Contributions 

In 2012, the Authority adopted the 2012-2017 Strategic Plan- Program Manager Strategy No. 8, 
which included the International Bridge Trade Corridor and State Highway 68 projects. The 
Authority requested partnership with several cities in the form oflnterlocal agreements to assist in 
paying for the preparation of the projects. The cities and the terms of the Interlocal's are reflected 
as follows: 

City Years $ Amount/Yr 

Alamo 10 $ 15,000 

Donna 10 25,000 

Edinburg 10 25,000 

Pharr 10 25,000 

San Juan 10 15,000 
$ 105,000 

This agreement is subject to an annual budget appropriation by the City. In the event the funds 
are not appropriated, the City is under no obligation to provide funds. For the year ended 
December 31, 2017, actual collections from city contributions totaled $80,000. 

B. Litigation 

The Authority is currently a defendant in a lawsuit. The lawsuit has recently been filed and it is 
the opinion of management and its outside attorneys that the possible outcome of the lawsuit and 
an estimate of the loss, if any, cannot presently be determined. 

C. Construction Commitments 

At December 31, 2017, the Authority had remaining construction commitments: 

Project Authorization Expended Remaining 

Program management $ 149,720 $ 107,739 $ 41,981 

Engineering/smveying 23,400,562 20,309,197 3,091,365 

Constmction 19,979,022 19,278,990 700,032 

$ 43,529,304 $ 39,695,926 $ 3,833,378 

This table is not meant to reconcile to the balance of construction in progress. This table consists 
of current construction commitments pending, prior construction commitments have already been 
completed yet have not resulted in a fully operational asset, therefore no depreciation of 
construction commitments previously paid is recognized. 
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HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2017 

NOTE III- OTHER INFORMATION - (Continued) 

D. Impairment of Assets 

The Authority reviews the carrying values of assets for impairment whenever events and 
circumstances indicate the carrying value of an asset may not be recoverable from the estimated 
future cash flows expected to result from its use the eventual disposition. In cases where 
undiscounted expected cash flows are less than the carrying value, an impairment loss is 
recognized equal to an amount by which the carrying values exceeds the fair value of assets. The 
factors considered by management in performing this assessment include current operating results, 
trends and other economic factors. The authority recorded no impairments for the year ended 
December 31, 2017. 

E. Letter of Credit 

As of December 31, 2017, the authority has not drawn upon the letter of credit, which has been 
issued in the maximum amount of$50,000 with interest of 1 % with Plains Capital Bank. 

F. Major Vendors 

One vendor accounted for 39% of vendor payments for the year ended December 31, 2017. 

G. Subsequent Events 

The Authority has evaluated subsequent events through March 21, 2018, which is the date these 
financial statements were available to be issued. All subsequent events requiring recognition as 
of March 21, 2018, have been incorporated into these financial statements herein. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL 
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MA TIERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING 
STANDARDS 

To the Board of Directors 
Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of Hidalgo County 
Regional Mobility Authority, as of and for the year ended December 31, 2017, and the related notes to the 
financial statements, which collectively comprise Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority's basic 
financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated March 21, 2018. 

Internal Control over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Hidalgo County Regional 
Mobility Authority's intern~! control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the 
financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Hidalgo 
County Regional Mobility Authority's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the 
effectiveness of Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority's internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management 
or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, 
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in 
internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's 
financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant 
deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a 
material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this 
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material 
weaknesses or, significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses 
may exist that have not been identified. 

BM L y Fragoso, S.C. 
Matamoros, MX 

205 Pecan Boulevard, McAllen, TX 78501 

956-618-2300 • www.bmltexas.com 



Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority's 
financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain 
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a 
direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an 
opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not 
express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters 
that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance 
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal 
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit perfonrted in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, 
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

McAllen, Texas 
March 21, 2018 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM 
AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM 

GUIDANCE 

To the Board of Directors 
Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority 

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program 

We have audited Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority's compliance with the types of compliance 
requirements described in the 0MB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on 
each of Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority's major federal programs for the year ended 
December 31, 2017. Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority's major federal programs are identified 
in the summary of auditor's results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. 

Management's Responsibility 

Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions 
of its federal awards applicable to its federal programs. 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of Hidalgo County Regional Mobility 
Authority's major federal programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to 
above. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in 
the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 
U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and 
Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Those standards and the Uniform Guidance 
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance 
with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on 
a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about Hidalgo 
County Regional Mobility Authority's compliance with those requirements and performing such other 
procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. 

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal 
program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of Hidalgo County Regional Mobility 
Authority's compliance. 

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 

In our opinion, Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority complied, in all material respects, with the 
types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of 
its major federal programs for the year ended December 31, 2017. 

BM L y Fragoso, S.C. 
Matamoros, MX 

205 Pecan Boulevard, McAllen, TX 78501 
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Report on Internal Control over Compliance 

Management of Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority is responsible for establishing and 
maintaining effective internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred 
to above. In planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered Hidalgo County Regional 
Mobility Authority's internal control over compliance with the types of requirements that could have a 
direct and material effect on each major federal program to determine the auditing procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major 
federal program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform 
Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over 
compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Hidalgo County Regional 
Mobility Authority's internal control over compliance. 

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over 
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned 
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a 
federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, 
or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable 
possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will 
not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control 
over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with 
a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in 
internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first 
parag:·aph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over 
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, 
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing 
of internal control over compliance and the results_ of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform 
Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. 

McAllen, Texas 
March 21, 2018 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM 
AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE STATE OF TEXAS 
UNIFORM GRANT MANAGEMENT ST AND ARDS CHAPTER IV TEXAS STATE SINGLE A UIDT 

CIRCULAR 

To the Board of Directors 
Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority 

Report on Compliance for Each Major State Program 

We have audited Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority's compliance with the types of compliance 
requirements described in the State of Texas Uniform Grant Management Standards Chapter IV Texas State 
Single Audit Circular that could have a direct and material effect on each of Hidalgo County Regional Mobility 
Authority's major state programs for the year ended December 31, 2017. Hidalgo County Regional Mobility 
Authority's major state programs are identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the accompanying 
schedule of findings and questioned costs. 

Management's Responsibility 

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of state and federal statutes, regulations, and 
the terms and conditions of its state awards applicable to its state programs. 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of Hidalgo County Regional Mobility 
Authority's major state programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. 
We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the State of Texas Uniform Grant Management 
Standards Chapter IV Texas State Single Audit Circular. Those standards and the Uniform Guidance require 
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types 
of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major state 
program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about Hidalgo County Regional 
Mobility Authority's compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we 
considered necessary in the circumstances. 

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major state 
program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of Hidalgo County Regional Mobility 
Authority's compliance. 

Opinion on Each Major State Program 

In our opinion, Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority complied, in all material respects, with the types 
of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major 
state programs for the year ended December 31, 201 7. 
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Report on Internal Control over Compliance 

Management of Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority is responsible for establishing and maintaining 
effective internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In 
planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered Hidalgo County Regional Mobility 
Authority's internal control over complian·ce with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material 
effect on each major state program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major state program and to test 
and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the State of Texas Uniform Grant 
Management Standards Chapter N Texas State Single Audit Circular, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on 
the effectiveness of Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority's internal control over compliance. 

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over 
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned 
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a state 
program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that 
material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a state program will not be prevented, or 
detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a 
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance 
requirement of a state program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, 
yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first 
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all drficiencies i:: inten:a! control over compliance 
that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal 
control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist 
that have not been identified. 

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of 
internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the State of Texas 
Uniform Grant Management Standards Chapter IV Texas Single Audit Circular. Accordingly, this report is not 
suitable for any other purpose. 

McAllen, Texas 
March 21, 2018 
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HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AND STATE AWARDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017 

Federal Grantor/ Pass-'Through Grantor/ 
State Grantor/ Program Title 

FEDERAL AW ARDS 

HIGHWAY PLANNING AND CONSTRUCTION CLUSTER 
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

Passed through from Texas Department of Transportation: 

Highway Planning and Construction 

Total passed through Texas Department of Transportation 

Total U.S. Department of Transportation 

TOT AL EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AW ARDS 

STATE AWARDS 
TEXAS DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

Direct Programs 

Highway Planning and Construction 

Total Texas Department of Transportation 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES OF STATE AWARDS 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AND STATE AWARDS 

Federal 
CFDA 
Number 

20.205 

NIA 

Grant/Contract 
Identifying 

Award Number 

CSJ # 0220-01-023 

CSJ # 0220-01-023 

The accompanying notes to the schedule of expenditures of federal awards are an integral part of this schedule. 
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Expenditures 

$ 9,951,556 
9,951,556 

9,951,556 

$ 9,951,556 

$ 9,951,556 

$ 2,487,889 
2,487,889 

2,487,889 

$ 2,487,889 

$ 12,439,445 



lllDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 
NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AND STATE AW ARDS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017 

General 

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures ofFederal and State Awards (SEFSA) present the federal and 
state grant activity for the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority (the Authority) for the year ended 
December 31, 2017. The reporting entity is defined in Note I.A to the Authority's financial statements. 
The information in this Schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of 
Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit 
Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance) and the State of Texas Single Audit Circular. 
Because the SEFSA presents only a selected portion of the operations of the Authority, it is not intended 
and does not present the financial position, changes in net assets, or cash flows of the Authority. 

Basis of Presentation 

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State Awards is presented using the modified 
accrual basis of accounting, which is described in Note LB of the Authority's notes to the financial 
statements. Such expenditures are recognized following the cost principles contained in the Uniform 
Guidance and State of Texas Single Audit Circular, wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable 
or are limited as to reimbursement. Federal grant funds are generally considered earned to the extent 
expenditures made under the provisions of the grant are made. The Authority has elected not to use the 10 
percent de minimis indirect cost rate allowed under the Uniform Guidance. 

Relationship to Federal and State Financial Reports 

Amounts reported in the accompanying schedule may not agree with the amounts reported in the related 
Federal and State financial reports filed with the grantor agencies because of accruals made in the schedule 
which will be included in future reports filed with agencies. 
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HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUIBORITY 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017 

Section I - Summary of Auditors' Results Description 

Financial Statements 

Type of auditors' report issued: Unmodified 

Internal control over financial reporting: 

• Material weakness( es) identified? No 

• Significant deficiencies identified 

' not considered to be material 
weaknesses? None reported 

Noncompliance material to the financial 
statements? No 

Federal Awards 

Internal control of major programs: 

• Material weakness( es) identified? No 

• Significant deficiencies identified 
not considered to be material 
weaknesses? None reported 

Type of auditors' report issued on 
compliance for major programs: Unmodified 

Any audit findings disclosed that are 
required to be reported in accordance with 2 
CFR section 200.516(a)? No 

Dollar threshold used to distinguish 
between Type A and Type B programs: $750,000 

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? Yes 

Identification of Major Federal Programs: Highway Planning and Construction 
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lllDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017 

Section I - Summary of Auditors' Results Description 

State Awards 

Internal control of major programs: 
• Material weakness(es) identified? No 
• Significant deficiencies identified 

not considered to be material 
weaknesses? None reported 

Type of auditors' report issued on 
compliance for major programs: Unmodified 

Any audit findings disclosed that are 
required to be reported in accordance with 
the State of Texas Sin~le Audit Circular? No 

Dollar threshold used to distinguish 
between Type A and Type B programs: $300,000 

Identification of Major State Programs: Texas Department of Transportation 
Highway Planning and Construction 
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lllDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

FOR THE YEARENDEDDECEMBER31,2017 

Section II - Findings and Questioned 
Costs 

Financial Statements 

NONE NOTED 

Section III - Findings and Questioned 
Costs 

Federal Awards 

NONE NOTED 

Section III - Findings and Questioned 
Costs 

State Awards 

NONE NOTED 

Description 

Description 

Description 
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HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 
CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017 

Federal regulations, Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations §200.511 states, "At the completion of 
the audit, the auditee must prepare, in a document separate from the auditor's findings described in 
§200.516, Audit Findings, a corrective action plan to address each audit finding included in the current 
year auditor's reports." 

1. Corrective Action Plan 

Not applicable 
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HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017 

Federal regulations, Title 2 U.S. Code ofFederal Regulations §200.511 states, "The auditee is responsible 
for follow-up and corrective action on all audit findings. As part of this responsibility, the auditee must 
prepare a summary schedule of prior audit findings." The summary schedule of prior audit findings must 
report the status of the following: 

• All audit findings included in the prior audit's schedule of findings and questioned costs and 
• All audit findings reported in the prior audit's summary schedule of prior audit findings except 

audit findings listed as corrected. 

1. Prior Audit Findings 

None reported 
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HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 
         

AGENDA RECOMMENDATION FORM 
 

 
               BOARD OF DIRECTORS        X                     AGENDA ITEM                     2                   

PLANNING COMMITTEE           DATE SUBMITTED           03/19/18                   
FINANCE COMMITTEE     MEETING DATE        03/27/18  
TECHNICAL COMMITTEE    
 
 
1. Agenda Item:  WORKSHOP ITEM 2 – REVIEW OF FISCAL YEAR 2017 COMPLIANCE 

REPORT FOR THE HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY.    
     

 
2. Nature of Request:  (Brief Overview)  Attachments:     X  Yes          No 
 
 Review of Annual Compliance Report for Fiscal Year 2017.  The report is required by Texas  

Administrative Code Title 43, Part I, Chapter 26, Subchapter G (Regional Mobility Authority and  
Audits), as amended            

 
3. Policy Implication:  Board Policy, Local Government Code, Texas Government Code, Texas  

Transportation Code, TxDOT Policy                         
 
4. Budgeted:          Yes           No       X   N/A 
 
 
5. Staff Recommendation: Presentation only.          
 
6. Program Manager’s Recommendation:       Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
7. Planning Committee’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
8. Board Attorney’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
9. Chief Auditor’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
10. Chief Financial Officer’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       _X   None 
 
11. Development Engineer’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X    None 
 
12. Construction Engineer’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X    None 
 
13. Executive Director’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X    None 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority 

Compliance Report 
Texas Administrative Code Title 43, Part I, Chapter 26, Subchapter G 

§26.65(a) Annual Reports to the Commission 

Compliance Rule  Compliance Statement Certification

Rule §26.61 Written Reports: 

The annual operating and capital budgets 
adopted by the RMA year.   

HCRMA is in compliance. HCRMA adopted the FY 2018
Operating & Capital Budget on 
December 19, 2017. 

Any annual financial information and notices 
of material events required to be disclosed 
under Rule 15c2‐12 of the SEC.  

Not applicable.

To the extent not disclosed in another 
report required in this compliance report, a 
statement of any surplus revenue held by 
the RMA and a summary of how it intends 
to use the surplus revenue.  

Not applicable. HCRMA does not 
have surplus income at this 
time. 

An independent auditor's review of the 
reports of investment transactions prepared 
under Government Code, §2256.023.  

HCRMA is in compliance. HCRMA Board of Directors 
accepted the FY 2017 financial 
statement and independent 
audit on March 27, 2018, which 
included a review of investment 
transactions. 

Rule §26.62 Annual Audit: 

The RMA shall maintain its books and 
records in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles in the United 
States and shall have an annual financial and 
compliance audit of such books and records. 

HCRMA is in compliance. HCRMA Board of Directors 
accepted the FY 2017 financial 
statement and independent 
audit on March 27, 2018. 

The annual audit shall be submitted to each 
county or city that is a part of the RMA 
within 120 days after the end of the fiscal 
year, and conducted by an independent 
certified public accountant. 

HCRMA is in compliance. HCRMA has made the financial 
statement and independent 
auditors report available to all 
interested parties. 

All work papers and reports shall be 
retained for a minimum of four years from 
the date of the audit. 

HCRMA is in compliance. HCRMA’s record retention policy 
in compliance with this 
requirement. 

Rule §26.63 Other Reports to Counties and 
Cities: 

Provide other reports and information 
regarding its activities promptly when 
requested by the counties or cities. 

HCRMA is in compliance. All reports and activities are 
posted on the HCRMA web site 
at www.hcrma.net. 

Rule §26.64 Operating Records: 

The Department will have access to all 
operating and financial records of the RMA. 
The executive director will provide 
notification if access is desired by the 
department. 

HCRMA is in compliance.
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HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 

AGENDA RECOMMENDATION FORM 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS       X AGENDA ITEM                     3 
PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE SUBMITTED           03/16/18 
FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING DATE        03/27/18 
TECHNICAL COMMITTEE 

1. Agenda Item: REVIEW OF OVERWEIGHT/OVERSIZED PERMIT FEES

2. Nature of Request:  (Brief Overview)  Attachments:     X  Yes          No 

Review of Overweight/Oversized Permit Fees

3. Policy Implication:  Board Policy, Local Government Code, Texas Government Code, Texas
Transportation Code, TxDOT Policy

4. Budgeted:          Yes           No       X   N/A 

5. Staff Recommendation: Review only.

6. Program Manager’s Recommendation:       Approved          Disapproved       X   None 

7. Planning Committee’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved X   None 

8. Board Attorney’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 

9. Chief Auditor’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved X   None 

10. Chief Financial Officer’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       _X   None 

11. Chief Development Engineer’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved        X   None 

12. Chief Construction Engineer’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved        X   None 

13. Executive Director’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved        X   None 
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1.0 Executive Summary

One of the key suggestions posed in the discussions with industry stakeholders about the overweight permit fee

increase from $80.00 to $200.00 has been for the Hidalgo County RMA (HCRMA) to consider issuing overweight

permits in a tiered fashion (by weight). The rationale is that a lighter individual overweight vehicle would cause

less damage to the local road network than would a heavier overweight vehicle.

This whitepaper sought to do a high level peer review of other overweight networks to gage howHidalgo County

compared to other fees and service areas. The second part of the analysis included a calculation of the amount

of relative damage done by permitted overweight vehicles in order to assess any trends.

The analysis first found that Hidalgo County provides the greatest number of route options to end users and is

at the forefront of upgrading / expanding the overweight network which will make this region more conducive

to vehicles needing to head north and east. It also found that vehicles with a gross vehicle weight between

80,000 to 100,000 lbs gross vehicle weight (GVW) generated the most damage to the local network since the

lighter overweight trucks generated the most damage based on the sheer volume of crossings. Conversely,

heavier overweight trucks generate three (3) to four (4) times more equivalent damage but were less prevalent

in the roadway network.

As a result, the rationale to keep the overweight permit fee at $200.00 for all vehicles weighing between 80,000

to 125,000 lbs GVW would not particularly single out one weight class of vehicle, but it would try to keep the

fee consistent in a manner commensurate with other peer overweight networks and route availability.

This interim document has
been released March 13, 2018
by Eric Davila, PE, PMP, CFM

(No. 115596) for comments and
is subject to revision.
Hidalgo County RMA
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2.0 Overweight Network in Hidalgo County (TxDOT / HCRMA) 

Texas H.B. No. 474 allowed for the creation of an overweight/oversize (OW/OS) corridor to be administered by 

the  HCRMA  who  keeps  15%  of  the  permit  fees  collected  with  TxDOT  receiving  the  other  85%  for  the 

maintenance of the OW/OS system since April 2014.  The HCRMA allows shippers to securely order specialized 

overweight permits online. The permits cover travel over the Hidalgo County roads for vehicles weighing no 

more than the Mexican Legal Weight Limit or 125,000 lbs for which proof of certified weight measurement is 

required before a permit may be requested and utilized.   

Figure 1 shows the existing roadways currently approved by a combination of local stakeholders and the HCRMA 

with ultimate approval authority by the Texas Transportation Commission.  The HCRMA administers the Hidalgo 

County OW/OS corridor and facilitates the Hidalgo County Specialized Overweight Permits that allow for the 

movement of overweight vehicles within this network.  

Figure 1. Overweight Network Map for Hidalgo County.  
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2.1 Recent Permit Fee Changes

Effective November 2017, the fee to obtain a Hidalgo County Specialized Overweight Permit was increased to

$200.00, as it was determined that it is necessary to raise the permit fee to maintain the network of roadways

that support the Overweight/Oversized Corridor. Industry stakeholders have requested that the HCRMA

gradually increase overweight fees to the new maximum, and others have asked that the maximum fee should

be tiered based on weight. While the Texas Legislature and Texas Transportation Commission policy primarily

drive the former, the latter will be examined in this policy whitepaper.

3.0 Analysis

To examine the applicability of a tiered structured approach to the overweight fee it will be important to cover

how Hidalgo County’s overweight permit fee compares to existing overweight networks. To assess the idea that

lighter vehicles class should pay a lower permit fee, the HCRMA examined its database of overweight permits

issued since April 2014 for any occurrence of trends.

3.1 Other Overweight Networks

Table 1 summarizes the various fees near Texas and along the US Mexico border region, and it becomes clear

that Hidalgo County is unique due to the upper gross vehicle weight limit and the selection of routes.

Table 1. Overview of Existing Overweight Networks Along U.S. Mexico Border in Proximity to State of Texas1

Permit Issuing Entity a Hidalgo County b Port of Brownsville
Authority

City of Laredo Bridge
Department c

Nogales Arizona
POE d

Port of Harlingen
Authority

Permit Fee $200.00 $30.00 $210.00 $260.00 $75.00 $80.00

Gross Vehicle Wt. (lbs) 125,000 125,000 80,000 120,000 90,800 125,000

Permits Issued in 2017 37,048 591,626 7,348 42,667 Starting 2018

Total Route Miles 15 routes = 48 mi 2 routes = 22.5 mi Various Truck Routes 1 zone = 25 mi 2 routes = 30 mi

Notes:

a. OW/OS Networks that are Not Operational Include: Victoria County Navigation District and Port of Corpus Christi as well as

smaller volume networks such as Port of Freeport and Chambers County.

b. November 2017 Hidalgo County was approved to increase permit fee to $200.00, where it previously charged $80.00 per permit.

c. City of Laredo contains a wide array of sizes, weights, and trailer configurations. Summarized in this table are fee values for 80,000 to

120,000 lbs. Webb County / City of Laredo are currently developing an overweight network in a collaborative effort with TxDOT.

d. Based on a published article from April 2016 stating the $75.00 single trip overweight permits generated over $3.20M for the State of Arizona.

1 Data collected by Flor E. Koll, HCRMA 2018.



 
 

 
OW Corridor White Paper Original Issue Date: 03/27/2018 Page 5 

 

By comparison, Nogales has a lower permit fee of $75.00 but also comes with a lower limit to the maximum 

weight (90,800 lbs) and a smaller selection of routes.  When compared to closer border peers, the City of Laredo 

looked to be the most comparable to Hidalgo County in terms of the $210.00+ permit fee, but the lower volumes 

at this location could indicate other factors that impact the volumes of permits purchased such as: a preference 

for long‐haul / interstate‐ready trucks at this location and/or competition from rail crossing capabilities.  The 

Port of Brownsville in neighboring Cameron County has an intensive operation over limited routes that run from 

the international bridges and terminate in the port. 

3.2 Relative Equivalent Loads (Relative Damage) by Truck Weight 

A Pareto Chart was chosen to represent the number of permits (on the  left axis) purchased by vehicles of a 

certain weight range (horizontal axis), and a  line representing the cumulative total percent that each weight 

class contributes to the total number of overweight permits issued (on the right axis).   

Figure 2. O/W Permit Pareto Chart (by Gross Vehicle Weight in lbs) 

 

Figure 2 shows that nearly 90% of overweight trucks have a gross vehicle weight between 80,000 to 100,000 

lbs.  Breaking up that range further yields that 50,006 permits were for vehicles within 80,000 lbs to 90,000 lbs 

GVW and 18,580 permits were for vehicles within 90,000 lbs to 100,000 lbs GVW of the total of 78,965 permits 
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examined.   This means that the two  lower vehicle weight classes (80,000  lbs to 90,000  lbs and 90,000  lbs to 

100,000 lbs) comprised of 63% and 24% of the total overweight permits, respectively.  

There are a multitude of ways to assess the amount of possible damage measured in equivalent single axle loads 

(or ESALs) that  include but  is not  limited to:  initial condition of a roadway, thickness/type of pavement, tire 

pressure, and weather, etc.  For the sake of obtaining a relative comparison of the approximate damage caused 

by a permitted overweight vehicle,  the Generalized 4th Power Rule2 was utilized  to  calculate an equivalent 

damage  caused  by  each  overweight  permit  issued within  Hidalgo  County  since  April  2014.    The  resulting 

calculation meant that overweight permit holders caused between 15 to 150 times the amount of damage equal 

to a vehicle weighing 18,000 lbs (or 18 kip ESALs).   

Figure 3 demonstrates that the most prevalent amount of relative damage was within a range of 15 to 60 18kip 

ESALs which corresponds  to an overweight  truck between 80,000  to 100,000  lbs GVW or  the  same 90% of 

overweight permit applicants.   

Figure 3. O/W Permit Pareto Chart (by 18kip ESALs)  

 

4.0 Conclusions 

                                                       
2 AASHTO Guide for Design of Pavement Structures, 1993 – Appendix D 
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The Hidalgo County overweight permit fee is clearly on the higher end when compared to its peers. However,

this $200.00 fee comes with greater flexibility to choose from 48 miles of distinct routes and a wider range of

weight that can reach interim locations at the foreign trade zone, cold storage facilities, and local warehouses

before heading to destinations north and east. The current network of routes and the proposed future

backbone of overweight corridors (365 Tollway and IBTC projects) currently in development by the HCRMA in

collaboration with TxDOTmeans that the permit fees go to improve that local network and to lay the foundation

for a sustainable overweight system.

As to the request that the HCRMA implement a tiered approach where lighter overweight trucks would pay less

than the current $200.00 fee led to an analysis that showed gross vehicle weight (GVW) together with relative

equivalent damage (based on calculated ESALs) provide a clearer indication that the relative amount of damage

that has taken place over time. Therefore, the current $200.00 universal fee for overweight trucks is a sensible

way to assign the maintenance burden caused by lighter trucks that are less damaging (but more frequent) and

heavier trucks that are more damaging (but less frequent) within the overweight range of 80,000 to 125,000 lbs

GVW.

4.1 Recommendations

As the HCRMA brings projects on line it will be in the region’s interest to rely more heavily on upgraded and new

corridors as they are being designed for overweight considerations. In the meantime, it will also be helpful to

summarize how the overweight fees get allocated to overweight network improvements (e.g. inspections,

overlays, or concrete intersections, new corridors, etc.) on some frequency basis. An Hidalgo County

Overweight Network Status Update will keep all users and stakeholders aware of how the fees are being

collected and utilized to improve the level of service or sustainability of the infrastructure within the region as

well as allow for future prioritization of system improvements in discussions with legislators, TxDOT, developers,

bridge owners, and other local governments.
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HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 
         

AGENDA RECOMMENDATION FORM 
 

 
                       BOARD OF DIRECTORS        X                     AGENDA ITEM                   1A                             

PLANNING COMMITTEE           DATE SUBMITTED           3/16/18                                                            
FINANCE COMMITTEE     MEETING DATE        3/27/18  
TECHNICAL COMMITTEE    
 
 
1. Agenda Item:  REPORT ON PROGRAM MANAGEMENT ACTIVITY FOR 365 TOLLWAY  

AND IBTC PROJECTS._________________________________________________________  
 
2. Nature of Request:  (Brief Overview)  Attachments:     X  Yes          No 
 
 Report on Program Management Activity for 365 Tollway and IBTC Projects.   

          
 
3. Policy Implication:  Board Policy, Local Government Code, Texas Government Code, Texas  

Transportation Code, TxDOT Policy                         
 
4. Budgeted:          Yes           No       X   N/A 
 
5. Staff Recommendation: Report only               ________ 
 
6. Program Manager’s Recommendation:       Approved          Disapproved       X   None 

 

7. Planning Committee’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
8. Board Attorney’s Recommendation:       Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
9. Chief Auditor’s Recommendation:   _   Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
10. Chief Financial Officer’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
11.  Chief Development Engineer’s Recommendation:        Approved          Disapproved      X   None 
 
12. Chief Construction Engineer’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved        X_  None 
 
13. Executive Director’s Recommendation:        Approved          Disapproved        X_  None 

 
 

 



http://www.hcrma.net11 http://www.hcrma.net

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
FOR MARCH 2018

Report on HCRMA Program Management Activity
Chief Development Engineer – Eric Davila, PE, PMP, CFM

HCRMA Board of Directors
S. David Deanda, Jr., Chairman
Forrest Runnels, Vice-Chairman

Ricardo Perez, Secretary/Treasurer
R. David Guerra, Director
Paul S. Moxley, Director
Alonzo Cantu, Director

Ezequiel Reyna, Jr., Director

HCRMA Staff
Pilar Rodriguez, PE, Executive Dir.

Ramon Navarro IV, PE, CFM, Chief Construction Eng.
Eric Davila, PE, CFM, Chief Development Eng.
Carlos “CJ” Moreno, Jr., Acquisition Coord.

Celia Gaona, CIA, Chief Auditor/Compliance Ofcr.
Jose Castillo, Chief Financial Ofcr.

Sergio Mandujano, Constr. Records Keeper
Maria Alaniz, Admin. Assistant 

Flor E. Koll, Admin. Assistant III (Constr.)

General Engineering Consultant
HDR ENGINEERING, INC. 
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OVERVIEW
 365 TOLL Project Overview 
 IBTC Project Overview
Overweight Permit Summary
Construction Economics Update

MISSION STATEMENT:
“To provide our customers 
with a rapid and reliable 
alternative for the safe and 
efficient movement of 
people, goods and services”
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HCRMA
STRATEGIC PLAN

3

DEVELOP THE 

INFRASTRUCTURE TO 

SERVE A POPULATION

OF APPROXIMATELY 

800,000 RESIDENTS

AND

5 INTERNATIONAL

PORTS OF ENTRY

Pharr-Reynosa POE

Anzalduas POE

Hidalgo POE

Donna-Rio Bravo POE
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 SYSTEMWIDE TASKS
 Continued Management of HCRMA 

ProjectWise System 
 Used for our all electronic core DESIGN and 

CONSTR related filing and coordination. 

 Continued Management of HCRMA FTP System
 User group workspaces created, all systems 

nominal. 

 Microsoft Office 365 Migration
 Transferred domain/webhosting to HCRMA 

hosted solution. 

 Continued update of New HCRMA GIS 
Website
 http://hcrma.net/GIS-public.html

SYSTEM 
WIDE

http://hcrma.net/GIS-public.html
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365 TOLL SEGS. 1 & 2 LIMITS FROM FM 396 / ANZ. HWY. 
TO US 281 / BSIF CONNECTOR (365 SEG. 3)
365 TOLL SEG. 4 LIMITS FROM FM 1016 / CONWAY AVE 
TO FM 396 / ANZ. HWY. (FUTURE CONSTRUCTION)

http://www.hcrma.net5

MAJOR MILESTONES:
NEPA CLEARANCE 

07/03/2015
95% ROW AS OF 

06/30/2017
PH 1: 365 SEG. 3 –

LET: 08/2015
STARTED: 02/2016

PH 2: 365 TOLL 
SEGS. 1 & 2 –

LETTING: 10/2017
START: 01/2018
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 365 TOLL
 Env.: Final USIBWC No Objection Letter 

acquired.
 Surveys: SUE complete, “gap” parcels ongoing 

for public Row that needs to eventually get 
incorporated into HCRMA ROW Map.  

 ROW Acquisition: 25 parcels remaining 
(23 final resolution with irrigation districts), 
representing 5% of the remaining area. 

 Utility Relo.: Ongoing 
 Drainage Outfalls: HCDD1 Providing 

Schematics End of Sept 2017 for priority 1 
outfalls. 

 Design (PS&E): 
 Segment engineers addressing TxDOT 

100% comments. 

365 
TOLL
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 365 TOLL
 Bid Phase summary:

 Formal announcement posted to website:  
http://hcrma.net/bids.html

 CivCAST Highlights 
o All Electronic Bidding Process
o 308 Plan Holders
o 280 Questions Asked (100% of them answered).
o 450 plan sheet revisions coordinated / issued over 4 

addenda.
 Bid Proposal Summary:

1. Johnson Bros Corp., a Southland Company 
$202,548,591.57

2. Anderson Columbia Company, Inc. $233,445,739.29
3. Pulice-Flatiron JV $252,286,943.96
4. Lane-Abrams Toll 365 Joint Venture $279,428,828.61
5. Webber, LLC $289,374,971.13

365 
TOLL

http://hcrma.net/bids.html
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365 TOLL
 Post-NEPA Activity:

 USIBWC Coordination during Construction
 USACE 404 Site Grading Improvements 

GEC Activity (HDR Engineering, Inc.):
 Conducted due diligence on construction 

costs and operational modeling.  
 GEC Report 100% complete. 

 Finance: 
 Construction / operations modeling 

ongoing. 
 Coordinating Maps / content necessary for 

prelim. official statement (POS).

365 
TOLL



http://www.hcrma.net9

MAJOR MILESTONES:
EST. NEPA 

CLEARANCE: 06/2019
OBTAINED EA ENV
CLASSIF.: 11/2017
LETTING: 06/2020
OPEN: 12/2023

9

IBTC SEGS. 1 – 3: FROM THE 
INTERCHANGE W/ SH 365 AT FM 3072 / 
DICKER RD TO I-2 AND TO FM 493

IBTC
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 IBTC
 Advance Planning

 Env.: Classification Letter and Scoping Toolkit 
Submitted Aug 2017

o TxDOT concurred with the EA Classification 
o IBTC EA scope has been developed with  Blanton & 

Associates and WA #2  has been given NTP. 

 Surveys (65% complete) 
 ROW Acquisition (33% complete) 
 Utility Relo. (25%, SUE done, process initiated) 

 Design (PS&E, 50% complete): 
 On Hold

 Related Construction: 
 IBTC Lift Sta Relo (as part of ETT Agreement) 
 Demos of HCRMA-Acquired Structures within IBTC / 

Red River area. 

IBTC
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DESCRIPTION:
 PROJECT LENGTH IS 

APPROX. 27 MI 
 FROM I-69C IN 

HIDALGO COUNTY 
TO I69-E IN 
CAMERON COUNTY

 KEY PARALLEL 
CORRIDOR TO I-2 
WITH IMPORTANCE 
TO MOBILITY 
PROJECTS BY TXDOT, 
CCRMA AND HCRMA

(COLLABORATION W/ TXDOT, 
CCRMA, AND HCRMA)

FM 1925
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FM
1925

 FM 1925
 TxDOT Committed Supplemental 

Development Authority Funds for the 
Entire 27 Mile Corridor as an expressway 
facility.

 TxDOT has committed to funding the 
development of the Schematic Design 
and Environmental documents.
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365 TOLL
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2018 OVERWEIGHT PERMITS 01/01 – 03/09 OW
Total Permits Issued: 6,011
Total Amount Collected: 1,235,656$     
 ■ Convenience Fees: 33,456$           
 ■ Total Permit Fees: 1,202,200$     

– Pro Miles: 18,033$         
– TxDOT: 1,021,870$    
– HCRMA: 162,297$       


2015

		From 01/01/2015 – 12/31/2015
(year end summary)

		Total Permits Issued:		14,427

		Total Amount Collected:		$   1,183,442

		§ Convenience Fees (CC):		$   29,282

		§ Total Permit Fees:		$   1,154,160

		– Pro Miles:		$   43,281

		– TxDOT:		$   981,036

		– HCRMA:		$   129,843





2016

		From 01/01/2016 – 12/30/2016
(year end summary)

		Total Permits Issued:		28,357

		Total Amount Collected:		$   2,331,860

		§ Convenience Fees (CC):		$   63,300

		§ Total Permit Fees:		$   2,268,560				CHECK:		$   2,268,560

		– Pro Miles:		$   85,071

		– TxDOT:		$   1,928,276

		– HCRMA:		$   255,213





2017

		Total Permits Issued:		37,048				DATE:		12/30/17

		Total Amount Collected:		$   3,536,079				CHECK:		$   - 0		IS IT ZERO?

		 ■ Convenience Fees:		$   94,399

		 ■ Total Permit Fees:		$   3,441,680				CHECK:		$   - 0		IS IT ZERO?

		– Pro Miles:		$   111,144

		– TxDOT:		$   2,925,428

		– HCRMA:		$   405,108





2018

		Total Permits Issued:		6,011				DATE:		2/12/18

		Total Amount Collected:		$   1,235,656				CHECK:		$   - 0		IS IT ZERO?

		 ■ Convenience Fees:		$   33,456

		 ■ Total Permit Fees:		$   1,202,200				CHECK:		$   - 0		IS IT ZERO?

		– Pro Miles:		$   18,033

		– TxDOT:		$   1,021,870

		– HCRMA:		$   162,297
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CONSTR. ECON. DIGEST MAR 2018 CE
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Construction Cost Index (2012-2018) 

Costs Increased +1.6% 
from 2017-2018 and 

+2.7% from Mar 2017.
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CONSTR. ECON. DIGEST MAR 2018
 The 20-city average price 

for liquid asphalt has 
changed as follows:
 Monthly price increased 

0.9% in Mar 2018
 Yearly price increased 7.8% 

since Mar 2017

16

CE



Item 1B 



HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 

AGENDA RECOMMENDATION FORM 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS        X
PLANNING COMMITTEE   
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

AGENDA ITEM                     1B 
DATE SUBMITTE                          02/20/2018 
MEETING DATE         03/27/2018 

TECHNICAL COMMITTEE 

1. Agenda Item:  REPORT ON CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITY FOR US 281/MILITARY HIGHWAY
OVERPASS/BSIF CONNECTOR AND DONNA LIFT STATION PROJECTS.

2. Nature of Request:  (Brief Overview)  Attachments:     X  Yes          No

Report on Construction Activity for US 281/Military Highway Overpass/BSIF Connector Project
by Ramon Navarro, IV, Chief Construction Engineer. 

3. Policy Implication:  Board Policy, Local Government Code, Texas Government Code, Texas
Transportation Code, TxDOT Policy

4. Budgeted:          Yes           No       X   N/A 

5. Staff Recommendation: Report only.

6. Program Manager’s Recommendation:       Approved          Disapproved       X   None 

7. Planning Committee’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 

8. Board Attorney’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 

9. Chief Auditor’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 

10. Chief Financial Officer’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 

11. Chief Construction Engineer’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved        X   None 

12. Executive Director’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved        X   None 
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MAJOR ITEMS of WORK



98.68%

1.32%

ESTIMATE 

PERCENTAGES
ESTIMATE COMPLETED $18,948,226.41

ESTIMATE REMAINING $252,864.21

TOTAL 

TIME 

ALLOTED

566

DAYS

JOB TIME EXPENDED

TIME USED 608 DAYS

TIME REMAINING  0 DAYS

SCHEDULE & CONSTRUCTION COSTS
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Item 2A 



 
 
 
 

HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 
         

AGENDA RECOMMENDATION FORM 
 

 
               BOARD OF DIRECTORS        X                     AGENDA ITEM                     2A                   

PLANNING COMMITTEE           DATE SUBMITTED           03/13/18                   
FINANCE COMMITTEE     MEETING DATE        03/27/18  
TECHNICAL COMMITTEE    
 
 
1. Agenda Item:  APPROVAL OF MINUTES FOR REGULAR MEETING HELD FEBRUARY 27, 

2018.              
  
2. Nature of Request:  (Brief Overview)  Attachments:     X  Yes          No 
 
 Consideration and Approval of Minutes for the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority Board 

of Directors Regular Meeting held February 27, 2018.       
 
3. Policy Implication:  Board Policy, Local Government Code, Texas Government Code, Texas  

Transportation Code, TxDOT Policy                         
 
4. Budgeted:          Yes           No       X   N/A 
 
5. Staff Recommendation: Motion to approve the minutes for the Board of Director’s Regular  

Meeting held February 27, 2018, as presented.        
 
6. Program Manager’s Recommendation:       Approved          Disapproved       X   None 

 

7. Planning Committee’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
8. Board Attorney’s Recommendation:   X   Approved          Disapproved       _   None 
 
9. Chief Auditor’s Recommendation:   _   Approved          Disapproved       X_   None 
 
10. Chief Financial Officer’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
11. Chief Development Engineer’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved        X_  None 
 
12. Chief Construction Engineer’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved        X_  None 
 
13. Executive Director’s Recommendation:   X   Approved          Disapproved        _  None 
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STATE OF TEXAS 

COUNTY OF HIDALGO 

HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 

 

The Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority Board of Directors convened for a Regular Meeting on Tuesday, February 

27, 2018, at 5:30 pm at the Pharr City Hall City Commission Chambers, 2nd Floor, 118 South Cage Boulevard, Pharr, Texas, 

with the following present: 

 
Board Members:    Forrest Runnels, Vice‐Chairman        HCRMA 

Ricardo Perez, Secretary/Treasurer      HCRMA 
Paul S. Moxley Director          HCRMA 
Ezequiel Reyna, Jr., Director        HCRMA 

 
Absent:      S. David Deanda, Jr., Chairman           HCRMA 

Alonzo Cantu, Director          HCRMA 
David Guerra, Director          HCRMA 

 
                 
Staff:      Pilar Rodriguez, Executive Director      HCRMA 
        Ramon Navarro, Chief Construction Engineer    HCRMA 
        Eric Davila, Chief Development Engineer     HCRMA 
        Celia Gaona, Chief Auditor/Compliance Officer    HCRMA 
        Jose Castillo, Chief Financial Officer      HCRMA 

Carlos Moreno, Land Acquisition Coordinator    HCRMA 
        Maria Alaniz, Administrative Assistant II     HCRMA 
        Luis Cardenas, Legal Counsel        HCRMA 
               
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 
Vice‐Chairman Runnels led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
INVOCATION 
 
Ms. Gaona led the Invocation. 
 
CALL TO ORDER FOR REGULAR MEETING AND ESTABLISH A QUORUM 
 
Vice‐Chairman Runnels called the Regular Meeting to order at 5:29 pm.  
 
A. REPORTS 

 

A. Report on Program Manager Activity for 365 Tollway Project and IBTC Environmental Clearance Document – 
Eric Davila, HCRMA. 
Mr.  Eric  Davila  reported  on  Program Manager  Activity  for  365  Tollway  Project  and  IBTC  Environmental 

Clearance Document. No action taken. 

B. Report on Construction Activity for US 281/Military Highway Overpass/BSIF Connector Project and Donna Lift 
Station – Ramon Navarro, HCRMA. 
Mr. Ramon Navarro reported on Construction Activity for US 281/Military Highway Overpass/BSIF Connector 

Project and Donna Lift Station Project. No action taken. 
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B. CONSENT AGENDA.  

Motion by Ezequiel Reyna, with a second by Rick Perez, to approve the Consent Agenda with the Exception of 
item 2C.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
A. Approval of Minutes for Regular Meeting held January 23, 2018. 

Approved the Minutes for the Regular Meeting held January 23, 2018 as presented. 
 

B. Approval of Project & General Expense Report for the period from January 6, 2018 to February 6, 2018. 
Approved the Project & General Expense Report for the period from January 6, 2018 to February 6, 2018. 

   
C. Approval of Financial Report for December 2017. 

Item removed from agenda. 
 

D. Resolution 2018‐08 – Approval of Change Order 2 with International Consulting Engineers for a no‐cost time 
extension and electrical site revisions for the Donna Lift Station.  
Approved Resolution 2018 – 08 – Approval of Change Order 2 with International Consulting Engineers for a no‐
cost time extension and electrical site revisions for the Donna Lift Station. 
 

C. REGULAR AGENDA 
 

A. Resolution 2018 – 02 – Approval of Change Order Number 9 and Final Closeout with Foremost Paving, Inc. for 
the US 281/Military Highway Overpass/Border Safety Inspection Facility Connector Project. 
Item Removed from Agenda. 
 

B. Resolution 2018‐05 – Work Authorization Number 2 to the Professional Service Agreement with Blanton & 
Associates, Inc. to provide Environmental Clearance Support for the IBTC Project.  
Motion by Rick Perez, with a second by Ezequiel Reyna, to approve Resolution 2018 – 05 – Approval of Work 
Authorization Number  2  to  the  Professional  Service Agreement with  Blanton & Associates,  Inc.  in  the 
amount of $702,075.94 to provide Environmental Clearance Support for the IBTC Project.     Motion carried 
unanimously. 

 

C. Resolution 2018‐06 – Approval of Contract Amendment Number 1 with Blanton & Associates, Inc. to increase 
the maximum payable amount due Work Authorization Number 2.  
Motion by Ezequiel Reyna, with a second by Rick Perez,  to approve Resolution 2018 – 06 – Approval of 
Contract Amendment Number 1 with Blanton & Associates,  Inc.  in the amount of $702,075.94  for Work 
Authorization  Number  2  for  a  revised  maximum  payable  amount  of  $727,065.94.    Motion  carried 
unanimously. 
 

D. Resolution 2018‐07 –Authorization  to procure Professional Engineering Services  for a General Engineering 
Consultant for the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority.  
Motion by Rick Perez, with a second by Ezequiel Reyna, to approve Resolution 2018 – 07 – Authorization to 
procure Professional Engineering  Services  for a General Engineering Consultant  for  the Hidalgo County 
Regional Mobility Authority.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 

D. CHAIRMAN’S REPORT 

 

A. None. 

 

E.  TABLED ITEMS 

 
A. None 
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F. EXECUTIVE  SESSION, CHAPTER 551,  TEXAS GOVERNMENT CODE,  SECTION  551.071  (CONSULTATION WITH 
ATTORNEY),  SECTION  551.072  (DELIBERATION  OF  REAL  PROPERTY)  AND  SECTION  551.074  (PERSONNEL 
MATTERS)  

 
Motion by Paul Moxley, with a second by Rick Perez, to enter  into Executive Session to consult with the Board 
Attorney on legal issues pertaining to Items 6F under Section 551.071 of the Texas Government Code at 5:54pm. 
Motion carried unanimously. 

 
A. Consultation with Board Attorney on legal issues pertaining to the Texas Department of Transportation State 

Infrastructure Bank Loan for the 365 Tollway Project (Section 551.071 T.G.C.). 

No action taken. 

 

B. Consultation  with  Board  Attorney  on  legal  issues  pertaining  to  Professional  Service  Agreements  for 

Engineering, Surveying and Environmental Services (Section 551.071 T.G.C.). 

No action taken.  
 

C. Consultation with Board Attorney on legal issues pertaining to the deliberation of real property for various 

parcels for the 365 Tollway Project (Sections 551.071 and 551.072 T.G.C.). 

No action taken.  
 

D. Consultation with Board Attorney on legal issues pertaining to the use of Eminent Domain to acquire property 
required to complete the project alignments of the 365 Tollway Project (Sections 551.071 and 551.072 T.G.C.). 
No action taken.  

 

E. Consultation with Board Attorney on legal issues pertaining to the Environmental Clearance Document for the 

International Bridge Trade Corridor Project (Section 551.071 T.G.C). 

No action taken. 

 

F. Consultation with Board Attorney on legal issues pertaining to Authorizing the Issuance, Sale and Delivery of 

one or more Series of Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority Senior Lien Revenue Bonds, Series 2017 in 

accordance with certain  financing parameters; Approving  the Form of, and Authorizing  the Execution and 

Delivery of, the First Supplemental Trust Indenture; Appointing Authorized Officers to Authorize, Approve and 

Determine certain terms and provisions of the Series 2017 Bonds; Authorizing the execution and delivery of a 

contract  of  purchase  for  the  Series  2017  Bonds;  Approving  the  preparation  of  an  Official  Statement  in 

connection with the Offering and Sale of such Bonds; Authorizing the Execution and Delivery of Documents 

and  Instruments  in Connection with  the  Foregoing;  and Enacting other provisions  relating  to  the  subject 

(Section 551.071 T.G.C.).                                                                                                                           

No action taken. 

 

G. Consultation with Board Attorney on legal issues pertaining to the Toll System Installation, Integration and 

Maintenance Contract with ETC Corporation for the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority 365 Tollway 

Project (Section 551.071 T.G.C.).                                                                                                                           

No action taken. 

 

H. Consultation with Board Attorney on legal issues pertaining to the award of contract to Johnson Bros. 

Corporation for Construction of the 365 Tollway Project from US 281/Military Highway to FM 396 

(Anzalduas Highway) (Section 551.071 T.G.C.).                                                                                                                           

No action taken. 
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PUBLIC COMMENT 
 

None 
 

 
ADJOURNMENT 

 

There being no other business to come before the Board of Directors, the meeting was adjourned at 6:16 pm.  
 
 
 
 
____________________________________________ 
S. David Deanda, Jr, Chairman 
 
 
Attest: 
 
 
   
__________________________________________ 
Ricardo Perez, Secretary/Treasurer 

 



Item 2B 



 
 
 

HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 
         

AGENDA RECOMMENDATION FORM 
 

 
               BOARD OF DIRECTORS        X                     AGENDA ITEM                   2B                   

PLANNING COMMITTEE           DATE SUBMITTED           03/19/18                   
FINANCE COMMITTEE     MEETING DATE        03/27/18  
TECHNICAL COMMITTEE    
 
 
1. Agenda Item:  APPROVAL OF PROJECT AND GENERAL EXPENSE REPORT FROM 

FEBRUARY 7, 2018 TO MARCH 9, 2018         
 

2. Nature of Request:  (Brief Overview)  Attachments:     X  Yes          No 
 
 Consideration and approval of project and general expense report for the period from   

February 7, 2018 to March 9, 2018.          
 
3. Policy Implication:  Board Policy, Local Government Code, Texas Government Code, Texas  

Transportation Code, TxDOT Policy                         
 
4. Budgeted:       X   Yes           No          N/A  Funding Source:  VRF Bond 
 
    General Account     $     120,956.68 

   Capital Projects Account    $       78,460.06  
   R.O.W Services     $       64,899.35 
   SIB Loan      $                0.00 
      Total Project Expenses for Reporting Period  $      264,316.09 

       
      Fund Balance after Expenses   $  2,712,841  
  
5. Staff Recommendation: Motion to approve the project and general expense report for the  

period from February 7, 2018 to March 9, 2018, as presented.      
 
6. Program Manager’s Recommendation:   X   Approved          Disapproved          None 
 
7. Planning Committee’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
8. Board Attorney’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
9. Chief Auditor’s Recommendation: _ X    Approved          Disapproved       _   None 
 
10. Chief Financial Officer’s Recommendation:   X   Approved          Disapproved          None 
 
11. Chief Development Engineer’s Recommendation:    X   Approved          Disapproved          None 
 
12. Chief Construction Engineer’s Recommendation:    X   Approved          Disapproved          None 
 
13. Executive Director’s Recommendation:    X   Approved          Disapproved          None 
 
 
 
 
 



 

Memorandum 
To: S. David Deanda Jr., Chairman 

From: Pilar Rodriguez, PE, Executive Director 

Date: March 19, 2018 

Re: Expense Report for the Period from February 7, 2018 to March 9, 2018  

Attached is the expense report for the period commencing on February 7, 2018 and ending on March 9, 
2018. 
 
Expenses for the General Account total $120,956.68, the Capital Projects Account total $78,460.06, 
ROW total $64,899.35 and for the SIB Loan total $0.00. The aggregate expense for the reporting period 
is $264,316.09. 
  
Based on review by this office, approval of expenses for the reporting period is recommended in 
the aggregate amount of $264,316.09. 
 
This leaves a fund balance (all funds) after expenses of $2,712,841. 
 
If you should have any questions or require additional information, please advise.  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Plains Capital 41

Make Check Payable to Date Work Performed Amount

Wages & Benefits 2 1212 1 City of Pharr February 2018 76,183.93$

52900 1200 Office Depot Thru 3/05/2018 801.24$

53000 1200 Office Depot Thru 2/28/2018 667.66$

54000 1200 Office Depot Thru 2/28/2018 62.99$

52900 1662 Copy Zone Jan. 2018 & Feb. 2018 1,205.78$

Telephone 52900 1606 Verizon Wireless 2/2/2018 03/01/2018 189.99$

52900 1710 1 Pathfinder Public Affairs February 2018 10,000.00$

53000 1650 Ramon Navarro 03/0/18 03/03/18 179.97$

Legal Fees 52900 1710 Bracewell, LLP Thru 02/28/2018 7,027.38$

52900 1710 Law Office of Richard A. Cantu, P.C. February 2018 195.00$

Accounting Fees 52900 1705 City of Pharr February 2018 205.00$

Rent 52900 1715 City of Pharr March 2018 4,480.00$

2 1212 1 City of Pharr February 2018 4,071.74$

52900 1715 1 Dahill 03/8/2018 4/7/2018 683.21$

53000 1715 1 Dahill 3/14/18 4/13/18 224.46$

53000 1715 1 Dahill 2/9/2018 300.00$

52900 1605 ABC Janitorial & Floor Care, Inc. 1/26/2018 449.00$

Professional Services 52900 1716 Pena Designs February 2018 200.00$

52900 1705 Burton McCumber & Longoria, L.L.P. 3/12/218 10,000.00$

See Attached Credit Card Services 02/04/18 03/03/18 189.00$

See Attached Credit Card Services 02/04/18 03/03/18 882.92$

See Attached Credit Card Services 02/04/18 03/03/18 1,097.41$

Rent 53000 1715 Pharr Bridge Business Park, LLC March 2018 1,400.00$

Janitorial Services 53000 1605 ABC Janitorial & Floor Care, Inc. February 2018 260.00$

120,956.68$

Wilmington Trust 45/Capital Projects

Legal Fees 52900 8810 Bracewell, LLP Thru 2/28/2018 3,990.00$

52900 8820 Bracewell, LLP Thru 2/28/2018 560.00$

Engineering Services 52900 8810 1 HDR Thru 02/03/2018 139.91$

52900 8820 1 Blanton & Associates, Inc. Thru 02/28/2018 749.70$

45 1 1267 Jimenez Engineering Consultants DBA International Consulting E February 2018 44,055.00$

45 1 1267 Halff Thru 2/11/2018 289.74$

52900 8830 4 Saenz Oil & Gas Services Thru 02/28/2018 2,499.00$

52900 8820 3 Greater Texas Landscape Services March 2018 832.31$

53,115.66$

Feb. 7 - March  9

March 2018
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Make Check Payable to Date Work Performed Amount

SIB R.O.W. Services Requisitions Paid

52900 8810 3 Estate of Rodrigo Rodriguez 365 Tollway 18,212.00$

52900 8810 3

Special Commissioners Daniel Reyes, Roel Gutierrez, Juan R.

Ramirez 365 Tollway 7,500.00$

52900 8810 3 Barron, Adler, Clough & Oddo, LLP 365 Tollway 20,624.85$

52900 8810 3 Lamar Texas Limited Partnership 365 Tollway 9,562.50$

52900 8810 3

Special Commissioners Eloy Sepulveda, Richard Garza, Jesse

Contreras 365 9,000.00$

64,899.35$

SIB Construction Account 45

Legal Fees 52900 8841 Law Office of Richard A. Cantu February 2018 9,529.71$

52900 8841 Sendero Acquisitions February 2018 250.00$

52900 8841 SAMES February 2018 1,245.00$

52900 8841 Quintanilla, Headley and Associates, Inc. 4/2014 & 04/2017 7,387.19$

Acquisition Services 52900 8842 Sierra Title of Hidalgo County, Inc. Through 3/2/2018 6,932.50$

25,344.40$

Sub Total General 120,956.68$

Sub Total Projects 53,115.66$

Sub Total SIB Acquisition 25,344.40$

Sub Total SIB R.O.W. 64,899.35$

Total 264,316.09$
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Item 2C 



 
 
 

HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 
         

AGENDA RECOMMENDATION FORM 
 

 
               BOARD OF DIRECTORS        X                     AGENDA ITEM                   2C                   

PLANNING COMMITTEE           DATE SUBMITTED           03/13/18                   
FINANCE COMMITTEE     MEETING DATE        03/27/18  
TECHNICAL COMMITTEE    
 
 
1. Agenda Item:  APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL REPORT FOR THE MONTHS OF JANUARY_  

2018 AND FEBRUARY 2018.          
 
2. Nature of Request:  (Brief Overview)  Attachments:     X  Yes          No 
 
 Consideration and approval of financial report for the months of January 2018 and February  

2018.              
  
3. Policy Implication:  Board Policy, Local Government Code, Texas Government Code, Texas  

Transportation Code, TxDOT Policy                         
 
4. Budgeted:          Yes           No       X   N/A 
 

Funding Source:         
 
5. Staff Recommendation: Motion to approve the Financial Report for the month of   

January 2018 and February 2018, as presented.        
  
6. Program Manager’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
  
7. Planning Committee’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
8. Board Attorney’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
9.    Chief Auditor’s Recommendation: _    Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
10. Chief Financial Officer’s Recommendation:   X   Approved          Disapproved          None 
 
11. Chief Development Engineer’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
12. Chief Construction Engineer’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
13. Executive Director’s Recommendation:   X   Approved          Disapproved          None 
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HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 
         

AGENDA RECOMMENDATION FORM 
 

 
                BOARD OF DIRECTORS        X                     AGENDA ITEM                   2D                    

PLANNING COMMITTEE           DATE SUBMITTED           3/16/18                    
FINANCE COMMITTEE     MEETING DATE        3/27/18  
TECHNICAL COMMITTEE    
 
 

1. Agenda Item:  RESOLUTION 2018-12 – APPROVAL OF WORK AUTHORIZATION 3 - 
SUPPLEMENTAL 3 TO THE PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH SAMES INC. 
FOR A NO COST-EXTENSION TO INVOICE 100% OF PARCEL 5P5, HVI ACQUISITION.   

 
2. Nature of Request:  (Brief Overview)  Attachments:     X  Yes          No 
 
 Consideration and Approval of Work Authorization Number 3 - Supplemental No. 3 for a no cost-

extension to invoice 100% of Parcel 5P5, HVI acquisition.        
 
3. Policy Implication:  Board Policy, Local Government Code, Texas Government Code, Texas  

Transportation Code, TxDOT Policy                         
 
4. Budgeted:        X  Yes           No          N/A 
 
 
5. Staff Recommendation: Motion to Approve Resolution 2018-12 – Approval of Work 

Authorization 3 - Supplemental 3 to the Professional Services Agreement with SAMES 
Inc. for a no cost-extension to invoice 100% of Parcel 5P5, HVI acquisition.     

 
6. Program Manager’s Recommendation:       Approved          Disapproved       X   None 

 

7. Planning Committee’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
8. Board Attorney’s Recommendation:       Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
9. Chief Auditor’s Recommendation:   _   Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
10. Chief Financial Officer’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
11.  Chief Development Engineer’s Recommendation:   X   Approved          Disapproved          None 
 
12. Chief Construction Engineer’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved        X_  None 
 
13. Executive Director’s Recommendation:   X   Approved          Disapproved           None 

 
 

 
 

 



 SUMMARY 

Amount   _________________ 

BRIEF BACKGROUND: 

Staff is recommending approval of this request in the amount of $

Environmental _____________________________________ 

Engineering _______________________________________ 

Geo-Technical _____________________________________ 

Surveying ________________________________________ 

Work Authorization # _______

Resolution No. Description Amount

Goal and Options: 

Approved Work Authorizations:

✔

     

                                

                                    

SAMES                        

2018-12

2016-24

$ 0.00

2016-44

$ 2,935.00

$ 13,567.50

2016-58 $ 13,085.00

2016-73

2016-81 WA 5 Revise parcels

WA 1 Revised survey services for 365

WA  2 Revised parcels for  365    

WA  3 Revise parcels for 365 

WA 4 Revise parcels - approved amount $5085 $ 4,060.00

$ 22,325.00

$ 214,709.00

WA14 SA1 no cost time ext.2018-12

$ 270,681.50

SAMES requires a no cost time extension related to parcel development work for the 365TOLL project.

$ 0.00

3 3

$ 0.00

$ 270,681.50

E. Davila, Develop Eng



2016-98 WA No. 6 Revise parcels $ 4,080.00

2016-105 $ 5,650.00

2016-112 $ 1,625.00

2016-113

2016-123

$ 26,365.00

$ 1,270.00

2016-125 $ 12,030.00

2017- 02

2017- 05

$ 1,840.00

2017- 14

$ 9,715.00

$ 83,030.00

2017-15

2017- 36 $ 0.00

2017- 37 $ 0.00

2017-38 $ 3,230.00

2017-74

WA No. 7 Right of Way Staking 

WA No. 8 Revise parcel

WA No. 9 Constuction Monuments

WA No. 10 Parcel Sketches 

WA No. 11 Parcel Surveys

WA No. 12 Parcel Surveys

WA No. 13 Parcel Survey Updates

WA No. 14 Offsite Drainage Parcels

WA No. 15 Subsurface Utility Relo

Supplemental # 2 to WA # 3 

Supplemental # 1 to WA # 9 

WA No. 16 Parcel Surveys

Suppl. No. 1 to WA No. 15 - addl SUE scope $ 20,926.00

$ 44,948.00

$ 214,709.00

2018-12



 

HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 

BOARD RESOLUTION No. 2018-12 

APPROVAL OF WORK AUTHORIZATION 3 - 
SUPPLEMENTAL 3 TO THE PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

AGREEMENT WITH SAMES INC. FOR A NO COST-
EXTENSION TO INVOICE 100% OF PARCEL 5P5, HVI 

ACQUISITION.  
 

THIS RESOLUTION is adopted this 27th day of M a rc h  2018 by the Board of Directors 
of the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority at a regular meeting. 

 
WHEREAS, the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority (the "Authority"), 

acting through its Board of Directors (the "Board"), is a regional mobility authority created 
pursuant to Chapter 370, Texas Transportation Code, as amended (the "Act"); 

 
WHEREAS, the Authority is authorized by the Act to address mobility issues in 

and around Hidalgo County; 
 

WHEREAS, on February 22, 2012 the Authority approved Resolution 2012- 04, 
creating the Technical Committee, comprised of senior  level  engineers  and professional from 
various communities and agencies in the jurisdiction of the Authority, to serve to advise the 
Board on procurement and consultant work products; and 

 
WHEREAS, on February 22, 2012 the Authority approved Resolution 2012-04 

authorizing the Executive Committee to determine the size, structure and scope of the 
Technical Committee, identify candidates and issue requests for participation; and 

 
WHEREAS, on October 16, 2013 the Authority approved Resolution 2013-41 

authorizing the use and structure of the Technical Committee to rate, rank and recommend a 
short list to the Board of Directors for the Statements of Qualifications for the International 
Bride Trade Corridor Project for Engineering, Surveying and Geotechnical Services; and 

 

 
WHEREAS, on November 20, 2014, the Authority approved Resolution 2013- 53 the 

Technical Committee has rated and ranked the Statements of Qualifications for the 
International Bridge Trade Corridor Project for Surveying Services and recommended that 
HCRMA staff be authorized to negotiate with all qualified Surveying Firms (Halff 
Associates, RODS Surveying, Quintanilla, Headley & Associates, Land  Tech Consultants, 
R. Gutierrez Engineering, Melden & Hunt, DOS Land Surveying, SAMES, Bain Medina 
Bain, ROW Surveying Services and Fulcrum Consulting Services) to establish a surveying 
pool for the project; and 

 

 
WHEREAS, on June 18, 2014, the Authority approved Resolution 2014-53 awarding 

professional service agreements to Halff Associates, RODS Surveying, Quintanilla, Headley & 
Associates, Land Tech Consultants, R. Gutierrez Engineering, Malden & Hunt, DOS Land 
Surveying, SAMES, Bain Medina Bain, ROW Surveying Services and Fulcrum Consulting 
Services for surveying services for the International Bridge Trade Corridor Project; and 



WHEREAS, on February 23, 2016, the Authority approved Resolution 2016- 24 
Work Authorization 1 to the Professional Service Agreement with SAMES, Inc. to provide 
revised  survey  for  the  SH  365  Segment  1 & 2  Parcel  16  in  the  amount  of 
$2,935.00; and 

 
WHEREAS, on March 22, 2016, the Authority approved Resolution  2016-44 Work 

Authorization 2 to the Professional Service Agreement with SAMES, Inc. to provide revised 
parcels 13P1, 13P2, 22, 26, 31, 39 and Salinas parcel for State Highway 365 Project in the 
amount of $13,567.50 for a revised amount of $16,502.50 for  Work Authorizations 1 and 2. 
The maximum payable amount remains at $25,000; and 

 
        WHEREAS, on April 26, 2016, the Authority approved Resolution 2016-58 for Work 
Authorization 3 to the professional service agreement with SAMES Engineering to provide 
modifications to Parcel(s) 5 Part 5-AQ and 5- Part 5-R; 7 and 15 for State Highway 365 in the 
amount of $13,085.00; and  

 
WHEREAS, on May 26, 2016, the Authority approved Resolution 2016-79 Work 

Authorization 4 to the professional service agreement with  SAMES Engineering to provide 
P a r c e l s 5 B , 3 6 B a n d 80 for State Highway 365 in the amount of $5,085.00 whereas 
only $4,060.00 were expended; and 

 
WHEREAS, on June 28, 2016, the Authority approved R e s o l u t i o n 2 0 1 6 - 8 1 

Work Authorization 5 to the professional service agreement with SAMES Engineering to 
provide parcels 107- A , 13P2 , 102, 20 , 108, 110, 111, 112  and  113  f o r  t h e 365 Tollway 
Project in the amount of $22,325.00; and 

 
WHEREAS, on June 28, 2016, the Authority approved Resolution 2016-82 Contract 

Amendment 2 to the professional service agreement with SAMES Engineering for Work 
Authorization Numbers 4 & 5 in the amount of $26,385.00 for a revised increase of a 
maximum payable amount of $55,972.50; 

 
WHEREAS, on July 26, 2016, the Authority  approved  Resolution 2016-97 for Work 

Authorization 3 Supplemental 1 to the professional service agreement with SAMES 
Engineering for a no-cost time extension for parcel revision to the 365 Tollway Project; and 

 
WHEREAS, on Jul y 26, 2016 the Authority approved Resolution 2016-98 for 

Work Authorization 6 to the professional service agreement with SAMES Engineering to 
provide parcels 7, 7B, and 9P2 for Segment 2 of the 365 Tollway Project in the amount of 
$4,080.00; and 

 
WHEREAS, on July 26, 2016, the Authority approved Resolution 2016-99 for 

Contract Amendment 3  to the professional service agreement with SAMES Engineering for 
Work Authorization 6 in the amount of $4,080.00 for a revised increase of a maximum 
payable amount of $60,052.50; and  

 
WHEREAS, on August 23, 2016 the Authority approved Resolution 2016-105 for 

Work Authorization 7 to the professional service agreement with SAMES Engineering to 
provide right of way staking for Veterans Road and Hi-Line Road for utility relocations in the 
amount of $5,650.00; and 

 
 

 
 
 
 



WHEREAS, on A u g u s t  23, 2016 the Authority approved Resolution 2016-106 
for Contract Amendment 4  to the professional service agreement with SAMES Engineering 
for Work Authorization Numbers 7 in the amount of $5,650.00 for a revised increase a 
maximum payable amount of $65,720.50; and 

WHEREAS, on  Sep t embe r  27 ,  2016  the Authority app ro ved  Re so lu t i on  
2 01 6 - 112  Work Authorization 8 to the professional service agreement with SAMES 
Engineering to provide revisions to parcel 49 P1 in the amount of $1,625.00; and  

WHEREAS, on  Sep t embe r  27 ,  2016  the Authority ap p ro ved  Re so l u t i on  
2 01 6 - 113  Work Authorization 9 to the professional service agreement with SAMES 
Engineering to provide construction monuments for the 365 Tollway Project in the amount 
of $26,365.00; and  

 
                WHEREAS, o n  S e p t e m b e r  2 7 ,  2 0 1 6  t h e  Authority a p p r o v e d  
R e s o l u t i o n  2 0 1 6 - 1 1 4  Contract Amendment 5  to the professional service agreement 
with SAMES Engineering to increase the maximum payable amount for Work Authorization 
Number 8 & 9 in the amount of $27,990.00. 

WHEREAS, on November 1, 2016 the Authority approved Resolution 2016-123 
Work Authorization 10 to the professional service agreement with SAMES Engineering to 
provide parcel sketches for corner clips at Steward Road & US 281/Military Highway as part 
of the Overpass/BSIF Connector for 365 Tollway Project in the amount of $1,270.00; and  

WHEREAS, on November 1, 2016 the Authority approved Resolution 2016-124 
Contract Amendment 6 to the professional service agreement with SAMES Engineering to to 
increase the maximum payable amount for Work Authorization Number 10 in the amount of 
$1,270.00; and 

WHEREAS,  on November 15, 2016 the Authority approved  Resolution 2016-125 
Work Authorization 11 to the professional service agreement with SAMES Engineering to 
provide surveys for parcels 21, 22, 22C Lateral D and Pawlik tract as part of the 365 Tollway 
Project in the amount of $12,030.00; and   

WHEREAS,  on January 24, 2017 the Authority approved  Resolution 2017- 02  
Work Authorization 12 to the professional service agreement with SAMES Engineering to 
update surveys 22D and 108 as part of the 365 Tollway Project in the amount of $1,840.00;and   

WHEREAS, on January 24, 2017 the Authority approved  Resolution 2017- 05  
Work Authorization 13 to the professional service agreement with SAMES Engineering to 
update survey 20 and provide surveys for parcels OD2 & OD3 as part of the 365 Tollway 
Project in the amount of $9,715.00; and 

WHEREAS,  on February 28, 2017 the Authority approved  Resolution 2017- 14  
Work Authorization 14 to the professional service agreement with SAMES Engineering to 
provide parcel sketches for offsite drainage outfall parcels for the 365 Tollway Project in the 
amount of $83,030.00; and 

WHEREAS,  on February 28, 2017 the Authority approved  Resolution 2017- 15  
Work Authorization 15 to the professional service agreement with SAMES Engineering to 
provide subsurface utility engineering for utility relocation as part of  the 365 Tollway Project 
in the amount of $44,948.00; and 

 



 
WHEREAS,  on February 28, 2017 the Authority approved  Resolution 2017- 16 

Contract Amendment 9 to the professional service agreement with SAMES Engineering for 
increase in maximum amount payable for Work Authorization Numbers 14 and 15 in the 
amount of $127,978.00; and  

WHEREAS,  on March 28, 2017 the Authority approved  Resolution 2017- 36 
Supplemental Number 2 to Work Authorization Number 3 to the professional service 
agreement with SAMES Engineering for a no-cost time extension to provide surveys for 
Parcels 5, 5P and 15 in the amount of $0.00; and 

WHEREAS,  on March 28, 2017 the Authority approved  Resolution 2017- 37 
Supplemental Number 1 to Work Authorization Number 9 to the professional service 
agreement with SAMES Engineering for a no-cost time extension to provide construction 
control monuments in the amount of $0.00; and 

WHEREAS, on August 22, 2017 the Authority approved  Resolution 2017-74  
Approval of Work Authorization 15 - Supplemental 1 to the Professional Services Agreement 
with SAMES Inc. for additional Subsurface Utility Engineering for the 365 Tollway Project in 
the amount of $20,926.0;  

WHEREAS, the Authority finds it necessary to approve Resolution 2018-12 – 
Approval of Work Authorization 3 - Supplemental 3 to the Professional Services Agreement 
with SAMES Inc. for a no cost-extension to invoice 100% of Parcel 5P5, HVI acquisition;  

 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF 
THE HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY THAT: 

 
 

Section I. The recital clauses are incorporated in the text of this Resolution as if fully 
restated. 

 
Section 2.  The Board hereby approves Work Authorization 3 - Supplemental 2 to the 
Professional Services Agreement with SAMES Inc. for a no cost-extension to invoice 100% 
of Parcel 5P5, HVI acquisition hereto attached as Exhibit A. 

 
Section 3.  The Board authorizes the Executive Director to execute Work Authorization 3 - 
Supplemental 3 to the Professional Services Agreement for Surveying Services with SAMES 
Engineering as approved. 
 

                                                                       
 
                                                                       ***** 



 

PASSED  AND  APPROVED  AS  TO  BE  EFFECTIVE  IMMEDIATELY  BY  THE 
BOARD  OF  DIRECTORS  OF  THE  HIDALGO  COUNTY  REGIONAL  MOBILITY 
AUTHORITY AT A REGULAR MEETING, duly posted and noticed, on the 27th day of 
March 2018, at which meeting a quorum was present. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

S. David Deanda, Jr., Chairman 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Ricardo Perez, Secretary/Treasurer 
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WA # 3 Suppl. 3 

to 
Professional Service Agreement with 

SAMES, Inc. 
for 

Surveying Services for the 
365 Tollway Project 

 
 



Contract

Hidalgo County 
Regional Mobility Authority 

(HCRMA)(Authority)

SURVEYING SERVICES IBTC 
Interchange with SH 365 to I-2 and 
from the ValleyView Interchange to 

FM 493
 

Work Authorization No. 3 – Supplemental No. 3
 

March 27, 2018

SAMES, Inc.



Supplemental No. 3 to Work Authorization No. 3
HCRMA Surveying Services Agreement for SAMES, Inc. for the 

IBTC 0010 project from the Interchange with 365 Tollway (Formerly SH 365) to I-2 and from the 
Valleyview Interchange to FM 493
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ATTACHMENT D-2

SUPPLEMENTAL WORK AUTHORIZATION NO. 3
TO WORK AUTHORIZATION NO. 3

AGREEMENT FOR SURVEYING SERVICES

THIS SUPPLEMENTAL WORK AUTHORIZATION is made pursuant to the terms and conditions of 
“Article V of that certain Professional Services Agreement for Surveying Services” hereinafter identified as 
the “Agreement,” entered into by and between the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority (Authority), 
and SAMES, Inc. (the Surveyor).

The following terms and conditions of Work Authorization No. 1 are hereby amended as follows:

Part II: The maximum amount payable under Part II of Work Authorization No. 3 will remain at 
$13,085.00.

Part IV: Work Authorization No. 1 shall now terminate on April 30, 2018.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Supplemental Work Authorization is executed in duplicate counterparts 
and hereby accepted and acknowledged below.

THE SURVEYOR THE AUTHORITY 

______________________________ ______________________________
(Signature) (Signature)

Samuel Maldonado, P.E., RPLS Pilar Rodriguez, P.E. .

(Printed Name) (Printed Name)
Principal . Executive Director .

(Title) (Title)
______________________________ ______________________________

(Date) (Date)



Item 2E 



 
 
 
 

HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 
         

AGENDA RECOMMENDATION FORM 
 

 
                BOARD OF DIRECTORS        X                     AGENDA ITEM                   2E                    

PLANNING COMMITTEE           DATE SUBMITTED           3/16/18                    
FINANCE COMMITTEE     MEETING DATE        3/27/18  
TECHNICAL COMMITTEE    
 
 

1. Agenda Item:  RESOLUTION 2018-13 - APPROVAL OF WORK AUTHORIZATION 14 - 
SUPPLEMENTAL 1 TO THE PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH SAMES INC. 
FOR A NO COST-EXTENSION FOR THE OUTFALL DEVELOPMENT.       

 
2. Nature of Request:  (Brief Overview)  Attachments:     X  Yes          No 
 
 Consideration and Approval of Work Authorization Number 14 - Supplemental No. 1 for a no 

cost-extension due ot ongoing coordination with HCDD#1 on outfall parcel development.    
 
3. Policy Implication:  Board Policy, Local Government Code, Texas Government Code, Texas  

Transportation Code, TxDOT Policy                         
 
4. Budgeted:        X  Yes           No          N/A 
 
 
5. Staff Recommendation: Motion to Approve Resolution 2018-13 - Approval of Work 

Authorization 14 - Supplemental 1 to the Professional Services Agreement with SAMES 
Inc. for a no cost-extension for the outfall development.       

 
6. Program Manager’s Recommendation:       Approved          Disapproved       X   None 

 

7. Planning Committee’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
8. Board Attorney’s Recommendation:       Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
9. Chief Auditor’s Recommendation:   _   Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
10. Chief Financial Officer’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
11.  Chief Development Engineer’s Recommendation:   X   Approved          Disapproved          None 
 
12. Chief Construction Engineer’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved        X_  None 
 
13. Executive Director’s Recommendation:   X   Approved          Disapproved           None 

 
 

 
 

 



 SUMMARY 

Amount   _________________ 

BRIEF BACKGROUND: 

Staff is recommending approval of this request in the amount of $

Environmental _____________________________________ 

Engineering _______________________________________ 

Geo-Technical _____________________________________ 

Surveying ________________________________________ 

Work Authorization # _______

Resolution No. Description Amount

Goal and Options: 

Approved Work Authorizations:

✔

     

                                

                                    

SAMES                        

2018-13

2016-24

$ 0.00

2016-44

$ 2,935.00

$ 13,567.50

2016-58 $ 13,085.00

2016-73

2016-81 WA 5 Revise parcels

WA 1 Revised survey services for 365

WA  2 Revised parcels for  365    

WA  3 Revise parcels for 365 

WA 4 Revise parcels - approved amount $5085 $ 4,060.00

$ 22,325.00

$ 214,709.00

WA14 SA1 no cost time ext.2018-13

$ 270,681.50

SAMES requires a no cost time extension related to outfall parcel development work for the 365TOLL project 
which the HCRMA is coordinating with HCDD#1. 

$ 0.00

14 1

$ 0.00

$ 270,681.50

E. Davila, Develop Eng



2016-98 WA No. 6 Revise parcels $ 4,080.00

2016-105 $ 5,650.00

2016-112 $ 1,625.00

2016-113

2016-123

$ 26,365.00

$ 1,270.00

2016-125 $ 12,030.00

2017- 02

2017- 05

$ 1,840.00

2017- 14

$ 9,715.00

$ 83,030.00

2017-15

2017- 36 $ 0.00

2017- 37 $ 0.00

2017-38 $ 3,230.00

2017-74

2018-13

WA No. 7 Right of Way Staking 

WA No. 8 Revise parcel

WA No. 9 Constuction Monuments

WA No. 10 Parcel Sketches 

WA No. 11 Parcel Surveys

WA No. 12 Parcel Surveys

WA No. 13 Parcel Survey Updates

WA No. 14 Offsite Drainage Parcels

WA No. 15 Subsurface Utility Relo

Supplemental # 2 to WA # 3 

Supplemental # 1 to WA # 9 

WA No. 16 Parcel Surveys

Suppl. No. 1 to WA No. 15 - addl SUE scope $ 20,926.00

Suppl. No. 3 to WA No. 3 - No Cost Time ext $ 0.00

$ 44,948.00

$ 214,709.00

2018-13



 

HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 

BOARD RESOLUTION No. 2018-13 

APPROVAL OF WORK AUTHORIZATION 14 - 
SUPPLEMENTAL 1 TO THE PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

AGREEMENT WITH SAMES INC. FOR A NO COST-
EXTENSION FOR THE OUTFALL DEVELOPMENT.  

 
THIS RESOLUTION is adopted this 27th day of M a rc h  2018 by the Board of Directors 
of the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority at a regular meeting. 

 
WHEREAS, the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority (the "Authority"), 

acting through its Board of Directors (the "Board"), is a regional mobility authority created 
pursuant to Chapter 370, Texas Transportation Code, as amended (the "Act"); 

 
WHEREAS, the Authority is authorized by the Act to address mobility issues in 

and around Hidalgo County; 
 

WHEREAS, on February 22, 2012 the Authority approved Resolution 2012- 04, 
creating the Technical Committee, comprised of senior  level  engineers  and professional from 
various communities and agencies in the jurisdiction of the Authority, to serve to advise the 
Board on procurement and consultant work products; and 

 
WHEREAS, on February 22, 2012 the Authority approved Resolution 2012-04 

authorizing the Executive Committee to determine the size, structure and scope of the 
Technical Committee, identify candidates and issue requests for participation; and 

 
WHEREAS, on October 16, 2013 the Authority approved Resolution 2013-41 

authorizing the use and structure of the Technical Committee to rate, rank and recommend a 
short list to the Board of Directors for the Statements of Qualifications for the International 
Bride Trade Corridor Project for Engineering, Surveying and Geotechnical Services; and 

 

 
WHEREAS, on November 20, 2014, the Authority approved Resolution 2013- 53 the 

Technical Committee has rated and ranked the Statements of Qualifications for the 
International Bridge Trade Corridor Project for Surveying Services and recommended that 
HCRMA staff be authorized to negotiate with all qualified Surveying Firms (Halff 
Associates, RODS Surveying, Quintanilla, Headley & Associates, Land  Tech Consultants, 
R. Gutierrez Engineering, Melden & Hunt, DOS Land Surveying, SAMES, Bain Medina 
Bain, ROW Surveying Services and Fulcrum Consulting Services) to establish a surveying 
pool for the project; and 

 

 
WHEREAS, on June 18, 2014, the Authority approved Resolution 2014-53 awarding 

professional service agreements to Halff Associates, RODS Surveying, Quintanilla, Headley & 
Associates, Land Tech Consultants, R. Gutierrez Engineering, Malden & Hunt, DOS Land 
Surveying, SAMES, Bain Medina Bain, ROW Surveying Services and Fulcrum Consulting 
Services for surveying services for the International Bridge Trade Corridor Project; and 



WHEREAS, on February 23, 2016, the Authority approved Resolution 2016- 24 
Work Authorization 1 to the Professional Service Agreement with SAMES, Inc. to provide 
revised  survey  for  the  SH  365  Segment  1 & 2  Parcel  16  in  the  amount  of 
$2,935.00; and 

 
WHEREAS, on March 22, 2016, the Authority approved Resolution  2016-44 Work 

Authorization 2 to the Professional Service Agreement with SAMES, Inc. to provide revised 
parcels 13P1, 13P2, 22, 26, 31, 39 and Salinas parcel for State Highway 365 Project in the 
amount of $13,567.50 for a revised amount of $16,502.50 for  Work Authorizations 1 and 2. 
The maximum payable amount remains at $25,000; and 

 
        WHEREAS, on April 26, 2016, the Authority approved Resolution 2016-58 for Work 
Authorization 3 to the professional service agreement with SAMES Engineering to provide 
modifications to Parcel(s) 5 Part 5-AQ and 5- Part 5-R; 7 and 15 for State Highway 365 in the 
amount of $13,085.00; and  

 
WHEREAS, on May 26, 2016, the Authority approved Resolution 2016-79 Work 

Authorization 4 to the professional service agreement with  SAMES Engineering to provide 
P a r c e l s 5 B , 3 6 B a n d 80 for State Highway 365 in the amount of $5,085.00 whereas 
only $4,060.00 were expended; and 

 
WHEREAS, on June 28, 2016, the Authority approved R e s o l u t i o n 2 0 1 6 - 8 1 

Work Authorization 5 to the professional service agreement with SAMES Engineering to 
provide parcels 107- A , 13P2 , 102, 20 , 108, 110, 111, 112  and  113  f o r  t h e 365 Tollway 
Project in the amount of $22,325.00; and 

 
WHEREAS, on June 28, 2016, the Authority approved Resolution 2016-82 Contract 

Amendment 2 to the professional service agreement with SAMES Engineering for Work 
Authorization Numbers 4 & 5 in the amount of $26,385.00 for a revised increase of a 
maximum payable amount of $55,972.50; 

 
WHEREAS, on July 26, 2016, the Authority  approved  Resolution 2016-97 for Work 

Authorization 3 Supplemental 1 to the professional service agreement with SAMES 
Engineering for a no-cost time extension for parcel revision to the 365 Tollway Project; and 

 
WHEREAS, on Jul y 26, 2016 the Authority approved Resolution 2016-98 for 

Work Authorization 6 to the professional service agreement with SAMES Engineering to 
provide parcels 7, 7B, and 9P2 for Segment 2 of the 365 Tollway Project in the amount of 
$4,080.00; and 

 
WHEREAS, on July 26, 2016, the Authority approved Resolution 2016-99 for 

Contract Amendment 3  to the professional service agreement with SAMES Engineering for 
Work Authorization 6 in the amount of $4,080.00 for a revised increase of a maximum 
payable amount of $60,052.50; and  

 
WHEREAS, on August 23, 2016 the Authority approved Resolution 2016-105 for 

Work Authorization 7 to the professional service agreement with SAMES Engineering to 
provide right of way staking for Veterans Road and Hi-Line Road for utility relocations in the 
amount of $5,650.00; and 

 
 

 
 
 
 



WHEREAS, on A u g u s t  23, 2016 the Authority approved Resolution 2016-106 
for Contract Amendment 4  to the professional service agreement with SAMES Engineering 
for Work Authorization Numbers 7 in the amount of $5,650.00 for a revised increase a 
maximum payable amount of $65,720.50; and 

WHEREAS, on  Sep t embe r  27 ,  2016  the Authority app ro ved  Re so lu t i on  
2 01 6 - 112  Work Authorization 8 to the professional service agreement with SAMES 
Engineering to provide revisions to parcel 49 P1 in the amount of $1,625.00; and  

WHEREAS, on  Sep t embe r  27 ,  2016  the Authority ap p ro ved  Re so l u t i on  
2 01 6 - 113  Work Authorization 9 to the professional service agreement with SAMES 
Engineering to provide construction monuments for the 365 Tollway Project in the amount 
of $26,365.00; and  

 
                WHEREAS, o n  S e p t e m b e r  2 7 ,  2 0 1 6  t h e  Authority a p p r o v e d  
R e s o l u t i o n  2 0 1 6 - 1 1 4  Contract Amendment 5  to the professional service agreement 
with SAMES Engineering to increase the maximum payable amount for Work Authorization 
Number 8 & 9 in the amount of $27,990.00. 

WHEREAS, on November 1, 2016 the Authority approved Resolution 2016-123 
Work Authorization 10 to the professional service agreement with SAMES Engineering to 
provide parcel sketches for corner clips at Steward Road & US 281/Military Highway as part 
of the Overpass/BSIF Connector for 365 Tollway Project in the amount of $1,270.00; and  

WHEREAS, on November 1, 2016 the Authority approved Resolution 2016-124 
Contract Amendment 6 to the professional service agreement with SAMES Engineering to to 
increase the maximum payable amount for Work Authorization Number 10 in the amount of 
$1,270.00; and 

WHEREAS,  on November 15, 2016 the Authority approved  Resolution 2016-125 
Work Authorization 11 to the professional service agreement with SAMES Engineering to 
provide surveys for parcels 21, 22, 22C Lateral D and Pawlik tract as part of the 365 Tollway 
Project in the amount of $12,030.00; and   

WHEREAS,  on January 24, 2017 the Authority approved  Resolution 2017- 02  
Work Authorization 12 to the professional service agreement with SAMES Engineering to 
update surveys 22D and 108 as part of the 365 Tollway Project in the amount of $1,840.00;and   

WHEREAS, on January 24, 2017 the Authority approved  Resolution 2017- 05  
Work Authorization 13 to the professional service agreement with SAMES Engineering to 
update survey 20 and provide surveys for parcels OD2 & OD3 as part of the 365 Tollway 
Project in the amount of $9,715.00; and 

WHEREAS,  on February 28, 2017 the Authority approved  Resolution 2017- 14  
Work Authorization 14 to the professional service agreement with SAMES Engineering to 
provide parcel sketches for offsite drainage outfall parcels for the 365 Tollway Project in the 
amount of $83,030.00; and 

WHEREAS,  on February 28, 2017 the Authority approved  Resolution 2017- 15  
Work Authorization 15 to the professional service agreement with SAMES Engineering to 
provide subsurface utility engineering for utility relocation as part of  the 365 Tollway Project 
in the amount of $44,948.00; and 

 



 
WHEREAS,  on February 28, 2017 the Authority approved  Resolution 2017- 16 

Contract Amendment 9 to the professional service agreement with SAMES Engineering for 
increase in maximum amount payable for Work Authorization Numbers 14 and 15 in the 
amount of $127,978.00; and  

WHEREAS,  on March 28, 2017 the Authority approved  Resolution 2017- 36 
Supplemental Number 2 to Work Authorization Number 3 to the professional service 
agreement with SAMES Engineering for a no-cost time extension to provide surveys for 
Parcels 5, 5P and 15 in the amount of $0.00; and 

WHEREAS,  on March 28, 2017 the Authority approved  Resolution 2017- 37 
Supplemental Number 1 to Work Authorization Number 9 to the professional service 
agreement with SAMES Engineering for a no-cost time extension to provide construction 
control monuments in the amount of $0.00; and 

WHEREAS, on August 22, 2017 the Authority approved  Resolution 2017-74  
Approval of Work Authorization 15 - Supplemental 1 to the Professional Services Agreement 
with SAMES Inc. for additional Subsurface Utility Engineering for the 365 Tollway Project in 
the amount of $20,926.0;  

WHEREAS, on March 27, 2018 the Authority approved Resolution 2018-12 – 
Approval of Work Authorization 3 - Supplemental 3 to the Professional Services Agreement 
with SAMES Inc. for a no cost-extension to invoice 100% of Parcel 5P5, HVI acquisition;  

WHEREAS, the Authority finds it necessary to approve Resolution 2018-13 –
Approval of Work Authorization 14 - Supplemental 1 to the Professional Services Agreement 
with SAMES Inc. for a no cost-extension for the outfall development;  

 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF 
THE HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY THAT: 

 
 

Section I. The recital clauses are incorporated in the text of this Resolution as if fully 
restated. 

 
Section 2.  The Board hereby approves Work Authorization 14 - Supplemental 1 to the 
Professional Services Agreement with SAMES Inc. for a no cost-extension for the outfall 
development hereto attached as Exhibit A. 
 
 
Section 3.  The Board authorizes the Executive Director to execute Work Authorization 14 - 
Supplemental 1 to the Professional Services Agreement for Surveying Services with SAMES 
Engineering as approved. 
 

                                                                     
 

***** 



 

PASSED  AND  APPROVED  AS  TO  BE  EFFECTIVE  IMMEDIATELY  BY  THE 
BOARD  OF  DIRECTORS  OF  THE  HIDALGO  COUNTY  REGIONAL  MOBILITY 
AUTHORITY AT A REGULAR MEETING, duly posted and noticed, on the 27th day of 
March 2018, at which meeting a quorum was present. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

S. David Deanda, Jr., Chairman 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Ricardo Perez, Secretary/Treasurer 
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WA # 14 Suppl. 1 

to 
Professional Service Agreement with 

SAMES, Inc. 
for 

Surveying Services for the 
365 Tollway Project 

 



Contract

Hidalgo County 
Regional Mobility Authority 

(HCRMA)(Authority)

SURVEYING SERVICES IBTC 
Interchange with SH 365 to I-2 and 
from the ValleyView Interchange to 

FM 493
 

Work Authorization No. 14 – Supplemental No. 1
 

March 27, 2018

SAMES, Inc.



Supplemental No. 1 to Work Authorization No. 14
HCRMA Surveying Services Agreement for SAMES, Inc. for the 

IBTC 0010 project from the Interchange with 365 Tollway (Formerly SH 365) to I-2 and from the 
Valleyview Interchange to FM 493
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ATTACHMENT D-2

SUPPLEMENTAL WORK AUTHORIZATION NO. 1
TO WORK AUTHORIZATION NO. 14

AGREEMENT FOR SURVEYING SERVICES

THIS SUPPLEMENTAL WORK AUTHORIZATION is made pursuant to the terms and conditions of 
“Article V of that certain Professional Services Agreement for Surveying Services” hereinafter identified as 
the “Agreement,” entered into by and between the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority (Authority), 
and SAMES, Inc. (the Surveyor).

The following terms and conditions of Work Authorization No. 1 are hereby amended as follows:

Part II: The maximum amount payable under Part II of Work Authorization No. 14 will remain at 
$83,030.00.

Part IV: Work Authorization No. 14 shall now terminate on December 31, 2018.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Supplemental Work Authorization is executed in duplicate counterparts 
and hereby accepted and acknowledged below.

THE SURVEYOR THE AUTHORITY 

______________________________ ______________________________
(Signature) (Signature)

Samuel Maldonado, P.E., RPLS Pilar Rodriguez, P.E. .

(Printed Name) (Printed Name)
Principal . Executive Director .

(Title) (Title)
______________________________ ______________________________

(Date) (Date)



Item 2F 



 
 
 
 

HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 
         

AGENDA RECOMMENDATION FORM 
 

 
                BOARD OF DIRECTORS        X                     AGENDA ITEM                   2F                    

PLANNING COMMITTEE           DATE SUBMITTED           3/16/18                    
FINANCE COMMITTEE     MEETING DATE        3/27/18  
TECHNICAL COMMITTEE    
 
 

1. Agenda Item:  RESOLUTION 2018-14 – APPROVAL OF WORK AUTHORIZATION 17 WITH 
SAMES INC. FOR THE HCID2 PARCEL ADJACENT TO PARCEL 65P9 NEAR HI LINE ROAD.  

 
2. Nature of Request:  (Brief Overview)  Attachments:     X  Yes          No 
 
 Consideration and Approval of Work Authorization Number 17 for development of an offsite 

irrigation district parcel related to a ROW negotiation / utility relocation with the Hidalgo County 
Irrigation District No. 2.           

 
3. Policy Implication:  Board Policy, Local Government Code, Texas Government Code, Texas  

Transportation Code, TxDOT Policy                         
 
4. Budgeted:        X  Yes           No          N/A 
 
 
5. Staff Recommendation: Motion to Approve Resolution 2018-14 – Approval of Work 

Authorization 17 with SAMES Inc. for the HCID2 parcel adjacent to Parcel 65P9 near Hi 
Line road.                    

 
6. Program Manager’s Recommendation:       Approved          Disapproved       X   None 

 

7. Planning Committee’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
8. Board Attorney’s Recommendation:       Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
9. Chief Auditor’s Recommendation:   _   Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
10. Chief Financial Officer’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
11.  Chief Development Engineer’s Recommendation:   X   Approved          Disapproved          None 
 
12. Chief Construction Engineer’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved        X_  None 
 
13. Executive Director’s Recommendation:   X   Approved          Disapproved           None 

 
 

 
 

 



 SUMMARY 

Amount   _________________ 

BRIEF BACKGROUND: 

Staff is recommending approval of this request in the amount of $

Environmental _____________________________________ 

Engineering _______________________________________ 

Geo-Technical _____________________________________ 

Surveying ________________________________________ 

Work Authorization # _______

Resolution No. Description Amount

Goal and Options: 

Approved Work Authorizations:

✔

     

                                

                                    

SAMES                        

2018-14

2016-24

$ 2,080.00

2016-44

$ 2,935.00

$ 13,567.50

2016-58 $ 13,085.00

2016-73

2016-81 WA 5 Revise parcels

WA 1 Revised survey services for 365

WA  2 Revised parcels for  365    

WA  3 Revise parcels for 365 

WA 4 Revise parcels - approved amount $5085 $ 4,060.00

$ 22,325.00

$ 214,709.00

WA17 HCID2 offsite parcel2018-14

$ 270,681.50

SAMES requires a new work authorization for parcel development work for the 365TOLL project relating to a 
ROW acquisition / utility relocation with the Hidalgo County Irrigation District No. 2 (HCID2). 

$ 2,080.00

17

$ 2,080.00

$ 272,761.50

E. Davila, Develop Eng



2016-98 WA No. 6 Revise parcels $ 4,080.00

2016-105 $ 5,650.00

2016-112 $ 1,625.00

2016-113

2016-123

$ 26,365.00

$ 1,270.00

2016-125 $ 12,030.00

2017- 02

2017- 05

$ 1,840.00

2017- 14

$ 9,715.00

$ 83,030.00

2017-15

2017- 36 $ 0.00

2017- 37 $ 0.00

2017-38 $ 3,230.00

2017-74

2018-13

2018-14

WA No. 7 Right of Way Staking 

WA No. 8 Revise parcel

WA No. 9 Constuction Monuments

WA No. 10 Parcel Sketches 

WA No. 11 Parcel Surveys

WA No. 12 Parcel Surveys

WA No. 13 Parcel Survey Updates

WA No. 14 Offsite Drainage Parcels

WA No. 15 Subsurface Utility Relo

Supplemental # 2 to WA # 3 

Supplemental # 1 to WA # 9 

WA No. 16 Parcel Surveys

Suppl. No. 1 to WA No. 15 - addl SUE scope $ 20,926.00

Suppl. No. 3 to WA No. 3 - No Cost Time ext $ 0.00

Suppl. No. 1 to WA No. 14 - No Cost Time ext $ 0.00

$ 44,948.00

$ 214,709.00

2018-14



 

HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 

BOARD RESOLUTION No. 2018-14 

APPROVAL OF WORK AUTHORIZATION 17 WITH 
SAMES INC. FOR THE HCID2 PARCEL ADJACENT TO 

PARCEL 65P9 NEAR HI LINE ROAD.  
 

THIS RESOLUTION is adopted this 27th day of M a rc h  2018 by the Board of Directors 
of the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority at a regular meeting. 

 
WHEREAS, the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority (the "Authority"), 

acting through its Board of Directors (the "Board"), is a regional mobility authority created 
pursuant to Chapter 370, Texas Transportation Code, as amended (the "Act"); 

 
WHEREAS, the Authority is authorized by the Act to address mobility issues in 

and around Hidalgo County; 
 

WHEREAS, on February 22, 2012 the Authority approved Resolution 2012- 04, 
creating the Technical Committee, comprised of senior  level  engineers  and professional from 
various communities and agencies in the jurisdiction of the Authority, to serve to advise the 
Board on procurement and consultant work products; and 

 
WHEREAS, on February 22, 2012 the Authority approved Resolution 2012-04 

authorizing the Executive Committee to determine the size, structure and scope of the 
Technical Committee, identify candidates and issue requests for participation; and 

 
WHEREAS, on October 16, 2013 the Authority approved Resolution 2013-41 

authorizing the use and structure of the Technical Committee to rate, rank and recommend a 
short list to the Board of Directors for the Statements of Qualifications for the International 
Bride Trade Corridor Project for Engineering, Surveying and Geotechnical Services; and 

 

 
WHEREAS, on November 20, 2014, the Authority approved Resolution 2013- 53 the 

Technical Committee has rated and ranked the Statements of Qualifications for the 
International Bridge Trade Corridor Project for Surveying Services and recommended that 
HCRMA staff be authorized to negotiate with all qualified Surveying Firms (Halff 
Associates, RODS Surveying, Quintanilla, Headley & Associates, Land  Tech Consultants, 
R. Gutierrez Engineering, Melden & Hunt, DOS Land Surveying, SAMES, Bain Medina 
Bain, ROW Surveying Services and Fulcrum Consulting Services) to establish a surveying 
pool for the project; and 

 

 
WHEREAS, on June 18, 2014, the Authority approved Resolution 2014-53 awarding 

professional service agreements to Halff Associates, RODS Surveying, Quintanilla, Headley & 
Associates, Land Tech Consultants, R. Gutierrez Engineering, Malden & Hunt, DOS Land 
Surveying, SAMES, Bain Medina Bain, ROW Surveying Services and Fulcrum Consulting 
Services for surveying services for the International Bridge Trade Corridor Project; and 



WHEREAS, on February 23, 2016, the Authority approved Resolution 2016- 24 
Work Authorization 1 to the Professional Service Agreement with SAMES, Inc. to provide 
revised  survey  for  the  SH  365  Segment  1 & 2  Parcel  16  in  the  amount  of 
$2,935.00; and 

 
WHEREAS, on March 22, 2016, the Authority approved Resolution  2016-44 Work 

Authorization 2 to the Professional Service Agreement with SAMES, Inc. to provide revised 
parcels 13P1, 13P2, 22, 26, 31, 39 and Salinas parcel for State Highway 365 Project in the 
amount of $13,567.50 for a revised amount of $16,502.50 for  Work Authorizations 1 and 2. 
The maximum payable amount remains at $25,000; and 

 
        WHEREAS, on April 26, 2016, the Authority approved Resolution 2016-58 for Work 
Authorization 3 to the professional service agreement with SAMES Engineering to provide 
modifications to Parcel(s) 5 Part 5-AQ and 5- Part 5-R; 7 and 15 for State Highway 365 in the 
amount of $13,085.00; and  

 
WHEREAS, on May 26, 2016, the Authority approved Resolution 2016-79 Work 

Authorization 4 to the professional service agreement with  SAMES Engineering to provide 
P a r c e l s 5 B , 3 6 B a n d 80 for State Highway 365 in the amount of $5,085.00 whereas 
only $4,060.00 were expended; and 

 
WHEREAS, on June 28, 2016, the Authority approved R e s o l u t i o n 2 0 1 6 - 8 1 

Work Authorization 5 to the professional service agreement with SAMES Engineering to 
provide parcels 107- A , 13P2 , 102, 20 , 108, 110, 111, 112  and  113  f o r  t h e 365 Tollway 
Project in the amount of $22,325.00; and 

 
WHEREAS, on June 28, 2016, the Authority approved Resolution 2016-82 Contract 

Amendment 2 to the professional service agreement with SAMES Engineering for Work 
Authorization Numbers 4 & 5 in the amount of $26,385.00 for a revised increase of a 
maximum payable amount of $55,972.50; 

 
WHEREAS, on July 26, 2016, the Authority  approved  Resolution 2016-97 for Work 

Authorization 3 Supplemental 1 to the professional service agreement with SAMES 
Engineering for a no-cost time extension for parcel revision to the 365 Tollway Project; and 

 
WHEREAS, on Jul y 26, 2016 the Authority approved Resolution 2016-98 for 

Work Authorization 6 to the professional service agreement with SAMES Engineering to 
provide parcels 7, 7B, and 9P2 for Segment 2 of the 365 Tollway Project in the amount of 
$4,080.00; and 

 
WHEREAS, on July 26, 2016, the Authority approved Resolution 2016-99 for 

Contract Amendment 3  to the professional service agreement with SAMES Engineering for 
Work Authorization 6 in the amount of $4,080.00 for a revised increase of a maximum 
payable amount of $60,052.50; and  

 
WHEREAS, on August 23, 2016 the Authority approved Resolution 2016-105 for 

Work Authorization 7 to the professional service agreement with SAMES Engineering to 
provide right of way staking for Veterans Road and Hi-Line Road for utility relocations in the 
amount of $5,650.00; and 

 
 

 
 
 
 



WHEREAS, on A u g u s t  23, 2016 the Authority approved Resolution 2016-106 
for Contract Amendment 4  to the professional service agreement with SAMES Engineering 
for Work Authorization Numbers 7 in the amount of $5,650.00 for a revised increase a 
maximum payable amount of $65,720.50; and 

WHEREAS, on  Sep t embe r  27 ,  2016  the Authority app ro ved  Re so lu t i on  
2 01 6 - 112  Work Authorization 8 to the professional service agreement with SAMES 
Engineering to provide revisions to parcel 49 P1 in the amount of $1,625.00; and  

WHEREAS, on  Sep t embe r  27 ,  2016  the Authority ap p ro ved  Re so l u t i on  
2 01 6 - 113  Work Authorization 9 to the professional service agreement with SAMES 
Engineering to provide construction monuments for the 365 Tollway Project in the amount 
of $26,365.00; and  

 
                WHEREAS, o n  S e p t e m b e r  2 7 ,  2 0 1 6  t h e  Authority a p p r o v e d  
R e s o l u t i o n  2 0 1 6 - 1 1 4  Contract Amendment 5  to the professional service agreement 
with SAMES Engineering to increase the maximum payable amount for Work Authorization 
Number 8 & 9 in the amount of $27,990.00. 

WHEREAS, on November 1, 2016 the Authority approved Resolution 2016-123 
Work Authorization 10 to the professional service agreement with SAMES Engineering to 
provide parcel sketches for corner clips at Steward Road & US 281/Military Highway as part 
of the Overpass/BSIF Connector for 365 Tollway Project in the amount of $1,270.00; and  

WHEREAS, on November 1, 2016 the Authority approved Resolution 2016-124 
Contract Amendment 6 to the professional service agreement with SAMES Engineering to to 
increase the maximum payable amount for Work Authorization Number 10 in the amount of 
$1,270.00; and 

WHEREAS,  on November 15, 2016 the Authority approved  Resolution 2016-125 
Work Authorization 11 to the professional service agreement with SAMES Engineering to 
provide surveys for parcels 21, 22, 22C Lateral D and Pawlik tract as part of the 365 Tollway 
Project in the amount of $12,030.00; and   

WHEREAS,  on January 24, 2017 the Authority approved  Resolution 2017- 02  
Work Authorization 12 to the professional service agreement with SAMES Engineering to 
update surveys 22D and 108 as part of the 365 Tollway Project in the amount of $1,840.00;and   

WHEREAS, on January 24, 2017 the Authority approved  Resolution 2017- 05  
Work Authorization 13 to the professional service agreement with SAMES Engineering to 
update survey 20 and provide surveys for parcels OD2 & OD3 as part of the 365 Tollway 
Project in the amount of $9,715.00; and 

WHEREAS,  on February 28, 2017 the Authority approved  Resolution 2017- 14  
Work Authorization 14 to the professional service agreement with SAMES Engineering to 
provide parcel sketches for offsite drainage outfall parcels for the 365 Tollway Project in the 
amount of $83,030.00; and 

WHEREAS,  on February 28, 2017 the Authority approved  Resolution 2017- 15  
Work Authorization 15 to the professional service agreement with SAMES Engineering to 
provide subsurface utility engineering for utility relocation as part of  the 365 Tollway Project 
in the amount of $44,948.00; and 

 



 
WHEREAS,  on February 28, 2017 the Authority approved  Resolution 2017- 16 

Contract Amendment 9 to the professional service agreement with SAMES Engineering for 
increase in maximum amount payable for Work Authorization Numbers 14 and 15 in the 
amount of $127,978.00; and  

WHEREAS,  on March 28, 2017 the Authority approved  Resolution 2017- 36 
Supplemental Number 2 to Work Authorization Number 3 to the professional service 
agreement with SAMES Engineering for a no-cost time extension to provide surveys for 
Parcels 5, 5P and 15 in the amount of $0.00; and 

WHEREAS,  on March 28, 2017 the Authority approved  Resolution 2017- 37 
Supplemental Number 1 to Work Authorization Number 9 to the professional service 
agreement with SAMES Engineering for a no-cost time extension to provide construction 
control monuments in the amount of $0.00; and 

WHEREAS, on August 22, 2017 the Authority approved  Resolution 2017-74  
Approval of Work Authorization 15 - Supplemental 1 to the Professional Services Agreement 
with SAMES Inc. for additional Subsurface Utility Engineering for the 365 Tollway Project in 
the amount of $20,926.0;  

WHEREAS, on March 27, 2018 the Authority approved Resolution 2018-12 – 
Approval of Work Authorization 3 - Supplemental 3 to the Professional Services Agreement 
with SAMES Inc. for a no cost-extension to invoice 100% of Parcel 5P5, HVI acquisition;  

WHEREAS, on March 27, 2018 the Authority approved Resolution 2018-13 –
Approval of Work Authorization 14 - Supplemental 1 to the Professional Services Agreement 
with SAMES Inc. for a no cost-extension for the outfall development;  

WHEREAS, the Authority finds it necessary to approve Resolution 2018-14 – 
Approval of Work Authorization 17 with SAMES Inc. for the HCID2 parcel adjacent to Parcel 
65P9 near Hi Line Road in the amount of $2,080.00;  

 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF 
THE HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY THAT: 

 
 

Section I. The recital clauses are incorporated in the text of this Resolution as if fully 
restated. 

 
Section 2.  The Board hereby approves Work Authorization 17 with SAMES Inc. for the 
HCID2 parcel adjacent to Parcel 65P9 near Hi Line Road in the amount of $2,080.00 hereto 
attached as Exhibit A. 
 
Section 3.  The Board authorizes the Executive Director to execute Work Authorization 17 
to the Professional Services Agreement for Surveying Services with SAMES Engineering as 
approved. 

                                                                      
 

***** 



 

PASSED  AND  APPROVED  AS  TO  BE  EFFECTIVE  IMMEDIATELY  BY  THE 
BOARD  OF  DIRECTORS  OF  THE  HIDALGO  COUNTY  REGIONAL  MOBILITY 
AUTHORITY AT A REGULAR MEETING, duly posted and noticed, on the 27th day of 
March 2018, at which meeting a quorum was present. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

S. David Deanda, Jr., Chairman 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Ricardo Perez, Secretary/Treasurer 
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to 
Professional Service Agreement with 

SAMES, Inc. 
for 

Surveying Services for the 
365 Tollway Project 

 



 
Contract  

 
 

Hidalgo County  
Regional Mobility Authority  

(HCRMA)(Authority) 
 

SURVEYING SERVICES IBTC 
Interchange with 365 Tollway 

(formerly SH 365) to I-2 and from 
the ValleyView Interchange to FM 

493 
 

 

Work Authorization No. 17 
 

March 27, 2018 

SAMES, Inc. 



Work Authorization No. 17 
HCRMA Surveying Services Agreement for SAMES, Inc. for the  

IBTC 0010 project from the Interchange with 365 Tollway (formerly SH 365) to I-2 and from the Valleyview 
Interchange to FM 493 

Attachment D-1 – Page 1 
 

ATTACHMENT D-1 
 

WORK AUTHORIZATION NO.  17 
AGREEMENT FOR SURVEYING SERVICES 

 
THIS WORK AUTHORIZATION is made pursuant to the terms and conditions of “Article V of that certain 
Professional Services Agreement for Surveying Services” (the Agreement) entered into by and between the 
Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority (Authority), and SAMES, Inc. (the Surveyor). 
 
PART I.   The Surveyor will perform surveying services generally described as in accordance with the project 
description attached hereto and made a part of this Work Authorization.  The responsibilities of the Authority and 
the Surveyor as well as the work schedule are further detailed in Exhibits A, B and C which are attached hereto and 
made a part of the Work Authorization.  
 
PART II.   The maximum amount payable under this Work Authorization is a total of $2,080.00 and the method of 
payment is Lump Sum, as set forth in Attachment E of the Agreement.  This amount is based upon fees set forth in 
Attachment E, Fee Schedule, of the Agreement and the Surveyor’s estimated Work Authorization costs included in 
Exhibit D, Fee Schedule, which is attached and made a part of this Work Authorization. 
 
PART III.   Payment to the Surveyor for the services established under this Work Authorization shall be made in 
accordance with Articles III thru V of the Agreement, and Attachment A, Section 1. 
 
PART IV.   This Work Authorization shall become effective on the date of final acceptance of the parties hereto 
and shall terminate on  June 30, 2018, unless extended by a supplemental Work Authorization as provided in 
Attachment A, Section 1.  
 
PART V.   This Work Authorization does not waive the parties' responsibilities and obligations provided under 
“Article V of that certain Professional Services Agreement for Surveying Services for International Bridge Trade 
Corridor (IBTC) Segment 0010 project from the Interchange with 365 Tollway (formerly SH 365) to I-2 and from 
the Valleyview Interchange to FM 493.  
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Work Authorization is executed in duplicate counterparts and hereby accepted 
and acknowledged below. 
 
       THE SURVEYOR                  THE AUTHORITY  
     
______________________________   ______________________________ 
       (Signature)       (Signature) 
     Samuel Maldonado, P.E., RPLS                    Pilar Rodriguez, P.E.              . 

  (Printed Name)             (Printed Name) 
                  Principal                            .                    Executive Director             . 
        (Title)           (Title) 
______________________________   ______________________________ 
        (Date)           (Date) 
 
LIST OF EXHIBITS 
Exhibit A  Services to be provided by the Authority 
Exhibit B  Services to be provided by the Surveyor 
Exhibit C  Work Schedule 
Exhibit D  Fee Schedule/Budget 
Exhibit H-2  Subprovider Monitoring System Commitment Agreement 



EXHIBIT A 
SERVICES TO BE PROVIDED BY THE AUTHORITY 

 

Work Authorization No. 17 
HCRMA Surveying Services Agreement for SAMES, Inc.  for the  

IBTC 0010 project from the Interchange with 365 Tollway (formerly SH 365) to I-2 and from the Valleyview 
Interchange to FM 493 

Exhibit A – Page 1 
  

 
Project Map. 
 
ROW Map – ROW widths, other land, ownership, survey information. 
 
Ownership information of adjacent tracts. 
 
Intersecting ROW information, documentation, construction plans of existing utilities if available. 
 
Construction plans of existing facilities if available. 
 
Intended use of the survey and required form of deliverables, files required, etc. 
 
Accuracy required and method of display. 
 
Horizontal and vertical datum upon where the survey should be based (if varies from TxDOT). 
 
Research on subject tracts/parcel ownership aerial photographs. 
 
Title Reports for Parent \ Ownership Tracts within Project 
 
Boundary survey, (data files) of Original Survey Lines Subdivision, and Parent Tracts within Project. Includes  
 
found monumentation. 
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7.0 Right of Way Mapping and Parcel Tract Platting 

Preparation of maps, plats, legal descriptions and all documents for the Final ROW Acquisition and monumenting of final 
Right of Way and Parcels. 

Definitions and Concepts for use in this context and derived from the TxDOT and HCRMA Survey Manuals. 

 Parent Tracts are defined by contiguous ownership, i.e.: 

… any tract of land, or a tract of land comprised of several smaller contiguous tracts, under one single ownership. 
… any tract of land, or a tract of land comprised of several smaller contiguous tracts, under one single ownership 
and not divided by a public way,  separate ownership or platted as a subdivision. 
… any tract of land comprised of contiguous lots in a platted subdivision under a single ownership. 

 Parcels are defined and created by ownership and unity of use and are the actual real properties, or tracts, to be 
acquired by the HCRMA, whether through purchase, donation, or exchange.  

… If a Parent Tract of contiguous properties has a unity of use, then two or more properties may be combined into 
one parcel. 

… If a Parent Tract of contiguous properties does not have unity of use, then each property is a separate parcel. 

… If a Parent Tract has different and discrete land use areas, then each land use area must be partitioned into 
separate parcels with a unique number. A Parcel, therefore, does not necessarily have a one-to-one correspondence 
to the property lines of the parent tract. 

… if a Parent Tract is divided or severed by public ways or by separate ownership and does NOT have common 
underlying ownership then each property must be partitioned into separate parcels with a unique number. 

… if a Parent Tract is divided or severed by public ways or by separate ownership and DOES have common underlying 
ownership but does NOT have unity of use then each property must be partitioned into separate parcels with a 
unique number. 

… if a Parent Tract is divided or severed by public ways or by separate ownership and DOES have common underlying 
ownership and DOES have unity of use then each property may be partitioned into ONE Parcel and sub-partitioned 
into separate PARTS. 
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SERVICES TO BE PROVIDED BY THE SURVEYOR 
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Limits for this service: 

HCDI2 Parcel (ID1) Adjacent to Parcel 65P9 near Hi Line road 

7.1 Coordination, Admin., Research and Abstracting Tasks. 

To be provided by: Task is Included (no color) Task Not Included modification needed Task Not needed or performed by Others 

HCRMA Sames, 
Inc. 7.1.1 

Contact and Coordinate with HCRMA for… 
 FINAL and APPROVED ROW FOOTPRINT prepared by HCRMA Design Engineers. 

(See Attachment C.4 – Detailed Scope of Services for Boundary Survey). 
 Any other information or data completed on the project to this point, i.e., final 

approved schematic, Planimetric Map of Project in MicroStation compatible 
format, Horizontal and Vertical projection, grid system and datum upon where the 
survey should be based and all other data the HCRMA has on hand. 

HCRMA Sames, 
Inc. 7.1.2 Deliver “Abstracts of Title” or “Title Reports” of Parent Tracts prepared by Title Co. 

HCRMA Sames, 
Inc. 7.1.3 Deliver HCRMA survey monument caps (if applicable) 

HCRMA Sames, 
Inc. 7.1.4 

Review of the HCRMA Survey Manuel and Right of Way requirements and discuss… 
 Parcel creation and numbering Requirements. 

The methodology of numbering ROW parcels must be correct and consistent to 
avoid problems in the appraisal process or with record maintenance through the 
ROW information system. Communicate regularly with the HCRMA for uniformity 
of Parcel creation methodology. 

 ROW MAP Requirements. 
 Parcel Plats and Parcel Descriptions Requirements. 

 

7.2 Field Work Tasks. 
To be provided by: Task is Included (no color) Task Not Included modification needed Task Not needed or performed by Others 

 Sames, 
Inc. 7.2.1 

Monument the final project ROW lines… 
 Set a 5/8” diameter x 24” long rebar, capped with an “HCRMA ROW” aluminum disk 

along the ROW lines at all corners, angle points, and points of curvature and 
tangency. 

 Sames, 
Inc. 7.2.2 

Monument Parcel corners… 
 Set 5/8” diameter x 18” long rebar, capped with an “HCRMA ROW” aluminum disk 

along ROW lines 
 Set 1/2'' diameter x 18” long rebar, capped with an appropriate cap bearing 

identification of the sub consultant Surveyor on interior corners (corners inside the 
taking) 

 Sames, 
Inc. 7.2.3 

Verify that all planimetric features of existing topo and planimetrics within the staked 
parcel are current. 

 Exercise special care in observing both structure and aerial encroachments such as 
overhead electric and telephone lines with cross-arms. 

 



EXHIBIT B 
SERVICES TO BE PROVIDED BY THE SURVEYOR 

 

Work Authorization No. 17 
HCRMA Surveying Services Agreement for SAMES, Inc.  for the  

IBTC 0010 project from the Interchange with 365 Tollway (formerly SH 365) to I-2 and from the Valleyview 
Interchange to FM 493 

Exhibit B – Page 3 
  

7.3 Office Work / Delivery Preparation Tasks 
To be provided by: Task is Included (no 

color) Task Not Included modification needed Task Not needed or performed by Others 

 Sames, Inc. 7.3.1 Analyze, define and create final Parcels and Parcel numbering plan. 
 See Parcel creation definition above. 

 Sames, Inc. 7.3.2 Update existing Planimetric map with any new or missing features or encroachments. 

 Sames, Inc. 7.3.3 

Prepare and Create ROW MAP including… 
 Title Sheet 
 Parcel Index Sheet 
 Control Sheet  

o (BMs set as per Attachment C.8 – Detailed scope of Service for 
Construction Staking will be the control on this sheet) 

 Plan Sheets 

 Sames, Inc. 7.3.4 
Prepare and create PARCEL PLATS and DESCRIPTIONS 

Prepare survey plats and metes and bounds descriptions as per HCRMA 
requirements for each Acquisition Parcel. 

 

 



EXHIBIT C
WORK SCHEDULE

SAMES, Inc.
Work Authorization No. 17

Task Description Start Date End Date Duration

Parcel ID1 (adjacent to Parcl 65P9 near Hi Line Road) 27-Mar-18 30-Apr-18 1 Month
Coordination, Admin, Research and Abstracting 27-Mar-18 30-Apr-18 1 Month
Field Work 27-Mar-18 30-Apr-18 1 Month
Office Work / Delivery Preparation 27-Mar-18 30-Apr-18 1 Month

JUL AUG SEPAPR OCT

HCRMA

JAN FEB MAR MAY
2017

JUN

Page 1 Exhibit C - Work Schedule



EXHIBIT D - Fee Schedule

Prime: SAMES, Inc. Fee Schedule/Budget for

Survey Services for the HCRMA Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority (HCRMA)

Work Authorization No. 17 Work Authorization No. 

Schedule Duration:  2 months IBTC Surveying Services

SURVEY SERVICES
DESCRIPTION

Principal / Sr. 
Manager / Senior 
survey Manager

Project Surveyor 
(RPLS)

Senior Survey 
Tech / SIT

Survey 
Technician

CADD Operator Clerical / Admin. Abstractor
1-Person Survey 

Crew
2-Person Survey 

Crew
3-Person Survey 

Crew
4-Person Survey 

Crew
Total

Labor Hrs.
Remarks

 Task
Cost 

PARCEL PREPARATION:

Parcel: 

Coordination, Admin, Research and Abstracting 1 2 2 5  $                          335.00 

Field Work 3 3  $                          390.00 
Office Work / Delivery Preparation 1 6 8 1 16  $                       1,355.00 

Subtotal 0 0.5 7 8 0 3 2 0 3 0 0 24 2,080.00$                       

Total Manhours by Classification 0 0 4 4 0 2 1 0 2 0 0 12

Contract Hourly Rate by Classification 200.00$                   150.00$                105.00$                75.00$                  65.00$                  50.00$                  65.00$                  80.00$                  130.00$                168.00$                198.00$                

Total Fee by Classification -$                         37.50$                  367.50$                300.00$                -$                      75.00$                  65.00$                  -$                      195.00$                1,040.00$               

CHECK (MHRs):

% Utilization by Over 6 months 0.00% 0.02% 0.34% 0.39% 0.00% 0.14% 0.10% 0.00% 0.14% 12

% of Total Labor Hours 0.00% 2.13% 29.79% 34.04% 0.00% 12.77% 8.51% 0.00% 12.77% 100.00% CHECK (LABOR):

% of Total Labor Cost 0.00% 3.61% 35.34% 28.85% 0.00% 7.21% 6.25% 0.00% 18.75% 100.00% 1,040.00$                        

TOTAL DIRECT LABOR COST 2,080.00$                       

DIRECT EXPENSES Rate Unit Amount Total

Mileage 0.56$                        Mile 0 -$                      -$                                  

Photocopies 0.10$                        Sheet 0 -$                      -$                                  

Blueline/Blackline Prints 2.00$                        Sheet 0 -$                      -$                                  

Deed/Copies 1.00$                        Sheet 0 -$                      -$                                  

Certified Deed Copies 2.00$                        Sheet 0 -$                      -$                                  

Mylar (11x17) 3.00$                        Sheet 0 -$                      -$                                  

Mylar (22x34) 6.00$                        Sheet 0 -$                      -$                                  

TOTAL DIRECT EXPENSES -$                      -$                                

SPECIAL SERVICES FEE (SUBCONSULTANTS)  DBE Participation 

0.00%

Name Task(s) Summary

TOTAL SPECIAL SERVICES FEE (SUBCONSULTANTS) -$                                

GRAND TOTAL 2,080.00$                       

LIMITS:  From the Interchange with SH 365 to I-2 and from the Valleyview Interchange to FM 493 (As-Assigned by the HCRMA)

0010 IBTC\01 Contract Admin\0010 Surveyors\_Proposals\Melden Hunt\Meldenunt WA No. 1\05 Exhibit D - Fee Schedule WA 17.xlsx
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Work Authorization No. 17 
HCRMA Surveying Services Agreement for SAMES, Inc.  for the  

IBTC 0010 project from the Interchange with 365 Tollway (formerly SH 365) to I-2 and from the Valleyview 
Interchange to FM 493 

Exhibit H-2 – Page 1 
  

EXHIBIT H-2 
Subprovider Monitoring System Commitment Agreement 

This commitment agreement is subject to the award and receipt of a signed contract from the Hidalgo County 
Regional Mobility Authority (Authority).  NOTE: Attachment H-2 is required to be attached to each contract 
that does not include work authorizations.  Attachment H-2 is required to be attached with each work 
authorization.  Attachment H-2 is also required to be attached to each supplemental work authorization.  If 
DBE/HUB Subproviders are used, the form must be completed and signed.  If no DBE/HUB Subproviders are 
used, indicate with “N/A” on this line: __________ and attach with the work authorization or supplemental 
work authorization.   
Contract #:              Assigned Goal: 0.0%   Prime Provider     SAMES, Inc.  

Work Authorization (WA)#:       17     WA Amount:         $2,080.00              Date:      
Supplemental Work Authorization (SWA) #: _____ to WA #:                         SWA Amount:                            
Revised WA Amount:                          

Description of Work 
(List by category of work or task description.  Attach additional pages, if 
necessary.) 

Dollar Amount 
(For each category of work or task 
description shown.) 

Survey $2,080.00 
FC  $0 

Total Commitment Amount (Including all additional pages.) $0 

IMPORTANT: The signatures of the prime and the DBE/HUB and Second Tier Subprovider, if any (both DBE and Non-
DBE) and the total commitment amount must always be on the same page. 

Provider Name:  SAMES, Inc. 
Address: 200 S. Cage Blvd., Ste. A Pharr, TX 78577 
VID Number: 12629412888 
PH: (956) 780-7880; FX: (956) 780 -8883       
Email: sam@samengineering-surveying.com  

 
Name:  Samuel Maldonado                         
(Please Print) 
Title:          Principal                                  
 
       
Signature                             Date 

DBE/HUB Sub Provider 
Subprovider Name:  
VID Number:  
Address:  
PH: (XXX) XXX-XXXX; FX: (XXX) XXX-XXXX 
Email: 

 
Name:                                               
(Please Print) 
Title:                                             
 
       
Signature                             Date 

DBE/HUB Sub Provider 
Subprovider Name:  
VID Number:  
Address: 
PH:                   FX: 
Email: 

 
Name:                                               
(Please Print) 
Title:                                             
 
       
Signature                             Date 
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Item 2G 



HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY

AGENDA RECOMMENDATION FORM

BOARD OF DIRECTORS X AGENDA ITEM     2G
PLANNING COMMITTEE  DATE SUBMITTED 3/16/18
FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING DATE 3/27/18
TECHNICAL COMMITTEE

1. Agenda Item:  RESOLUTION 2018-15 – APPROVAL OF CONTRACT AMENDMENT 12 TO
THE PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH SAMES INC. 

ORIZATION 17.

2. Nature of Request:  (Brief Overview)  Attachments: X  Yes  No

Consideration and Approval of Contract Amendment 12 to the Professional Service Agreement
with SAMES Inc. Work Authorization 17. 

3. Policy Implication:  Board Policy, Local Government Code, Texas Government Code, Texas
Transportation Code, TxDOT Policy

4. Budgeted: X Yes  No  N/A

5. Staff Recommendation: Motion to Approve Resolution 2018-15 – Approval of Contract
Amendment 12 to the Professional Services Agreement with SAMES Inc.

ork Authorization 17.

6. Program Manager’s Recommendation: Approved Disapproved X None

7. Planning Committee’s Recommendation: Approved Disapproved X None

8. Board Attorney’s Recommendation: Approved Disapproved X None

9. Chief Auditor’s Recommendation:   _ Approved Disapproved X None

10. Chief Financial Officer’s Recommendation: Approved Disapproved X None

11. Chief Development Engineer’s Recommendation: X Approved Disapproved None

12. Chief Construction Engineer’s Recommendation: Approved Disapproved X_ None

13. Executive Director’s Recommendation: X Approved Disapproved None



CONTRACT AMENDMENT SUMMARY 

Amount   _________________ 

BRIEF BACKGROUND:

Staff is recommending approval of this request in the amount of $

Environmental _____________________________________ 

Engineering _______________________________________ 

Geo-Technical _____________________________________ 

Surveying ________________________________________ 

___________

_________

Resolution No. Description Amount

Goal and Options: 

Approved Amendments:

     

✔

                    

                                

                                    

SAMES                        

2018-15

$ 25,000

12

2015-24

$ 2,080.00

2016-59

$ 25,000.00

$ 4,587.50

2016-82 $ 26,385.00

2016-99

2016-106 Amendment 4

Original contract amount 

Amendment 1 - WA 3

Amendment 2 - WA4 and WA5

Amendment 3 - WA 7 $ 4,080.00

$ 5,650.00

$ 204,979.00

Amendment 12 - WA 17 2018-15

$ 270,681.50

To Increase The Maximum Payable Amount For Work Authorization Number 17.

$ 2,080.00

$ 2,080.00

$ 272,761.50

E. Davila, Develop Eng



2016-114            Amendment #5 $ 27,990.00

2016-124 $ 1,270.00

2016-126 $ 12,030.00

2017-03

2017-16

$ 11,555.00

$ 127,978.00

2017-39 $ 3,230.00

2017-75 $ 20,926.00

           Amendment #6

           Amendment #7

           Amendment #8

           Amendment #9

           Amendment #10

           Amendment #11

$ 204,979.00

2018-15



 

HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 

BOARD RESOLUTION No. 2018-15 

APPROVAL OF CONTRACT AMENDMENT 12 TO THE 
PROFESSIONAL SERVICE AGREEMENT WITH 

SAMES ENGINEERING FOR INCREASE IN MAXIMUM 
AMOUNT PAYABLE FOR WORK AUTHORIZATION 

NUMBER 17.  
 

THIS RESOLUTION is adopted this 27th day of M a rc h  2018 by the Board of Directors 
of the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority at a regular meeting. 

 
WHEREAS, the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority (the "Authority"), 

acting through its Board of Directors (the "Board"), is a regional mobility authority created 
pursuant to Chapter 370, Texas Transportation Code, as amended (the "Act"); 

 
WHEREAS, the Authority is authorized by the Act to address mobility issues in 

and around Hidalgo County; 
 

WHEREAS, on February 22, 2012 the Authority approved Resolution 2012-04, 
creating the Technical Committee, comprised of senior  level  engineers  and professionals from 
various communities and agencies in the jurisdiction of the Authority, to serve to advise the 
Board on procurement and consultant work products; and 

 
WHEREAS, on February 22, 2012 the Authority approved Resolution 2012-04 

authorizing the Executive Committee to determine the size, structure and scope of the 
Technical Committee, identify candidates and issue requests for participation; and 

 
WHEREAS, on October 16, 2013 the Authority approved Resolution 2013-41 

authorizing the use and structure of the Technical Committee to rate, rank and recommend a 
short list to the Board of Directors for the Statements of Qualifications for the International 
Bride Trade Corridor Project for Engineering, Surveying and Geotechnical Services; and 

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                            

 
WHEREAS, on November 20, 2014, the Authority approved Resolution 2013- 53 the 

Technical Committee has rated and ranked the Statements of Qualifications for the 
International Bridge Trade Corridor Project for Surveying Services and recommended that 
HCRMA staff be authorized to negotiate with all qualified Surveying Firms (Halff 
Associates, RODS Surveying, Quintanilla, Headley & Associates,  Land  Tech Consultants, 
R. Gutierrez Engineering, Melden & Hunt, DOS Land Surveying, SAMES, Bain Medina 
Bain, ROW Surveying Services and Fulcrum Consulting Services) to establish a surveying 
pool for the project; and 

 

 
WHEREAS, on June 18, 2014, the Authority approved Resolution 2014-53 awarding 

professional service agreements to Halff Associates, RODS Surveying, Quintanilla, Headley & 
Associates, Land Tech Consultants, R. Gutierrez Engineering, Malden & Hunt, DOS Land 
Surveying, SAMES, Bain Medina Bain, ROW Surveying Services and Fulcrum Consulting 
Services for surveying services for the International Bridge Trade Corridor Project; and 



WHEREAS, on February 23, 2016, the Authority approved Resolution 2016- 24 
Work Authorization 1 to the Professional Service Agreement with SAMES, Inc. to provide 
revised  survey  for  the  SH  365  Segment  1 & 2  Parcel  16  in  the  amount  of 
$2,935.00; and 

 
WHEREAS, on March 22, 2016, the Authority approved Resolution  2016-44 Work 

Authorization 2 to the Professional Service Agreement with SAMES, Inc. to provide revised 
parcels 13P1, 13P2, 22, 26, 31, 39 and Salinas parcel for State Highway 365 Project in the 
amount of $13,567.50 for a revised amount of $16,502.50 for  Work Authorizations 1 and 2. 
The maximum payable amount remains at $25,000; and 

 
        WHEREAS, on April 26, 2016, the Authority approved Resolution 2016-58 for Work 
Authorization 3 to the professional service agreement with SAMES Engineering to provide 
modifications to Parcel(s) 5 Part 5-AQ and 5- Part 5-R; 7 and 15 for State Highway 365 in the 
amount of $13,085.00; and  

 
WHEREAS, on May 26, 2016, the Authority approved Resolution 2016-79 Work 

Authorization 4 to the professional service agreement with  SAMES Engineering to provide 
P a r c e l s 5 B , 3 6 B a n d 80 for State Highway 365 in the amount of $5,085.00 whereas 
only $4,060.00 were expended; and 

 
WHEREAS, on June 28, 2016, the Authority approved R e s o l u t i o n 2 0 1 6 - 8 1 

Work Authorization 5 to the professional service agreement with SAMES Engineering to 
provide parcels 107- A , 13P2 , 102, 20 , 108, 110, 111, 112  and  113  f o r  t h e 365 Tollway 
Project in the amount of $22,325.00; and 

 
WHEREAS, on June 28, 2016, the Authority approved Resolution 2016-82 Contract 

Amendment 2 to the professional service agreement with SAMES Engineering for Work 
Authorization Numbers 4 & 5 in the amount of $26,385.00 for a revised increase of a 
maximum payable amount of $55,972.50; 

 
WHEREAS, on July 26, 2016, the Authority  approved  Resolution 2016-97 for Work 

Authorization 3 Supplemental 1 to the professional service agreement with SAMES 
Engineering for a no-cost time extension for parcel revision to the 365 Tollway Project; and 

 
WHEREAS, on Jul y 26, 2016 the Authority approved Resolution 2016-98 for 

Work Authorization 6 to the professional service agreement with SAMES Engineering to 
provide parcels 7, 7B, and 9P2 for Segment 2 of the 365 Tollway Project in the amount of 
$4,080.00; and 

 
WHEREAS, on July 26, 2016, the Authority approved Resolution 2016-99 for 

Contract Amendment 3  to the professional service agreement with SAMES Engineering for 
Work Authorization 6 in the amount of $4,080.00 for a revised increase of a maximum 
payable amount of $60,052.50; and  

 
WHEREAS, on August 23, 2016 the Authority approved Resolution 2016-105 for 

Work Authorization 7 to the professional service agreement with SAMES Engineering to 
provide right of way staking for Veterans Road and Hi-Line Road for utility relocations in the 
amount of $5,650.00; and 

 
 

 
 
 
 



WHEREAS, on A u g u s t  23, 2016 the Authority approved Resolution 2016-106 
for Contract Amendment 4  to the professional service agreement with SAMES Engineering 
for Work Authorization Numbers 7 in the amount of $5,650.00 for a revised increase a 
maximum payable amount of $65,720.50; and 

WHEREAS, on  Sep t embe r  27 ,  2016  the Authority app ro ved  Re so lu t i on  
2 01 6 - 112  Work Authorization 8 to the professional service agreement with SAMES 
Engineering to provide revisions to parcel 49 P1 in the amount of $1,625.00; and  

 
WHEREAS, on  Sep t embe r  27 ,  2016  the Authority ap p ro ved  Re so l u t i on  

2 01 6 - 113  Work Authorization 9 to the professional service agreement with SAMES 
Engineering to provide construction monuments for the 365 Tollway Project in the amount 
of $26,365.00; and  

 
                WHEREAS, o n  S e p t e m b e r  2 7 ,  2 0 1 6  t h e  Authority a p p r o v e d  
R e s o l u t i o n  2 0 1 6 - 1 1 4  Contract Amendment 5  to the professional service agreement 
with SAMES Engineering to increase the maximum payable amount for Work Authorization 
Number 8 & 9 in the amount of $27,990.00. 

WHEREAS, on November 1, 2016 the Authority approved Resolution 2016-123 
Work Authorization 10 to the professional service agreement with SAMES Engineering to 
provide parcel sketches for corner clips at Steward Road & US 281/Military Highway as part 
of the Overpass/BSIF Connector for 365 Tollway Project in the amount of $1,270.00; and  

WHEREAS, on November 1, 2016 the Authority approved Resolution 2016-124 
Contract Amendment 6 to the professional service agreement with SAMES Engineering to to 
increase the maximum payable amount for Work Authorization Number 10 in the amount of 
$1,270.00; and 

WHEREAS,  on November 15, 2016 the Authority approved  Resolution 2016-125 
Work Authorization 11 to the professional service agreement with SAMES Engineering to 
provide surveys for parcels 21, 22, 22C Lateral D and Pawlik tract as part of the 365 Tollway 
Project in the amount of $12,030.00; and   

WHEREAS,  on January 24, 2017 the Authority approved  Resolution 2017-02  Work 
Authorization 12 to the professional service agreement with SAMES Engineering to update 
surveys 22D and 108 as part of the 365 Tollway Project in the amount of $1,840.00;and   

WHEREAS, on January 24, 2017 the Authority approved  Resolution 2017-05  Work 
Authorization 13 to the professional service agreement with SAMES Engineering to update 
survey 20 and provide surveys for parcels OD2 & OD3 as part of the 365 Tollway Project in 
the amount of $9,715.00; and 

WHEREAS,  on February 28, 2017 the Authority approved  Resolution 2017-14  
Work Authorization 14 to the professional service agreement with SAMES Engineering to 
provide parcel sketches for offsite drainage outfall parcels for the 365 Tollway Project in the 
amount of $83,030.00; and 

WHEREAS,  on February 28, 2017 the Authority approved  Resolution 2017-15  
Work Authorization 15 to the professional service agreement with SAMES Engineering to 
provide subsurface utility engineering for utility relocation as part of  the 365 Tollway Project 
in the amount of $44,948.00; and 



WHEREAS, on February 28, 2017 the Authority approved Resolution 2017-16
Contract Amendment 9 to the professional service agreement with SAMES Engineering for 
increase in maximum amount payable for Work Authorization Numbers 14 and 15 in the 
amount of $127,978.00;  

WHEREAS, on March 28, 2017 the Authority approved Resolution 2017-39
Contract Amendment 10 to the professional service agreement with SAMES Engineering for 
increase in maximum amount payable for Work Authorization Number 16 in the amount of 
$3,230.00;

WHEREAS, on August 22, 2017 the Authority approved Resolution 2017-75
Contract Amendment 11 to the professional service agreement with SAMES Engineering for 
increase in maximum amount payable for Work Authorization Number 15 – Supplemental 1 
in the amount of $20,926.00;  

WHEREAS, on March 27, 2018 the Authority approved Resolution 2018-12 – 
Approval of Work Authorization 3 - Supplemental 3 to the Professional Services Agreement 
with SAMES Inc. for a no cost-extension to invoice 100% of Parcel 5P5, HVI acquisition;  

WHEREAS, on March 27, 2018 the Authority approved Resolution 2018-13 – 
Approval of Work Authorization 14 - Supplemental 1 to the Professional Services Agreement 
with SAMES Inc. for a no cost-extension for the outfall development;  

WHEREAS, on March 27, 2018 the Authority approved Resolution 2018-14 – 
Approval of Work Authorization 17 with SAMES Inc. for the HCID2 parcel adjacent to Parcel 
65P9 near Hi Line Road in the amount of $2,080.00; 

WHEREAS, the Authority finds it necessary to approve Resolution 2018-15 
Contract Amendment 12 to the professional service agreement with SAMES Engineering for 
increase in maximum amount payable for Work Authorization Number 17 in the amount of 
$272,761.50;  

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF 
THE HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY THAT: 

Section I. The recital clauses are incorporated in the text of this Resolution as if fully 
restated. 

Section 2.  The Board hereby approves Contract Amendment 12 to the professional service 
agreement with SAMES Engineering for the 365 Tollway Project to raise the maximum 
amount payable by $2,080.00 hereto attached as Exhibit A. 

Section 3.  The Board authorizes the Executive Director to execute the Contract Amendment 
12 to the Professional Services Agreement for Surveying Services with SAMES Engineering 
as approved. 

*****



 

PASSED  AND  APPROVED  AS  TO  BE  EFFECTIVE  IMMEDIATELY  BY  THE 
BOARD  OF  DIRECTORS  OF  THE  HIDALGO  COUNTY  REGIONAL  MOBILITY 
AUTHORITY AT A REGULAR MEETING, duly posted and noticed, on the 27th day of 
March 2018, at which meeting a quorum was present. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

S. David Deanda, Jr., Chairman 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Ricardo Perez, Secretary/Treasurer 
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Contract Amendment # 12 

to 
Professional Service Agreement with 

SAMES, Inc. 
for 

Surveying Services for the 
365 Tollway Project 

 



 
Contract  

 
 

Hidalgo County  
Regional Mobility Authority  

(HCRMA)(Authority) 
 

SURVEYING SERVICES IBTC 
Interchange with 365 Tollway 

(formerly SH 365) to I-2 and from 
the ValleyView Interchange to FM 

493 
 

 

Contract Amendment No. 12 
 

March 27, 2018 

SAMES, Inc. 



Contract Amendment No. 12 to Professional Services Agreement 
HCRMA Surveying Services Agreement for SAMES, Inc. for the  

IBTC 0010 project from the Interchange with 365 Tollway (formerly SH 365) to I-2 and from the Valleyview 
Interchange to FM 493 
Attachment D – Page 1 

 

CONTRACT AMENDMENT NO. _ 12 _ 
TO PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

AGREEMENT FOR SURVEYING SERVICES 
 

THIS CONTRACT AMENDMENT NO 12 TO MAIN CONTRACT is made pursuant to the terms and 
conditions of “Article III Compensation and Attachment A General Provisions Section 6 Supplemental 
Agreements of that certain Professional Services Agreement for Surveying Services” hereinafter identified as the 
“Agreement,” entered into by and between the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority (Authority), and 
SAMES, Inc. (the Surveyor). 
  
The following terms and conditions of the Agreement are hereby amended as follows: 
 
 
Article III Compensation  
Article III Compensation shall be amended to increase the amount payable under this contract from 
$270,681.50 to $272,761.50 for a total increase of $2,080.00 due to additional scope and effort outlined in 
Work Authorization No. 17 for $2,080.00.  
 
 
 
This Contract Amendment No. 12 to the Professional Services Agreement shall become effective on the date of 
final execution of the parties hereto.  All other terms and conditions of the Agreement not hereby amended are 
to remain in full force and effect. 
 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Contract Amendment is executed in duplicate counterparts and hereby 
accepted and acknowledged below. 
 
 
 
      THE SURVEYOR          THE AUTHORITY  
 

 
______________________________  ______________________________ 
 (Signature)      (Signature) 
_____Samuel Maldonado___      ____  ______Pilar Rodriguez, P.E._______ 
 (Printed Name)     (Printed Name) 
___    __  _President______________  _____Executive Director__________ 
 (Title)       (Title) 
_____________________________ _  ______________________________ 
 (Date)       (Date) 



Item 3A 



HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 

AGENDA RECOMMENDATION FORM 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS  X 
PLANNING COMMITTEE   
FINANCE COMMITTEE 

AGENDA ITEM 3A
DATE SUBMITTED 
MEETING DATE

TECHNICAL COMMITTEE 

1. Agenda Item:  RESOLUTION 201 – APPROVAL OF CHANGE ORDER NUMBER 9 AND
FINAL CLOSEOUT  WITH FOREMOST PAVING, INC. FOR THE  US281/MILITARY HIGHWAY
OVERPASS/BORDER SAFETY INSPECTION FACILITY CONNECTOR PROJECT.

2. Nature of Request:  (Brief Overview)  Attachments: X  Yes  No

To reconcile project quantities. 

3. Policy Implication:  Board Policy, Local Government Code, Texas Government Code, Texas
Transportation Code, TxDOT Policy

4. Budgeted: Yes  No  X   N/A 

5. Staff Recommendation: Motion to approve Resolution 201 Change Order 9, as
presented to the Board of Directors on . .

6. Program Manager’s Recommendation: Approved Disapproved X  None 

7. Planning Committee’s Recommendation: Approved Disapproved X None 

8. Board Attorney’s Recommendation: Approved Disapproved X None 

9. Chief Auditor’s Recommendation: Approved Disapproved X None 

10. Chief Financial Officer’s Recommendation: Approved Disapproved X_ None 

11. Construction Engineer’s Recommendation: X Approved Disapproved None 

12. Executive Director’s Recommendation: X Approved Disapproved  None 



Memorandum
To: Pilar Rodriguez, P.E

HCRMA, Executive Director

From: Ramon Navarro, IV, P.E., C.F.M.

Date: March 19, 2018

Subject: CO#9– CHANGE ORDER NUMBER 9 WITH FOREMOST PAVING INC. TO 
RECONCILE PROJECT QUANTITY OVERRUNS / UNDERRUNS FOR THE US 
281/MILITARY HIGHWAY/BSIF CONNECTOR PROJECT.

Goal
Consideration and approval of Change Order No. 9 for revisions to various items. 

Reconciliation of Various Items – item over / underruns being presented to reconcile
completed work:
A. OVERRUNS + NEW ITEMS $210,206.25
B. UNDERRUNS ($351,829.30)

[TABLES ATTACHED]

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends approval of various items for reconciliation of ($141,623.05): 
A) Overruns and various new items  $210,206.25

B) Underruns of various items ($351,829.30)

Implementation of items on Change Order #9 result in an overall  of 
$ ; revising the total project cost to $19,301,090.63. The project shall
be submitted to TxDOT for official concurrence, final acceptance and closeout.



A. OVERRUNS + NEW ITEMS $210,206.25

LINE ITEM DESCRIPTION UNIT UNIT PRICE QUANTITY ITEM COST QUANTITY ITEM COST OVER

0170 260-6011 LIME TRT (EXST MATL)(12") SY            3.00    125,234.00           375,702.00    131,105.63        393,316.89          17,614.89 
0180 260-6043 LIME (HYD, COM OR QK)(SLURRY) TON        127.00        2,497.00           317,119.00        2,560.63        325,200.01            8,081.01 
0270 354-6041 PLANE ASPH CONC PAV (1.5") SY            5.00        1,581.00               7,905.00        1,980.00            9,900.00            1,995.00 
0470 432-6002 RIPRAP (CONC)(5 IN) CY        460.00           124.00             57,040.00           136.00          62,560.00            5,520.00 
0790 502-6001 BARRICADES, SIGNS & TRF HANDLE MO     2,500.00             20.00             50,000.00             21.00          52,500.00            2,500.00 
0840 506-6041 BIODEG EROSN CONT LOGS(INSTL) LF            6.50        1,227.00               7,975.50        2,102.00          13,663.00            5,687.50 
0930 529-6003 CONC CURB (TY II A) LF          15.00        2,089.00             31,335.00        2,099.30          31,489.50               154.50 
0980 530-6005 DRIVEWAYS (ACP) SY          21.00           953.11             20,015.31        1,602.30          33,648.30          13,632.99 
1040 542-6001 REMOV METAL BEAM GRD FENCE LF            2.00           267.00 534.00           367.00               734.00               200.00 
1210 620-6007 ELEC CONDR (NO.8) BARE LF            1.40        6,609.50               9,253.30        6,829.50            9,561.30               308.00 
1220 620-6008 ELEC CONDR (NO.8) INSULATED LF            1.50      10,961.00             16,441.50      11,401.00          17,101.50               660.00 
1320 636-6003 ALUMINUM SIGNS (TY O) SF          22.00           925.00             20,350.00        1,248.75          27,472.50            7,122.50 
1330 644-6027 IN SM RD SN SUP&AM TYS80(1)SAP EA        505.00             48.00             24,240.00             52.00          26,260.00            2,020.00 
1390 644-6076 REMOV SM RD SN SUP&AM EA          50.00             33.00               1,650.00             35.00            1,750.00               100.00 
1450 658-6013 INSTL DEL ASSM(D-SW)SZ(BRF)CTB EA          19.00               8.00 152.00             18.00               342.00               190.00 
1490 658-6061 INSTL DEL ASSM(D-SW)SZ 1 (BRF)GF EA          35.00             19.00 665.00             28.00               980.00               315.00 
1541 662-6095 WK ZN PAV MRK REMOV(Y)4"(SLD) LF            0.75        9,119.00               6,839.25      10,795.00            8,096.25            1,257.00 
1580 666-6036 REFL PAV MRK TY I (W)8"(SLD)100ML LF            1.10        5,459.00               6,004.90        6,663.00            7,329.30            1,324.40 
1590 666-6048 REFL PAV MRK TY I (W)24"(SLD)100 LF            3.30           351.00               1,158.30           901.00            2,973.30            1,815.00 
1610 666-6226 PAVEMENT SEALER 8" LF            0.50        2,341.00               1,170.50        2,406.00            1,203.00                32.50 
1640 666-6303 RE PM W/RET REQ TY I(W)4"(SLD) LF            0.48      30,147.00             14,470.56      32,067.00          15,392.16               921.60 
1660 666-6315 RE PM W/RET REQ TY I(Y)4"(SLD) LF            0.48      32,158.00             15,435.84      34,950.00          16,776.00            1,340.16 
1720 672-6007 REFL PAV MRKR TYI-C EA            4.00           147.00 588.00           275.00            1,100.00               512.00 
1740 672-6009 REFL PAV MRKER TY II-A-A EA            4.00           695.00               2,780.00           841.00            3,364.00               584.00 
1750 672-6010 REFL PAV MRKR TY II-C-R EA            4.00           378.00               1,512.00           507.00            2,028.00               516.00 
1761 677-6001 ELIM EXT PAV MRK & MRKS (4") LF            0.30      23,326.00               6,997.80      26,097.00            7,829.10               831.30 
1791 677-6008 ELIM EXT PAV MRK & MRKS (ARROW) EA          12.00             12.00 144.00             13.00               156.00                12.00 
1910 684-6012 TRF SIG CBL(TY A)(12 AWG)(7 CONDR) LF            1.90        3,381.00               6,423.90        4,301.00            8,171.90            1,748.00 
2100 5001-6001 GEOGRID BASE REINFORCEMENT(TY I) SY            1.15    111,633.00           128,377.95    112,550.65        129,433.25            1,055.30 
2850 344-6104 SUPERPAVE MIXTURES SP-D SAC-B PG64- TON          79.32      14,320.00         1,135,862.40      14,550.60     1,154,153.59          18,291.19 
2350 467-6363 SET (TY II) (18 IN) (RCP) (6: 1) (P) EA     1,000.00             10.00             10,000.00             12.00          12,000.00            2,000.00 
2630 672-6006 REFL PAV MRKR TY I-A EA            4.00             37.00 148.00               152.00 4.00
711 467-6363 SET (TY II) (18 IN) (RCP) (6: 1) (P) EA     1,000.00 - -               4.00            4,000.00            4,000.00 
591 9608-6007 INLET & PIPE RE-ALIGN ADJUSTMENTS DOL   20,314.20 - -               1.00          20,314.20          20,314.20 
2431 618-6016 IN RD IL (TY SA)40T-8(250W EQ) LED EA     2,895.00               2.00            5,790.00            5,790.00 
0920 528-6004 LANDSCAPE PAVERS SY          50.00        2,613.00           130,650.00        2,668.13        133,406.50            2,756.50 
1770 677-6003 ELIM EXT PAV MRK & MRKS (8") LF            0.60           500.00 300.00           545.00               327.00                27.00 
0650 465-6009 JCTBOX(COMPL)(PJB)(5FTX5FT) EA     5,700.00               5.00             28,500.00               7.00          39,900.00          11,400.00 
1820 680-6004 REMOVING TRAFFIC SIGNALS EA     2,400.00               2.00               4,800.00               3.00            7,200.00            2,400.00 
1531 662-6063 WK ZN PAV MRK REMOV W 4 IN SLD LF            0.75        7,063.00               5,297.25      10,260.00            7,695.00            2,397.75 
0310 400-6006 CUT & RESTORING PAV SY        125.00           185.00             23,125.00           220.00          27,500.00            4,375.00 
2050 1008-7003 PRESS IRRIG PVC (30 IN) LF        213.00           130.00             27,690.00           146.00          31,098.00            3,408.00 
2080 464-6028 RC PIPE (CL V)(42 IN) LF        185.00           112.00             20,720.00           120.00          22,200.00            1,480.00 
0210 275-6031 CEMENT TREAT (NEW BASE)(10") SY            2.00    109,817.00           219,634.00    110,968.99        221,937.98 2,303.98
3070 1007-7001 IRRIGATION VALVE (12") EA     2,200.00               1.00            2,200.00 2,200.00
3080 9608-6009 LARGE OH SGNS REMOVAL, STORAGE DOL   32,035.93               1.00          32,035.93 32,035.93
3090 6908-6010 CRCP REPAIR PARTICIPATION DOL   16,972.05               1.00          16,972.05 16,972.05

        2,739,007.26     2,898,005.53        210,206.25 

- indicative of new item

ORIGINAL+ PREVIOUSLY NEW

SUB TOTAL



B. UNDERRUNS ($351,829.30)

ORIGINAL+ NEW

LINE ITEM DESCRIPTION UNIT UNIT PRICE QUANTITY ITEMCOST QUANTITY ITEMCOST UNDER

0080 132-6006 EMBANKMENT(FINAL)(DENS CONT) CY             8.00      171,729.00   1,373,832.00   170,292.00  1,367,432.00     (6,400.00)
0090 160-6005 FURNISHING & PLACING TOPSOIL CY           40.00              50.00          2,000.00                -                  -     (2,000.00)
0100 164-6035 DRILL SEEDING(PERM)(RURAL)CLAY SY             0.50        67,610.00        23,663.50    62,062.77      21,721.97     (1,941.53)
0110 164-6041 DRILL SEEDING (TEMP) (WARM) SY             0.32        67,610.00        21,635.20    44,799.53      14,335.85     (7,299.35)
0190 260-6055 LIME TRT(NEW BASE)(22") SY             5.00            305.00          1,525.00                -                  -     (1,525.00)
0200 275-6001 CEMENT TON         170.00          1,042.00      177,140.00      1,036.00    176,120.00     (1,020.00)
0150 247-6225 FL BS (RDWY DEL)(TY E GR 4) FL POS CY           20.00        18,640.88      372,817.60    14,734.92    294,698.40    (78,119.20)
0220 310-6009 PRIME COAT (MC-30) GAL             4.00        24,735.00        98,940.00    21,129.13      84,516.52    (14,423.48)
0230 341-6076 D-GR HMA TY B SAC-B PG (64-22) TON           70.00        20,056.00   1,403,920.00    18,783.85  1,314,869.50    (89,050.50)
0240 346-6018 STN MTX ASP SMA D SAC B PG76 TON           90.00        17,182.00   1,546,380.00    16,804.05  1,512,364.50    (34,015.50)
0490 432-6045 RIPRAP (MOW STRIP) (4 IN) CY         640.00              90.00        57,600.00           87.00      55,680.00     (1,920.00)
0560 464-6040 RC PIPE(CL III) (30 IN)(SPL) LF           65.00          2,877.00      187,005.00      2,691.50    174,947.50    (12,057.50)
0670 465-6037 INLET(COMPL)(PCU)(5FT)(NONE) EA      4,500.00              33.00      148,500.00           31.00    139,500.00     (9,000.00)
0800 506-6001 ROCK FILTER DAMS(INSTALL)(TY 1) LF           65.00              76.00          4,940.00           67.00        4,355.00        (585.00)
0850 506-6043 BIODEG EROSN LOGS (REMOVE) LF             0.75            885.00             663.75                -                  -        (663.75)
0890 512-6049 PORT CTB(REMOVE)(SGL SLP)(TY 1) LF             7.00          7,136.00        49,952.00      6,780.00      47,460.00     (2,492.00)
0900 514-6001 PERM CTB (SGL SLOPE)(TYH 1)(42) LF           78.00          3,886.00      303,108.00      3,884.40    302,983.20        (124.80)
0910 514-6004 PERM CTB (SGL SLOPE)(TY 4)(42) LF         155.00            190.00        29,450.00         188.00      29,140.00        (310.00)
0990 531-6004 CURB RAMPS (TY I) EA      1,350.00              16.00        21,600.00           15.00      20,250.00     (1,350.00)
1010 540-6001 MTL W-BEAM GD FEN (TIM POST) LF           18.75          1,545.00        28,968.75      1,485.00      27,843.75     (1,125.00)
1011 540-6001 MTL W-BEAM GD FEN (TIM POST) LF           18.75            637.50        11,953.13         100.00        1,875.00    (10,078.13)
1030 540-6016 DOWNSTREAM ANCHOR ERM SEC EA         850.00                9.00          7,650.00             5.00        4,250.00     (3,400.00)
1051 544-6001 GUARDRAIL EN TRT (INSTALL) EA      2,090.00                7.00        14,630.00                -                  -    (14,630.00)
1060 544-6003 GUARDRAIL END TRT (REMOVE) EA         385.00                2.00             770.00             1.00           385.00        (385.00)
1090 545-6005 CRASH CUS ATTEN (REMOVE) EA         875.00              15.00        13,125.00           13.00      11,375.00     (1,750.00)
1460 658-6026 INSTL DEL ASSM(D-SY)SZ(BRF)CTB EA           19.00            162.00          3,078.00           41.00           779.00     (2,299.00)
2150 164-6035 DRILL SEEDING (PERM)(RURAL)(CLAY) SY             0.35        18,282.00          6,398.70      2,439.00           853.65     (5,545.05)
2160 164-6041 DRILL SEEDING (TEMP) (WARM) SY             0.32        18,282.00          5,850.24      8,724.00        2,791.68     (3,058.56)
2200 260-6011 LIME TRT (EXST MATL) (12") SY             3.00        20,466.00        61,398.00    20,333.89      61,001.67        (396.33)
2230 310-6009 PRIME COAT (MC-30) GAL             4.00          3,383.00        13,532.00      3,347.93      13,391.72        (140.28)
2240 341-6076 D-GR HMA TY B SAC-B PG64-22 TON           70.00          1,849.00      129,430.00      1,512.78    105,894.60    (23,535.40)
2250 346-6014 STONE-MTRX-ASPH SMA-D SAC-A PG76-22 TON           95.00            354.00        33,630.00         306.85      29,150.75     (4,479.25)
2400 506-6041 BIODEG EROSN CONT LOGS (INTL) (12") LF             6.50            300.00          1,950.00                -                  -     (1,950.00)
2410 506-6043 BIODEG EROSN CONT LOGS (REMOVE) LF             0.75            300.00             225.00                -                  -        (225.00)
2420 530-6005 DRIVEWAYS (ACP) SY           21.00            133.00          2,793.00         131.11        2,753.31          (39.69)
2710 1008-6001 PRSSR IRRIG PVC PIPE (18") EA           44.00            159.00          6,996.00           95.00        4,180.00     (2,816.00)
3060 9608-6008 RIDE QUALITY PENALTY DOL     (9,209.00)                   -                    -             1.00      (9,209.00)     (9,209.00)
0810 506-6011 ROCK FILTER DAMS (REMOVE) LF           30.00              76.00          2,280.00           67.00        2,010.00        (270.00)
2690 1007-7001 IRRIGATION VALVE (12") EA      2,200.00                4.00          8,800.00             3.00        6,600.00 (2,200.00)

SUB TOTAL   6,178,129.87  5,826,300.57  (351,829.30)









































































HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY BOARD 

RESOLUTION No. 201

APPROVAL OF CHANGE ORDER NUMBER 9 
TO THE CONSTRUCTION AGREEMENT

WITH FOREMOST PAVING, INC., RECONCILIATION OF 
QUANTITIES FOR THE US281/MILITARY HIGHWAY
OVERPASS/BSIF CONNECTOR PROJECT

THIS RESOLUTION is adopted this 2 day of , 201 by the Board
of Directors of the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority.

WHEREAS, the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority (the “Authority”),
acting through its Board of Directors (the “Board”), is a regional mobility authority 
created pursuant to Chapter 370, Texas Transportation Code, as amended (the “Act”); and 

WHEREAS, on November 17, 2005, the Texas Transportation Commission 
(the “Commission”) created the Authority pursuant to (i) the Act; (ii) Title 43, Texas 
Administrative Code; (iii) a petition of the Hidalgo County Commissioners Court (the 
“County”); and (iv) findings by the Commission that the creation of the Authority would 
result in certain direct benefits to the State of Texas (the “State”), local governments, 
and the traveling public and would improve the State’s transportation system; and 

WHEREAS, the Act allows the Authority to construct transportation projects
within the County; and 

WHEREAS, on August 2, 2015, August 9, 2015 and August 16, 2015, the 
Authority published a solicitation for Contract No. 0220-01-023 for the US 281/BSIF 
Connector Project, an  independent  segment  of  the  State  Highway 365  Project  (the 
“Project”); and 

WHEREAS, on September 30, 2015, the Authority opened and read into the record 
four (4) formal sealed bids for the Project from: (i) Foremost Paving, Inc., (ii) Anderson 
Columbia Company, Inc., (iii) Texas SAI, and (iv) JD Abrams L.P., ranging in amounts 
from $19,425,546.44 to $22,793,714.80 for construction of the Project; and 

WHEREAS, Foremost Paving, Inc. provided the lowest Project bid in the amount 
of $19,425,546.44; and

WHEREAS, on November 30, 2015, the Authority received written concurrence 
from the Texas Department of Transportation that Foremost Paving, Inc., is the lowest, 
responsive and responsible bidder for the Project (the “Concurrence Letter”); and 

WHEREAS, on December 15, 2015, the Authority approved the contract by and 
between Foremost Paving Inc. and the Authority for construction of the US281 Military 
Highway Overpass/BSIF Connector Project in the amount $19,425,546.44 in substantially 
final form; and



WHEREAS, on April 26, 2016 the Authority approved Resolution 2016-72
Change Order Number One (1) to the contract by and between Foremost Paving Inc.
and the Authority for construction of the US 281/Military Highway Overpass/BSIF 
Connector Project in the amount of $6,623.32 for a new contract amount of
$19,432,169.76 and addition of three (3) calendar days for total of 538 days; and 

WHEREAS, on July 26, 2016 the Authority approved Resolution 2016-89
Change Order Number Two (2) to the contract by and between Foremost Paving Inc. 
and the Authority for construction of the US 281/Military Highway Overpass/BSIF 
Connector Project in the amount of -$279,383.60 for a new contract amount of 
$19,152,786.16 and a calendar day total of 538 days; and 

WHEREAS, on September 27, 2016 the Authority approved Resolution 2016-107 
Change Order Number 3 to the Construction Contract with Foremost Paving, Inc. to adjust 
plan quantities in the amount of $39,231.00 for the US 281/Military Highway Overpass/BSIF 
Connector Project for a new contract amount of $19,192,017.16; and 

WHEREAS, on March 27, 2017 the Authority approved Resolution 2017-29 Change 
Order Number 4 to the Construction Contract with Foremost Paving, Inc. to adjust plan 
quantities in the amount of ($42,564.95) for the US 281/Military Highway Overpass/BSIF 
Connector Project for a new contract amount of $19,149,022.09; and 

WHEREAS, on June 27, 2017 the Authority approved Resolution 2017-60 Change 
Order Number 5 to the Construction Contract with Foremost Paving, Inc. to adjust plan 
quantities in the amount of $22,341.85 for the US 281/Military Highway Overpass/BSIF 
Connector Project for a new contract amount of $19,171,794.21; and 

WHEREAS, o n  J u n e  2 7 ,  2 0 1 7  t h e  A u t h o r i t y  a p p r o v e d  R e s o l u t i o n  
2 0 1 7 - 6 1  C h a nge Order Number 6 to the Construction Contract with Foremost Paving, 
Inc., in the amount of $48,774.00 for 3rd party change order for the US 281/Military Highway 
Overpass/BSIF Connector Project for a new contract amount of $19,220,568.06; and 

WHEREAS, o n  A u g u s t  2 9 ,  2 0 1 7  t h e  A u t h o r i t y  a p p r o v e d  
R e s o l u t i o n  2017-68 to the Construction Contract with Foremost Paving, Inc., to reflect
the correct contract amount as $19,220,137.94 due to a scrivener error on Resolution 2016-89,
($279,383.60) should be ($279,813.91); Resolution 2016-107 should be $39,231.18; 
Resolution 2017-29 should be ($42,564.94) brining the correct contact amount to 
$19,220,137.94; and 

WHEREAS, on August 29, 2017 the Authority approved Resolution 2017-68 Change 
Order 7 to the Construction Contract with Foremost Paving, Inc., in the amount of $80,894.98 
and adding 5 days to reconcile and adjust plan quantities, for a new contract amount of 
$19,301,032.92; 

WHEREAS, on October 31, 2017 the Authority approved Resolution 2017-82 Change 
Order 8 to the Construction Contract with Foremost Paving, Inc., in the amount of $41,680.75 
to reconcile and adjust plan quantities, for a new contract amount of $19,342,713.67; 



WHEREAS, the authority finds it necessary to approve Resolution 201 Change
Order 9 to the Construction Contract with Foremost Paving, Inc., in the
amount of $ to reconcile project quantities, for a new contract amount of
$ .

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF
DIRECTORS OF THE HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY
AUTHORITY THAT: 

Section 1. The recital clauses are incorporated in the text of this Resolution as if fully
restated. 

Section 2. The Board hereby approves Resolution 201 to the contract by and between
Foremost Paving Inc. and the Authority for construction of the US 281/Military Highway
Overpass/BSIF Connector Project for Change Order 9 in the amount of $ and a
new contract amount of $

Section 3. The Board hereby authorizes the Executive Director to execute Change Order 
to the construction contract with Foremost Paving Inc. as approved.



PASSED AND APPROVED AS TO BE EFFECTIVE IMMEDIATELY BY THE
BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY
AUTHORITY AT A REGULAR MEETING on the 2 day of , at
which meeting a quorum was present.

S. David Deanda, Jr., Chairman 

Ricardo Perez, Secretary/Treasurer 



LINE ITEM UNIT ITEMCOST ITEMCOST OVERRUN/

0080 132-6006 CY       1,373,832.00   1,367,432.00         (6,400.00)
0090 160-6005 CY              2,000.00                      -           (2,000.00)
0100 164-6035 SY            23,663.50         21,721.97         (1,941.53)
0110 164-6041 SY            21,635.20         14,335.85         (7,299.35)
0150 247-6225 CY          372,817.60      294,698.40       (78,119.20)
0170 260-6011 SY          375,702.00      393,316.89         17,614.89 
0180 260-6043 TON          317,119.00      325,200.01           8,081.01 
0190 260-6055 SY              1,525.00                      -           (1,525.00)
0200 275-6001 TON          177,140.00      176,120.00         (1,020.00)
0210 275-6031 SY          219,634.00      221,937.98           2,303.98 
0220 310-6009 GAL            98,940.00         84,516.52       (14,423.48)
0230 341-6076 TON       1,403,920.00   1,314,869.50       (89,050.50)
0250 346-6018 TON       1,546,380.00   1,512,364.50       (34,015.50)
0270 354-6041 SY              7,905.00           9,900.00           1,995.00 
0470 432-6002 CY            57,040.00         62,560.00           5,520.00 
0490 432-6045 CY            57,600.00         55,680.00         (1,920.00)
0560 464-6040 LF          187,005.00      174,947.50       (12,057.50)
0670 465-6037 EA          148,500.00      139,500.00         (9,000.00)
0790 502-6001 MO            50,000.00         52,500.00           2,500.00 
0800 506-6001 LF              4,940.00           4,355.00            (585.00)
0840 506-6041 LF              7,975.50         13,663.00           5,687.50 
0850 506-6043 LF                 663.75                      -              (663.75)
0890 512-6049 LF            49,952.00         47,460.00         (2,492.00)
0900 514-6001 LF          303,108.00      302,983.20            (124.80)
0910 514-6004 LF            29,450.00         29,140.00            (310.00)
0930 529-6003 LF            31,335.00         31,489.50              154.50 
0980 530-6005 SY            20,015.31         33,648.30         13,632.99 
0990 531-6004 EA            21,600.00         20,250.00         (1,350.00)
1010 540-6001 LF            28,968.75         27,843.75         (1,125.00)
1011 540-6001 LF            11,953.13           1,875.00       (10,078.13)
1030 540-6016 EA              7,650.00           4,250.00         (3,400.00)
1040 542-6001 LF                 534.00              734.00              200.00 
1051 544-6001 EA            14,630.00                      -         (14,630.00)
1060 544-6003 EA                 770.00              385.00            (385.00)
1090 545-6005 EA            13,125.00         11,375.00         (1,750.00)
1210 620-6007 LF              9,253.30           9,561.30              308.00 
1220 620-6008 LF            16,441.50         17,101.50              660.00 
1320 636-6003 SF            20,350.00         27,472.50           7,122.50 
1330 644-6027 EA            24,240.00         26,260.00           2,020.00 
1390 644-6076 EA              1,650.00           1,750.00              100.00 
1450 658-6013 EA                 152.00              342.00              190.00 
1460 658-6026 EA              3,078.00              779.00         (2,299.00)
1490 658-6061 EA                 665.00              980.00              315.00 
1541 662-6095 LF              6,839.25           8,096.25           1,257.00 
1580 666-6036 LF              6,004.90           7,329.30           1,324.40 
1590 666-6048 LF              1,158.30           2,973.30           1,815.00 
1610 666-6226 LF              1,170.50           1,203.00                32.50 
1640 666-6303 LF            14,470.56         15,392.16              921.60 
1660 666-6315 LF            15,435.84         16,776.00           1,340.16 
1720 672-6007 EA                 588.00           1,100.00              512.00 
1740 672-6009 EA              2,780.00           3,364.00              584.00 
1750 672-6010 EA              1,512.00           2,028.00              516.00 
1761 677-6001 LF              6,997.80           7,829.10              831.30 
1791 677-6008 EA                 144.00              156.00                12.00 
1910 684-6012 LF              6,423.90           8,171.90           1,748.00 
2100 50016001 SY          128,377.95      129,433.25           1,055.30 
2850 344-6104 TON       1,135,862.40   1,154,153.59         18,291.19 
2150 164-6035 SY              6,398.70              853.65         (5,545.05)
2160 164-6041 SY              5,850.24           2,791.68         (3,058.56)
2200 260-6011 SY            61,398.00         61,001.67            (396.33)
2230 310-6009 GAL            13,532.00         13,391.72            (140.28)
2240 341-6076 TON          129,430.00      105,894.60       (23,535.40)
2250 346-6014 TON            33,630.00         29,150.75         (4,479.25)
2350 467-6363 EA            10,000.00         12,000.00           2,000.00 
2400 506-6041 LF              1,950.00                      -           (1,950.00)
2410 506-6043 LF                 225.00                      -              (225.00)
2420 530-6005 SY              2,793.00           2,753.31              (39.69)
2630 672-6006 EA                 148.00              152.00                  4.00 
2710 10086001 EA              6,996.00           4,180.00         (2,816.00)
711 467-6363 EA                         -             4,000.00           4,000.00 
591 96086007 DOL                         -           20,314.20         20,314.20 
2431 610-6214 EA           5,790.00           5,790.00 
3060 96086008 DOL                         -           (9,209.00)         (9,209.00)
0920 528-6004 SY          130,650.00      133,406.50           2,756.50 
0810 506-6011 LF              2,280.00           2,010.00            (270.00)ROCK FILTER DAMS (REMOVE)           30.00              76.00              67.00 

INLET & PIPE RE-ALIGN ADJUSTMENTS    20,314.20                    -                  1.00 

RIDE QUALITY PENALTY    (9,209.00)                    -                  1.00 
LANDSCAPE PAVERS           50.00         2,613.00        2,668.13 

IN RD IL (TY SA)40T-8(250W EQ) LED      2,895.00                2.00 

DRIVEWAYS (ACP)           21.00            133.00           131.11 

PRSSR IRRIG PVC PIPE (18")           44.00            159.00              95.00 
SET (TY II) (18 IN) (RCP) (6: 1) (P)      1,000.00                    -                  4.00 

REFL PAV MRKR TY I-A             4.00              37.00           38.00 

SET (TY II) (18 IN) (RCP) (6: 1) (P)      1,000.00              10.00              12.00 
BIODEG EROSN CONT LOGS (INTL) (12")             6.50            300.00                   -   
BIODEG EROSN CONT LOGS (REMOVE)             0.75            300.00                   -   

PRIME COAT (MC-30)             4.00         3,383.00        3,347.93 
D-GR HMA TY B SAC-B PG64-22           70.00         1,849.00        1,512.78 
STONE-MTRX-ASPH SMA-D SAC-A PG76-22           95.00            354.00           306.85 

DRILL SEEDING (PERM)(RURAL)(CLAY)             0.35       18,282.00        2,439.00 
DRILL SEEDING (TEMP) (WARM)             0.32       18,282.00        8,724.00 
LIME TRT (EXST MATL) (12")             3.00       20,466.00      20,333.89 

TRF SIG CBL(TY A)(12 AWG)(7 CONDR)             1.90         3,381.00        4,301.00 
GEOGRID BASE REINFORCEMENT(TY I)             1.15     111,633.00    112,550.65 
SUPERPAVE MIXTURES SP-D SAC-B PG64-22           79.32       14,320.00      14,550.60 

REFL PAV MRKR TY II-C-R             4.00            378.00           507.00 
ELIM EXT PAV MRK & MRKS (4")             0.30       23,326.00      26,097.00 
ELIM EXT PAV MRK & MRKS (ARROW)           12.00              12.00              13.00 

           695.00           841.00 

             19.00 
        9,119.00 
        5,459.00 
           351.00 
        2,341.00 
      30,147.00 
      32,158.00 
           147.00 

             28.00 
     10,795.00 
       6,663.00 
          901.00 
       2,406.00 
     32,067.00 
     34,950.00 
          275.00 

REFL PAV MRKER TY II-A-A             4.00 

REFL PAV MRK TY I (W)24"(SLD)100
PAVEMENT SEALER 8"
RE PM W/RET REQ TY I(W)4"(SLD)
RE PM W/RET REQ TY I(Y)4"(SLD)
REFL PAV MRKR TYI-C

          35.00 
            0.75 
            1.10 
            3.30 
            0.50 
            0.48 
            0.48 
            4.00 

INSTL DEL ASSM(D-SW)SZ 1 (BRF)GF
WK ZN PAV MRK REMOV(Y)4"(SLD)
REFL PAV MRK TY I (W)8"(SLD)100ML

REMOV SM RD SN SUP&AM           50.00              33.00              35.00 
INSTL DEL ASSM(D-SW)SZ(BRF)CTB           19.00                8.00              18.00 
INSTL DEL ASSM(D-SY)SZ(BRF)CTB           19.00            162.00              41.00 

ELEC CONDR (NO.8) INSULATED             1.50       10,961.00      11,401.00 
ALUMINUM SIGNS (TY O)           22.00            925.00        1,248.75 
IN SM RD SN SUP&AM TYS80(1)SAP         505.00              48.00              52.00 

CRASH CUS ATTEN (REMOVE)         875.00              15.00              13.00 
ELEC CONDR (NO.8) BARE             1.40         6,609.50        6,829.50 

REMOV METAL BEAM GRD FENCE             2.00            267.00           367.00 
GUARDRAIL EN TRT (INSTALL)      2,090.00                7.00                   -   
GUARDRAIL END TRT (REMOVE)         385.00                2.00                1.00 

MTL W-BEAM GD FEN (TIM POST)           18.75         1,545.00        1,485.00 
MTL W-BEAM GD FEN (TIM POST)           18.75            637.50           100.00 
DOWNSTREAM ANCHOR ERM SEC         850.00                9.00                5.00 

CONC CURB (TY II A)           15.00         2,089.00        2,099.30 
DRIVEWAYS (ACP)           21.00            953.11        1,602.30 
CURB RAMPS (TY I)      1,350.00              16.00              15.00 

PORT CTB(REMOVE)(SGL SLP)(TY 1)             7.00         7,136.00        6,780.00 
PERM CTB (SGL SLOPE)(TYH 1)(42)           78.00         3,886.00        3,884.40 
PERM CTB (SGL SLOPE)(TY 4)(42)         155.00            190.00           188.00 

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT CHANGE ORDER NUMBER 9

ORIGINAL+ PREVIOUSLY NEW

DESCRIPTION UNIT QUANTITY QUANTITY

EMBANKMENT(FINAL)(DENS CONT)             8.00     171,729.00    170,929.00 

CCSJ:     0220-01-023,ETC.

FURNISHING & PLACING TOPSOIL           40.00              50.00                   -   
DRILL SEEDING(PERM)(RURAL)CLAY             0.50       67,610.00      62,062.77 
DRILL SEEDING (TEMP) (WARM)             0.32       67,610.00      44,799.53 
FL BS (RDWY DEL)(TY E GR 4) FL POS           20.00       18,640.88      14,734.92 
LIME TRT (EXST MATL)(12")             3.00     125,234.00    131,105.63 
LIME (HYD, COM OR QK)(SLURRY)         127.00         2,497.00        2,560.63 

                  -   
CEMENT         170.00         1,042.00        1,036.00 
CEMENT TREAT (NEW BASE)(10")             2.00     109,817.00    110,968.99 

LIME TRT(NEW BASE)(22")             5.00            305.00 

BARRICADES, SIGNS & TRF HANDLE      2,500.00              20.00              21.00 

PLANE ASPH CONC PAV (1.5")             5.00         1,581.00        1,980.00 
RIPRAP (CONC)(5 IN)         460.00            124.00           136.00 
RIPRAP (MOW STRIP) (4 IN)         640.00              90.00              87.00 

INLET(COMPL)(PCU)(5FT)(NONE)      4,500.00              33.00              31.00 
RC PIPE(CL III) (30 IN)(SPL)           65.00         2,877.00        2,691.50 

PRIME COAT (MC-30)             4.00       24,735.00      21,129.13 
D-GR HMA TY B SAC-B PG (64-22)           70.00       20,056.00      18,783.85 
STN MTX ASP SMA D SAC B PG76           90.00       17,182.00      16,804.05 

BIODEG EROSN LOGS (REMOVE)             0.75            885.00                   -   

ROCK FILTER DAMS(INSTALL)(TY 1)           65.00              76.00              67.00 
BIODEG EROSN CONT LOGS(INSTL)             6.50         1,227.00        2,102.00 



1770 677-6003 LF                 300.00              327.00                27.00 
0650 465-6009 EA            28,500.00         39,900.00         11,400.00 
1820 680-6004 EA              4,800.00           7,200.00           2,400.00 
1531 662-6063 LF              5,297.25           7,695.00           2,397.75 
0310 400-6006 SY            23,125.00         27,500.00           4,375.00 
2050 10087003 LF            27,690.00         31,098.00           3,408.00 
2080 464-6028 LF            20,720.00         22,200.00           1,480.00 
2690 10077001 EA              8,800.00           6,600.00 (2,200.00)        
3070 10077001 EA           2,200.00 2,200.00         
3080 96086009 DOL         32,035.93 32,035.93       
3090 96086010 DOL         16,972.05 16,972.05       

      8,917,137.13   8,775,514.08     (141,623.05)

               3.00 
               1.00 
               1.00 
               1.00 CRCP REPAIR PARTICIPATION

LARGE OH SIGNS REMOVAL,STORAGE
IRRIGATION VALVE (12")

PRESS IRRIG PVC (30 IN)         213.00            130.00           146.00 

TOTALS

RC PIPE (CL V)(42 IN)         185.00            112.00           120.00 
     2,200.00 
     2,200.00 
   32,035.93 
   16,972.05 

               4.00 IRRIGATION VALVE (12")

REMOVING TRAFFIC SIGNALS      2,400.00                2.00                3.00 
WK ZN PAV MRK REMOV W 4 IN SLD             0.75         7,063.00      10,260.00 
CUT & RESTORING PAV         125.00            185.00           220.00 

ELIM EXT PAV MRK & MRKS (8")             0.60            500.00           545.00 
JCTBOX(COMPL)(PJB)(5FTX5FT)      5,700.00                5.00                7.00 



EXHIBIT A

CONSTUCTION CONTRACT

BETWEEN

FOREMOST PAVING INC. 

AND

HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY

FOR 

CONSTRUCTION OF

US 281/MILITARY HIGHWAY OVERPASS/BSIF CONNECTOR PROJECT 
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Item 3B 



 
 
 
 

HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 
         

AGENDA RECOMMENDATION FORM 
 

 
               BOARD OF DIRECTORS        X                     AGENDA ITEM                     3B                   

PLANNING COMMITTEE           DATE SUBMITTED           03/19/18                   
FINANCE COMMITTEE     MEETING DATE        03/27/18  
TECHNICAL COMMITTEE    
 
 
1. Agenda Item:  RESOLUTION 2018-09 – APPROVAL OF FISCAL YEAR 2017 FINANCIAL 

STATEMENT AND INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT FOR THE HIDALGO COUNTY 
REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY.          

 
2. Nature of Request:  (Brief Overview)  Attachments:     X  Yes          No 
 
 Consideration and approval of Financial Statement and Independent Auditors Report prepared  

by Burton McCumber & Longoria, LLP for Fiscal Year 2017.  The report is required by Texas  
Administrative Code Title 43, Part I, Chapter 26, Subchapter G §26.65(a) Annual Reports to the  
Commission.             

 
3. Policy Implication:  Board Policy, Local Government Code, Texas Government Code, Texas  

Transportation Code, TxDOT Policy                         
 
4. Budgeted:          Yes           No       X   N/A 
 
 
5. Staff Recommendation: Motion to approve Resolution 2018-09 – Approval of Fiscal Year  

2017 Financial Statement and Independent Auditors Report as presented.    
 
6. Program Manager’s Recommendation:       Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
7. Planning Committee’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
8. Board Attorney’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
9. Chief Auditor’s Recommendation:   X   Approved          Disapproved       _   None 
 
10. Chief Financial Officer’s Recommendation:   X   Approved          Disapproved       _   None 
 
11. Development Engineer’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X    None 
 
12. Construction Engineer’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X    None 
 
13. Executive Director’s Recommendation:   X   Approved          Disapproved           None 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

 

Memorandum 
To: S. David Deanda, Jr., Chairman 

From: Pilar Rodriguez, PE, Executive Director 

Date: March 19, 2018 

Re: Approval of Fiscal Year 2017 Financial Statement and Independent Auditors 
Report 

Background 
Texas Administrative Code Title 43, Part I, Chapter 26, Subchapter G §26.65(a) requires annual reports 
to the Texas Transportation Commission, which includes audited financial statements of the Authority’s 
books and records. 
 
 
Goal 
In order to comply with the Texas Administrative Code Requirement, the Board of Director must review 
and accept the Independent Auditor’s Report. 
 
A copy of the Financial Statement and Independent Auditor’s Report prepared by Burton McCumber & 
Longoria is attached for your review and consideration.   
 
 
Options 
The Board of Directors could opt to not accept the Independent Auditor’s Report. 
 
 
Recommendation 
Based on review by this office, approval of Resolution 2018-09 – Approval of the Fiscal Year 2017 
Financial Statement and Independent Auditor’s Report is recommended. 
 
 
 
 
If you should have any questions or require additional information, please advise.  

 
 
 
 
 
 



HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 
BOARD RESOLUTION NO. 2018-09 

 
 

APPROVAL OF FISCAL YEAR 2017 FINANCIAL STATEMENT AND INDEPENDENT 
AUDITORS REPORT 

 
 

THIS RESOLUTION is adopted this 27th day of March, 2018, by the Board of Director of the 
Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority. 
  

WHEREAS, the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority (the “Authority”), acting 
through its Board of Directors (the “Board”); is a regional mobility authority created pursuant to 
Chapter 370, Texas Transportation Code, as amended (the “Act”); and 

 
WHEREAS, the Authority was created by Order of Hidalgo County (the “County”) dated 

October 26, 2004; Petition of the County dated April 21, 2005; and a Minute Order of the Texas 
Transportation Commission (the “Commission”) dated November 17, 2005, pursuant to 
provisions under the Act the Authority; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Authority is required to report to the Texas Department of 

Transportation the annual financial statement and independent auditors report pursuant to the 
Texas Administrative Code, Title 43, Part 1, Chapter 26, Subchapter G (Regional Mobility 
Authority Reports and Audits), as amended; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Authority’s 2017 fiscal year commenced on January 1, 2017 and ended 

on December 31, 2017; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Board accepts the Fiscal Year 2017 Financial Statement and 

Independent Auditors Report prepared by Burton McCumber & Longoria, LLP; 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTOR OF THE 
HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY THAT: 

 
Section 1. The recital clauses are incorporated in the text of this Resolution as if fully 

restated. 
 
Section 2. The Board accepts the Fiscal Year 2017 Financial Statement and Independent 

Auditors Report, hereto attached as Exhibit A. 
 

 
***** 

 
 

 



Passed and Approved as to be effective immediately this 27th day of March, 2018, at a regular 
meeting of the Board of Directors of the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority at which a 
quorum was present and which was held in accordance with the provisions of Chapter 551, 
Texas Government Code. 

 
 
 

 
 

 
       
S. David Deanda, Jr., Chairman 

 
 

 
Attest: 

 
 
 
             

Ricardo Perez, Secretary/Treasurer 
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FINANCIAL SECTION 



The Right Choice. 

I Burton 
\ Mccumber 
& Longoria, ttP 

I CPlls a lldvi:;nrs 
McAllen Brownsville 

Independent Auditors' Report 

To the Board of Directors 
Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority 

Report on the Financial Statements 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority, as of and 
for the year ended December 31, 2017, and the related notes to the financial statements, as listed in the table of 
contents. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, 
and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are 
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit 
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable 
to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United 
States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of 
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the 
auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements 
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also 
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting 
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinions. 

Opinions 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial 
position of Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority, as of December 31, 2017, and the changes in financial 
position and cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted 
in the United States of America. 

BM L y Fragoso, S.C. 
Matamoros, MX 

205 Pecan Boulevard, McAllen, TX 78501 

956-618-2300 • www.bmltexas.com 



Other Matters 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Management's Discussion and 
Analysis on pages 7 through 10 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not 
a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to 
be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, 
or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance 
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management 
about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management's 
responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic 
financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited 
procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

Other Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise Hidalgo 
County Regional Mobility Authority's basic financial statements. The Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State 
Awards, as required by the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform 
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance) and State 
of Texas Uniform Grant Management Standards Chapter IV State of Texas Single Audit Circular, are presented for 
purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. 

The Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State Awards is the responsibility of management and was derived from and 
relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the bm;ic financ~al st~tements. Such 
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain 
additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and 
other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other 
additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our 
opinion, the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State Awards are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to 
the basic financial statements as a whole. 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated March 21, 2018 on our 
consideration of Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests 
of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements, and other matters. The 
purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and 
the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That 
report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering Hidalgo 
County Regional Mobility Authority's internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 

McAllen, Texas 
March 21, 2018 
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (MD&A) 

As management of the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority (the Authority), we offer readers 
of the Authority's financial statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the 
Authority for the year ended December 31, 2017. 

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 

• The Authority's net position grew by nearly $4.9 million or 11 %. This growth was expected and 
was due to the continued growth of overweight permit fees and conservative administrative 
operational costs. 

• Capital assets grew by more than $28.3 million or 29.4%. The majority of this increase was an 
increase in construction in progress. 

• Capital grants received from the federal and state were $12.4 million and $SOK in local funding. 

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

The financial section of this annual report consists of three parts: management's discussion and analysis 
(this section), the basic financial statements, and the notes to the financial statements. 

The financial statements provide both long-term and short-term information about the Authority's overall 
financial status. The financial statements al.m iiicli.1de not~s that explain some uf the information in i.he 
financial statements and provide more detailed data. 

The Authority's financial statements are prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) as applied to governmental units on an accrual basis. 
Under this basis, revenues are recognized in the period in which they are earned, expenses are recognized 
in the period in which they are incurred, and depreciation of assets is recognized in the statements of 
revenues, expenses, and changes in net assets. All assets and liabilities associated with the operation of the 
Authority are included in the statement of net position. 

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE AUTHORITY 

Net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of the Authority's financial position. In the case of 
the Authority, assets exceeded liabilities by roughly $46.1 million at the close of the year ended December 
31,2017. 
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (MD&A) 

The Authority's condensed Statement of Net Position along with last year's balances are presented for 
comparison in the following table: 

Authority's Net Position 
Table 1 - Dollars in Millions 

2017 2016 
Assets 
Current and other assets $ 7.4 $ 27.3 
Capital assets 124.7 96.3 

Total assets 132.1 123.6 

Liabilities 
Long-tenn liabilities 78.5 79.l 
Other liabilities 7.4 3.4 

85.9 82.5 
Net Position 
Net invested in capital assets, 

net ofrelated debt 39.5 32.5 
Restricted 2.2 1.1 
Unrestricted 4.4 7.6 

Total net position $ 46.l $ 41.2 

By far the largest portion of the Authority's net position ($46.1 million) is reflected in net invested in capital 
assets, mainly in construction in progress, less any related debt used to acquire those assets that is still 
outstanding. The Authority will use these capital assets to provide services to users; consequently, these 
assets are not available for future spending. Although the Authority's investments in its capital assets are 
reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided 
from other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities. 

Net position for debt service totaling $2,183,711 represents resources that are subject to bond covenants. 
Unrestricted net position represents resources that can be used to finance day-to-day operations without 
constraints total $4,391,222. 
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (MD&A) 

The Authority's condensed Changes in Net Position along with last year's numbers are presented for 
comparison in the table below. 

Authority's Change in Net Position 
Table 2 - Dollars in Millions 

2017 2016 

Revenues 

Program Revenues 

Charges for services $ 6.3 $ 6.3 

Capital grants, contributions and other 12.6 4.8 
18.9 11.1 

Expenses 
Other 14.0 5.9 

Excess ofrevenues over expenses 4.9 5.2 

Net position - beginning 41.2 36.0 

Net position - ending $ 46.1 $ 41.2 

Authority's net position increased by nearly $4.9 million, mainly due to zn increase in overweight fees and 
capital grants and contributions. 

CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION 
Capital Assets 

The Authority's investment in capital assets (net ofaccumulated depreciation) amounts to $124.7 million. 
This investment in capital assets includes construction in progress as well as land and office equipment. 
The total increase in the Authority's investments in capital assets for the current year was $28.3 million or 
29.4%. The details of the change in capital assets from last year are reflected in the table below. 

Authority's Capital Assets 

(Net of DeEreciation) 
Table 3- Dollars in thousands 

2017 2016 

Office equipment $ 9 $ 

Land 441 

Construction in progress 124,281 96,362 

$ 124,731 $ 96,362 

Additional information on the Authority's capital assets can be found in the Notes to the Financial 
Statements in this report under section II, subsection C-Capital Assets. 
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (MD&A) 

Long-Term Obligations 

At the end of the current year, the Authority had a total of contractually obligated long-term debt of $77.8 
million (not including unamortized premium activity). The details of the change in debt from last year are 
as indicated: 

Table 4 - Dollars in thousands 

(not including unamortized activity) 

Bonds 

2017 

$ 77,839 

$ 77,839 

2016 

$ 78,275 

$ 78,275 

The net decreased in long-term debt was $436K, which is the principal retirement of the current existing 
debt. This year, principal accretion was added in the amount of$704K as stipulated in loan documents. 

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR 

• The continued growth of vehicle registration fees is expected. 
• The continued growth of overweight permit fees usage is expected. 
• Continued partnership with Texas Department of Transportation is expected. 

All of these factors were considered in preparing the Authority's budget for the year 2018. 

REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION 

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the Authority's finances for all those with 
an interest in the Authority's finances. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report 
or requests for additional financial information should be addressed to Hidalgo County Regional Mobility 
Authority, 203 W. Newcombe Ave., Pharr, TX 78577. 
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BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 



HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

DECEMBER 31, 2017 

Current assets: 
Cash 
Cash with fiscal agent 
Investments 
Receivables (net of allowance for uncollectible) 

Vehicle registration fee receivable 
Due from governmental agencies 

Prepaid expense 
Restricted assets: 

Cash trustee 
Investments 

Total current assets 
Noncurrent assets: 

Capital assets (nondepreciable ): 
Land 
Office equipment 
Construction in progress 

Total noncurrent assets 

Total assets 

Current liabilities payable not from restricted assets 
Accounts payable 
Other payable 
Current portion oflong-tenn debt 
Unearned revenue 

Current liabilities payable from restricted assets 
Accrued interest payable 

Total current liabilities payable 

Noncurrent liabilities: 
Long-term debt (net of current portion) 

Total noncurrent liabilities 

Total liabilities 

~ 

LIABILITIES 

NET POSITION 
Net invested in capital assets 
Restricted for: 

Debt service 
Unrestricted 

Total net position 

Total liabilities and net position 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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$ 754,427 
10,450 

2,807,179 

380,930 
1,062,109 

12,383 

2,327 
2,417,204 
7,447,009 

441,105 
8,607 

124,281,133 

124,730,845 

$ ===1=32='=17=7'=85=4= 

$ 562,804 
5,377,193 
1,251,452 

73,450 

233,493 

7,498,392 

78,575,436 

78,575,436 

86,073,828 

39,529,093 

2,183,711 
4,391,222 

46,104,026 

$ ===1=3=2,=l 7=7=,8=54= 



HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER31,2017 

Operating revenues: 

Charges for sales and services: 

Vehicle registration fees 

Overweight permit fees 

Total operating revenues 

Operating expenses: 

Personnel services 

Supplies 

Other services and charges 

Total operating expenses 

Operating income 

Non-operating (expenses) revenues: 

Investment earnings-unrestricted 

Investment earnings-restricted 

Intergovernmental 

Interest expense (principal accretion) 

Non-capitalized construction cost 

Miscellaneous 

Total non-operating (expenses) revenues 

Change in net position 

Total net position - beginning 

Total net position - ending 

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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$ 

$ 

5,926,870 

393,309 

6,320,179 

475,732 

7,820 

446,940 

930,492 

5,389,687 

40,498 

19,979 

12,519,445 

(704,147) 

(12,439,445) 

59,264 

(504,406) 

4,885,281 

41,218,745 

46,104,026 



HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Receipts from vehicle registrations and overweight permit fees 

Payments to suppliers 

Payments to employees 

Payments for contractual services 

Change in accounts payable 

Net cash provided by operating activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Receipts from other governmental entities 

Payments from others 

Net cash provided by noncapital and related financing activities 

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Acquisition and construction of capital assets 

Non-capitalized construction cost 

Principal paid on long-term debt 

Interest paid on long-term debt 

Amortization of premium 

Net cash used by capital a'ld related financing activiti'!s 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
Net sales of investments 

Interest income received 

Net cash provided by investing activities 

Net increase in cash 

Cash beginning of fiscal year 

Cash end of fiscal year 

Reconciliation of operating income to net cash provided by operating activities: 

Operating income 

Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash provided by operating activities: 

Increase in unearned revenue 

Increase in prepaid expense 

Increase in accounts payable 

Total adjustments 

Net cash provided by operating activities 

The notes to the .financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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$ 6,384,099 

(7,820) 

(475,732) 

(457,106) 

12,268 

5,455,709 

13,232,481 

59,264 

13,291,745 

(21,509,551) 

(12,439,445) 

(1,140,000) 

(2,871,353) 

(76,452) 

(38,036)~0 1 ) 

19,843,066 

60,477 

19,903,543 

614,196 

140,231 

$ 754,427 
=========== 

$ 5,389,687 ---------
62,550 

(8,796) 

12,268 

66,022 

$ 5,455,709 
============ 



HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2017 

NOTE I - ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 
POLICIES 

A. Reporting Entity 

The Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority (Authority) is an independent governmental 
agency created in November 2005 pursuant with Chapter 370 of the Transportation Code. The 
Authority is governed by a seven-member Board of Directors (the Board) appointed by the 
Governor of the State of Texas and the Hidalgo County Commissioners' Court. The Board is 
responsible for setting policies, identifying priorities and ensuring the Authority is operated 
effectively. Board members, appointed to serve two-year terms, are volunteers and are not 
compensated for their service. 

The Authority was created to be a proactive partner empowering the community to address 
congestion and mobility concerns through local means with local leadership. It was created to plan, 
develop, fund and maintain a transportation system to serve the estimated 1.5 million residents 
living in Hidalgo County by 2025. The Authority's mission is to develop a publicly owned 
transportation system that creates jobs through increased mobility and access, is locally funded for 
reliable delivery, pays for itself in terms of future maintenance and also funds new projects to meet 
the future transportation needs of Hidalgo County. In its petition to create the Hidalgo County 
R~giunal Mobility Authority, Hidalgo Couuiy identiiied the Hidalgo Loop System tthe Loop 
System) as the initial set of projects to be developed under the guidance of the Authority. The 
planning for the Loop System started in 2000 by Hidalgo County and the Hidalgo County 
Metropolitan Planning Organization. The Authority concluded its additional planning effort for 
the Loop System around the urban part of Hidalgo County in 2010. Based on this effort, the 
Authority identified two independent projects, the Trade Corridor Connector (TCC) and the 
International Bridge Trade Corridor (IBTC), that provide utility to County residents and together 
begin building the Loop System. Additional state aid through the Texas Department of 
Transportation and the addition of a potential third project, the La Joya Relief Route, has required 
the Authority to re-examine the initial projects. A five-year Strategic Plan approved in March 2012 
emphasizes the Authority's efforts to begin development of the Loop System projects, which 
prioritize State Highway 365 (formerly TCC), the International Border Trade Corridor, and State 
Highway 68 (formerly Segment D). 

The Authority is not included in any other governmental "reporting entity" as defined by GASB 
Statement No. 14, "The Reporting Entity." There are no component units included within the 
reporting entity. 

B. Basis of Accounting 

The financial statements of the Authority have been prepared in conformity with accounting 
principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) as applied to government 
units. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting 
body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. 
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HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2017 

NOTE I - ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 
POLICIES - (Continued) 

B. Basis of Accounting - (Continued) 

The operations of the Authority are accounted for within a single proprietary (enterprise) fund on 
an accrual basis. The accounting and financial reporting treatment applied is determined by 
measurement focus. The transactions of the Authority are accounted on a flow of economic 
resources measurement focus. 

The financial statements of the Authority measure and report all assets, liabilities, revenues, 
expenses, and gains and losses using the economic resources measurement focus and accrual basis 
of accounting. 

Under this basis, revenues are recognized in the period in which they are earned, expenses are 
recognized in the period in which they are incurred, depreciation of assets is recognized and all 
assets and liabilities associated with the operation of the Authority are included in the Statement 
of Net Position. Operating expenses include the cost of administrative expenses. All revenues and 
expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-operating revenues and expenses. 

C. Cash, Cash with Fiscal Agent, and Investments 

Cash and cash with fiscal agent inciude cash on hanci, demand deposits, and cash held by a third 
party for prepaid overweight permit fees (ProMiles Software Development Corp.). These deposits 
are fully collateralized or covered by federal deposit insurance. 

Investments in government securities are reported at fair value. The net chijnge in fair value of 
investments is recorded on the statements of revenues, expenses and changes in net assets and 
includes the unrealized and realized gains and losses on investments. The Authority's major 
investments are held by a third party, Wilmington Trust, per bond covenants. The Authority's 
local government investment pools are recorded at amortized cost as permitted by GASB 
Statement No. 79, "Certain Investment Pools and Pool Participants. " 

D. Capital Assets 

Capital assets at year-end represent capitalized costs for legal, consulting and engineering relating 
to advance planning on the Loop projects, which prioritize State Highway 365 (formerly TCC), 
the International Border Trade Corridor, and State Highway 68 (formerly Segment D). It also 
includes office equipment and land. Depreciation and amortization on construction in progress 
will not begin until the project is operational. Depreciation on office equipment will begin once 
the equipment is placed in service. 

E. Restricted Assets 

Proceeds of the Authority's bonds and certain resources set aside for their repayment are classified 
as restricted assets on the Statement ofNet Position because their use is limited by applicable bond 
covenants. These restricted assets are held and disbursed by Wilmington Trust, fiscal agent. 
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HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2017 

NOTE I - ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 
POLICIES - (Continued) 

F. Receivables 

All receivables are shown net of allowance for uncollectible balances. The allowance is based on 
historical activity and there is currently no amount identified as uncollectible. 

G. Classification of Operating and Non-operating Revenues and Expenses 

The Authority defines operating revenues and expenses as those revenues and expenses generated 
by a specified program offering either a good or service. This definition is consistent with GASB 
Statement No. 9 which defines operating receipts as cash receipts from customers and other cash 
receipts that do not result from transactions defined as capital and related financing, non-capital 
financing or investing activities. 

When an expense is incurred that can be paid using either restricted or unrestricted resources, the 
Authority's policy is to first apply the expense toward restricted resources, and then towards 
unrestricted resources available for use. 

H. Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Generally Accepted Accounting 
Principles (GAAP) requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the 
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the 
date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the 
reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

I. Personnel Liabilities 

The Authority does not have any employees nor any personnel liabilities; the employees who 
perform operating activities for the Authority are loaned to the Authority by the City of Pharr, TX. 
All personnel reside with the City of Pharr. Actual costs incurred by the City of Pharr are 
reimbursed by the Authority. 

J. Income Taxes 

The Authority is an instrumentality of the State of Texas. As such, income earned in the exercise 
of its essential government functions is exempt from state or federal income taxes. Bond 
obligations issued by state and local governments are tax-exempt only if the issuers pay rebate to 
the federal government of the earnings on the investment of the proceeds of a tax-exempt issue in 
excess of the yield on such obligations and any income earned on such excess. 
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HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2017 

NOTE I - ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 
POLICIES - (Continued) 

K. Bond Premiums, Discounts, and Issuance Costs 

The Authority amortizes premiums and discounts over the estimated useful life of the bonds as an 
adjustment to capitalized interest using the straight-line method. Bond issuance cost is expensed 
as incurred, in accordance with Governmental Accounting Standards Board ("GASB") Statement 
No. 65, "Items Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities." 

L. Rounding Adjustments 

Throughout this annual financial report, dollar amounts are rounded, thereby creating differences 
between the details and the totals. 

NOTE II - DETAILED NOTES ON THE AUTHORITY'S ACTMTY 

A. Cash and Investments 

Plains Capital Bank maintains the Authority's deposits for safekeeping and secures the funds with 
pledged securities in an amount sufficient to protect the Authority's funds, currently at 103% of 
unsecured deposits. The pledge of securities is provided in excess of the deposits above the Federal 
Deposit Insurance Corporation ("FDIC") insurance. At December 31, 2017, the Authority's 
deposits were entirely covered by federal deposit insurance or were secured by collateral held by 
the Authority's agent in the authority pursuant to the Authority's Depository Agreement with 
Plains Capital Bank. At December 31, 2017, the carrying amount of all of the Authority's deposits 
was $754,427. 

The Authority invests in Local Government Investment Cooperative ("LOGIC"). LOGIC is a 
local government investment pool organized in conformity with the Interlocal Cooperation Act, 
Chapter 791 of the Texas Government Code, and the Public Funds Investment Act, Chapter 2256 
of the Texas Government Code (the "PFIA"). These two acts provide for the creation of public 
funds investment pools (including LOGIC) and authorize eligible government entities to invest 
their public funds under their control through the investment pools. As permitted by GASB 
Statement No. 79, "Certain External Investment Pools and Pool Participants", the Authority's 
investments in LOGIC are stated at cost, which approximates fair value. 

The Authority has investments that are unrestricted and restricted. The unrestricted investments 
are the funds not legally restricted for a specific purpose and are invested in LOGIC Investment 
Pools and government securities, which are held by Wilmington Trust. The Authority's restricted 
investments are from funds received from the issuance of debt and restricted by bond covenants 
for a specific purpose. Wilmington Trust is the fiscal agent for the Authority who is authorized to 
invest the restricted funds; they are currently investing in LOGIC Investment Pool and government 
securities. 
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HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2017 

NOTE II - DETAILED NOTES ON AUTHORITY'S ACTIVITY - (Continued) 

A. Cash and Investments - (Continued) 

The Authority categorizes its fair value measurements with the fair value hierarchy established by 
generally accepted accounting principles. The three levels of fair value hierarchy are as follows: 

• Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. 

• Level 2: Inputs (other than quoted prices included within Level 1) that are observable for 
the asset or liability either directly or indirectly. 

• Level 3: Unobservable inputs - market data are not available and are developed using the 
best information available about the assumptions that market participants would use when 
pricing an asset or liability. 

The Authority has the following fair value measurements as of December 31, 2017: 

Government Securities-Unrestricted 

Government Securities-Restricted 

Interest Rate Risk 

Fair Value 

$1,474,330 

336,351 

Fair Value Measurement Using 

Level 1 Inputs Level 2 Inputs Level 3 Inputs 

$ 1,474,330 $ $ 

336,351 

$ 1,810,681 $ 1,810,681 $ $ 
=-==-==-

Interest rate risk is the risk that the changes in interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of 
an investment. Interest rate risk may be mitigated by investing operating funds primarily in shorter 
term securities, money market funds or similar investment pools and limiting the average maturity 
of the portfolio. At year end, the Authority was not exposed to interest rate risk. All investments 
held by the Authority are short term in nature as follows: 

Investment Maturities (in Years) at the end of December 31, 2017 
Fair Value Less Than 1 1-2 2-3 3-4 

LOGIC $ 1,332,849 $ 1,332,849 $ $ $ 
Government Securities-Unrestricted 1,474,330 1,474,330 
LOGIC-Restricted 2,080,853 2,080,853 
Government Securities-Restricted 336,351 336,351 

$ 5,224,383 $ 5,224,383 $ $ $ 
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HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2017 

NOTE Il - DETAILED NOTES ON AUTHORITY'S ACTMTY - (Continued) 

A. Cash and Investments - ( Continued) 

Credit Risk 

Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counter party to an investment will not fulfill its 
obligation. As of December 31, 2017, the investments in the State's investment pools were rated 
AAAm by Standards and Poor' s. 

Custodial Credit Risk 
Deposits and investments are exposed to custodial credit risk if they are not covered by depository 
insurance and the deposits and investments are uncollateralized, collateralized with securities held 
by the pledging financial institution, or collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial 
institution's trust department or agent but not in the Authority's name. 

The Authority has a process of maintaining contact with the trust department of its depository bank 
to eliminate all custodial credit risk once a need for an increase in collateral is identified the trust 
department adjusts the collateral amount accordingly. As ofDecember 31, 2017, the Authority's 
bank balance was not exposed to custodial credit risk and was over-insured and over-collateralized 
via Plains Capital's investment in federal securities held by a third party in the name of the 
Authority to cover the amount of deposits over the FDIC collateral. 

Concentration of Credit Risk 

The Authority's investment holdings at December 31, 2017 were strictly confined to LOGIC and 
government securities. The investment policy is silent in the concentration of holdings in the 
various types of securities and investments. 

B. Unearned Revenue 

The Authority reports unearned revenue in connection with resources that have been received, but 
not yet earned. As of December 31, 2017, the Authority's unearned revenues totaled $73,450. 
Unearned revenues totaling $10,450 were due to prepayments by customers who purchased 
commercial truck overweight permits. The third party who is acting as the Authority's Fiscal 
Agent is Promiles, the company that owns the software that is used for online overweight permit 
purchases. 

Additionally, the Authority received $63,000 from the City of Donna for a future proposed 
drainage outfall project that will be undertaken by the Authority. 
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HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2017 

NOTE II- DETAILED NOTES ON AUTHORITY'S ACTIVITY - (Continued) 

C. Capital Assets 

Capital asset activity for the year ended December 31, 2017, was as follows: 

Capital Assets, not being depreciated: 

Land 

Office equipment 

Construction in Progress 

Total Capital Assets not being 

depreciated 

$ 

Balance 

12/31/2016 

96,362,312 

$ 96,362,312 

Increases Decreases 

$ 441,105 $ 

8,607 

27,918,821 

$ 28,368,533 $ 

Balance 

12/31/2017 

$ 441,105 

8,607 

124,281, 133 

$ 124,730,845 

As of December 31, 2017, office equipment was not being depreciated as the equipment had not 
been placed in service. Depreciation on office equipment will begin once the equipment is placed 
in service. 

Increase in construction in progress consists of the following: 

Consulting and engineering $ 1,083,435 

Interest expense 2,827,307 

Legal and professional 1,332,799 

Loop project: SH 365/IBTC 1,666,972 

US 281/BSIF 525,291 

SIB and local acquisitions 20,483,017 

$ 27,918,821 

D. Non-capitalized Construction Costs 

Non-capitalized construction costs include costs associated with projects which will not be owned 
or maintained by the Authority once the project is completed. Costs associated with these projects 
are expensed as incurred. Total non-capitalized construction costs totaled $12,439,445 for the year 
ended December 31, 2017. 
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HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECE1\1BER31, 2017 

NOTE II - DETAILED NOTES ON AUTHORITY'S ACTIVITY - (Continued) 

E. Long-Term Obligations 

1. Revenue bonds 

The Authority issued bonds for which it pledged revenues derived from vehicle registration fees 
to pay the debt. 

$61,600,000 refunding bonds, Series 2013 due in various installments through 
2043 with interest of 2.0% to 5.2%. 

$20,000,000 Junior Lien Bond, Series 2016A due in various instalhnents 
through 2049 with interest of3.5% 

Principal accretion on Junior Lien Bond, Series 2016A. 

Total outstanding balance on Junior Lien Bond, Series 2016A 

Total principal outstanding 

Bond premium 

Total bonds payable 

$57,135,000 

$20,000,000 

704,147 

20,704,147 

77,839,147 

1,987,739 

$ 79,826,886 

The Junior Lien Bond, Series 2016A was executed December 1, 2016 in the amount of 
$20,000,000. The first principal installment in the amount of $210,000 is due December 1, 2026 
and the first interest payment is due December 1, 2021. Interest will accrete at a rate of 3.5% per 
annum, compounding semi-annually on June 1 and December 1 of each year until June 1, 2021. 
As of December 31, 2017, accretion to date totaled $704,147. Total accretion of interest totaling 
$2,673,363 will be recognized in future periods until the final accretion date. 
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HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2017 

NOTE II - DETAILED NOTES ON AUTHORITY'S ACTIVITY - (Continued) 

E. Long-Term Obligations - ( Continued) 

1. Revenue bonds - ( Continued) 

Debt service requirements on long-term obligations at December 31, 2017 including principal 
accretion are as follows: 

Year Ended 
December31 Principal Interest Total 

2018 $ 1,175,000 $ 2,801,912 $ 3,976,912 
2019 1,220,000 2,754,912 3,974,912 
2020 1,255,000 2,718,318 3,973,318 
2021 1,305,000 3,077,218 4,382,218 
2022 1,360,000 3,434,125 4,794,125 

2023-2027 8,307,000 16,073,275 24,380,275 
2028-2032 11,421,000 13,680,041 25,101,041 
2033-2037 14,825,000 10,791,892 25,616,892 
2038-2042 21,328,000 6,597,330 27,925,330 
2043-2047 10,937,000 2,254,585 13,191,585 
2048-20::il 7,379,510 658,628 8,038,138 

$ 80,512,510 $ 64,842,236 $ 145,354,746 

Less: principal accretion* (2,673,363) 

$ 77,839,147 

* Principal accretion will increase principal outstanding balance in future periods. 

The Authority and Hidalgo County authorized the pledge of the vehicle registration fee revenues 
to secure payment of the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority Debt in a term not 
exceeding 40 years. The $2,417,204 sinking fund amount for the fiscal year ended December 31, 
2017 is recorded as restricted assets, exclusive of $233,493 in accrued interest payable. These 
funds are required by the bond ordinance to be set aside to pay the bond debt. These funds are 
managed by a Trustee, Wilmington Trust, and are currently held in the Logic Investment Pool and 
government securities. 
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HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2017 

NOTE II - DETAILED NOTES ON AUTHORITY'S ACTIVITY - (Continued) 

E. Long-Term Obligations - ( Continued) 

Long-term obligations outstanding at December 31, 2017 are as follows: 

Balance Balance Due Within 

12/31/2016 Increases Decreases 12/31/2017 One Year 

Bond Payable 

Revenue Bond Series 2013 $ 58,275,000 $ - $ 1,140,000 $ 57,135,000 $ 1,175,000 

Premium on Bonds 2,064,190 76,452 1,987,738 76,452 

TotalBonds Payable 60,339,190 1,216,452 59,122,738 1,251,452 

Jr. Lien Bonds Series 2016A (1) 20,000,000 704,147 20,704,147 

Total Long-Tenn Obligations $ 80,339,190 $ 704,147 $ 1,216,452 $ 79,826,885 $ 1,251,452 

(1) Future principal accretion-$2,673,363 not included. 

2. Other Payable 

During the year, the Authority went through a condemnation process to acquire land. The 
Authority has paid a total of $7,407,616 and still owes $5,377,193. Currently, the Authority is 
paying 5% interest on the outstanding amount. As soon as funding is available, the Authority 
plans to pay-off the outstanding amount. 

3. Arbitrage 

In 2013, the Authority issued long-term debt for capital construction projects. These bonds are 
subject to arbitrage regulations. Arbitrage regulations call for the return of the difference in interest 
revenue against interest expense. At December 31, 2017, there was no liability of arbitrage that 
would have been owed to the federal government. 

F. Finance-Related Legal and Contractual Provisions 

In accordance with GASB Statement No. 38, "Certain Financial Statement Note Disclosures," 
violations of finance-related legal and contractual provisions, if any, are reported below, along 
with actions taken to address such violations: 

Violation 
None 
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HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2017 

NOTE III - OTHER INFORMATION 

A. City Contributions 

In 2012, the Authority adopted the 2012-2017 Strategic Plan- Program Manager Strategy No. 8, 
which included the International Bridge Trade Corridor and State Highway 68 projects. The 
Authority requested partnership with several cities in the form oflnterlocal agreements to assist in 
paying for the preparation of the projects. The cities and the terms of the Interlocal's are reflected 
as follows: 

City Years $ Amount/Yr 

Alamo 10 $ 15,000 

Donna 10 25,000 

Edinburg 10 25,000 

Pharr 10 25,000 

San Juan 10 15,000 
$ 105,000 

This agreement is subject to an annual budget appropriation by the City. In the event the funds 
are not appropriated, the City is under no obligation to provide funds. For the year ended 
December 31, 2017, actual collections from city contributions totaled $80,000. 

B. Litigation 

The Authority is currently a defendant in a lawsuit. The lawsuit has recently been filed and it is 
the opinion of management and its outside attorneys that the possible outcome of the lawsuit and 
an estimate of the loss, if any, cannot presently be determined. 

C. Construction Commitments 

At December 31, 2017, the Authority had remaining construction commitments: 

Project Authorization Expended Remaining 

Program management $ 149,720 $ 107,739 $ 41,981 

Engineering/smveying 23,400,562 20,309,197 3,091,365 

Constmction 19,979,022 19,278,990 700,032 

$ 43,529,304 $ 39,695,926 $ 3,833,378 

This table is not meant to reconcile to the balance of construction in progress. This table consists 
of current construction commitments pending, prior construction commitments have already been 
completed yet have not resulted in a fully operational asset, therefore no depreciation of 
construction commitments previously paid is recognized. 
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HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

DECEMBER 31, 2017 

NOTE III- OTHER INFORMATION - (Continued) 

D. Impairment of Assets 

The Authority reviews the carrying values of assets for impairment whenever events and 
circumstances indicate the carrying value of an asset may not be recoverable from the estimated 
future cash flows expected to result from its use the eventual disposition. In cases where 
undiscounted expected cash flows are less than the carrying value, an impairment loss is 
recognized equal to an amount by which the carrying values exceeds the fair value of assets. The 
factors considered by management in performing this assessment include current operating results, 
trends and other economic factors. The authority recorded no impairments for the year ended 
December 31, 2017. 

E. Letter of Credit 

As of December 31, 2017, the authority has not drawn upon the letter of credit, which has been 
issued in the maximum amount of$50,000 with interest of 1 % with Plains Capital Bank. 

F. Major Vendors 

One vendor accounted for 39% of vendor payments for the year ended December 31, 2017. 

G. Subsequent Events 

The Authority has evaluated subsequent events through March 21, 2018, which is the date these 
financial statements were available to be issued. All subsequent events requiring recognition as 
of March 21, 2018, have been incorporated into these financial statements herein. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL 
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MA TIERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING 
STANDARDS 

To the Board of Directors 
Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of Hidalgo County 
Regional Mobility Authority, as of and for the year ended December 31, 2017, and the related notes to the 
financial statements, which collectively comprise Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority's basic 
financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated March 21, 2018. 

Internal Control over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Hidalgo County Regional 
Mobility Authority's intern~! control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the 
financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Hidalgo 
County Regional Mobility Authority's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the 
effectiveness of Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority's internal control. 

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management 
or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, 
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in 
internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's 
financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant 
deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a 
material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this 
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material 
weaknesses or, significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses 
may exist that have not been identified. 

BM L y Fragoso, S.C. 
Matamoros, MX 

205 Pecan Boulevard, McAllen, TX 78501 

956-618-2300 • www.bmltexas.com 



Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority's 
financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain 
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a 
direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an 
opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not 
express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters 
that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. 

Purpose of this Report 

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance 
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal 
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit perfonrted in accordance with 
Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, 
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose. 

McAllen, Texas 
March 21, 2018 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM 
AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM 

GUIDANCE 

To the Board of Directors 
Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority 

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program 

We have audited Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority's compliance with the types of compliance 
requirements described in the 0MB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on 
each of Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority's major federal programs for the year ended 
December 31, 2017. Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority's major federal programs are identified 
in the summary of auditor's results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. 

Management's Responsibility 

Management is responsible for compliance with federal statutes, regulations, and the terms and conditions 
of its federal awards applicable to its federal programs. 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of Hidalgo County Regional Mobility 
Authority's major federal programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to 
above. We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in 
the United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2 
U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and 
Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Those standards and the Uniform Guidance 
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance 
with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on 
a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about Hidalgo 
County Regional Mobility Authority's compliance with those requirements and performing such other 
procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. 

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal 
program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of Hidalgo County Regional Mobility 
Authority's compliance. 

Opinion on Each Major Federal Program 

In our opinion, Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority complied, in all material respects, with the 
types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of 
its major federal programs for the year ended December 31, 2017. 

BM L y Fragoso, S.C. 
Matamoros, MX 

205 Pecan Boulevard, McAllen, TX 78501 

956-618-2300 • www.bmltexas.com 



Report on Internal Control over Compliance 

Management of Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority is responsible for establishing and 
maintaining effective internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred 
to above. In planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered Hidalgo County Regional 
Mobility Authority's internal control over compliance with the types of requirements that could have a 
direct and material effect on each major federal program to determine the auditing procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major 
federal program and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform 
Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over 
compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Hidalgo County Regional 
Mobility Authority's internal control over compliance. 

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over 
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned 
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a 
federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, 
or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable 
possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will 
not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control 
over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with 
a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in 
internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first 
parag:·aph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over 
compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any 
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, 
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing 
of internal control over compliance and the results_ of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform 
Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose. 

McAllen, Texas 
March 21, 2018 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM 
AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE REQUIRED BY THE STATE OF TEXAS 
UNIFORM GRANT MANAGEMENT ST AND ARDS CHAPTER IV TEXAS STATE SINGLE A UIDT 

CIRCULAR 

To the Board of Directors 
Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority 

Report on Compliance for Each Major State Program 

We have audited Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority's compliance with the types of compliance 
requirements described in the State of Texas Uniform Grant Management Standards Chapter IV Texas State 
Single Audit Circular that could have a direct and material effect on each of Hidalgo County Regional Mobility 
Authority's major state programs for the year ended December 31, 2017. Hidalgo County Regional Mobility 
Authority's major state programs are identified in the summary of auditor's results section of the accompanying 
schedule of findings and questioned costs. 

Management's Responsibility 

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of state and federal statutes, regulations, and 
the terms and conditions of its state awards applicable to its state programs. 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of Hidalgo County Regional Mobility 
Authority's major state programs based on our audit of the types of compliance requirements referred to above. 
We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the State of Texas Uniform Grant Management 
Standards Chapter IV Texas State Single Audit Circular. Those standards and the Uniform Guidance require 
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types 
of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major state 
program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about Hidalgo County Regional 
Mobility Authority's compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we 
considered necessary in the circumstances. 

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major state 
program. However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of Hidalgo County Regional Mobility 
Authority's compliance. 

Opinion on Each Major State Program 

In our opinion, Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority complied, in all material respects, with the types 
of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major 
state programs for the year ended December 31, 201 7. 

BM L y Fragoso, S.C. 
Matamoros, MX 

205 Pecan Boulevard, McAllen, TX 78501 

956-618-2300 • www.bmltexas.com 



Report on Internal Control over Compliance 

Management of Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority is responsible for establishing and maintaining 
effective internal control over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In 
planning and performing our audit of compliance, we considered Hidalgo County Regional Mobility 
Authority's internal control over complian·ce with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material 
effect on each major state program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances for the purpose of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major state program and to test 
and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the State of Texas Uniform Grant 
Management Standards Chapter N Texas State Single Audit Circular, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on 
the effectiveness of Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority's internal control over compliance. 

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over 
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned 
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a state 
program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that 
material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a state program will not be prevented, or 
detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a 
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance 
requirement of a state program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal control over compliance, 
yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first 
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all drficiencies i:: inten:a! control over compliance 
that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal 
control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist 
that have not been identified. 

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of 
internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the State of Texas 
Uniform Grant Management Standards Chapter IV Texas Single Audit Circular. Accordingly, this report is not 
suitable for any other purpose. 

McAllen, Texas 
March 21, 2018 
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HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AND STATE AWARDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017 

Federal Grantor/ Pass-'Through Grantor/ 
State Grantor/ Program Title 

FEDERAL AW ARDS 

HIGHWAY PLANNING AND CONSTRUCTION CLUSTER 
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

Passed through from Texas Department of Transportation: 

Highway Planning and Construction 

Total passed through Texas Department of Transportation 

Total U.S. Department of Transportation 

TOT AL EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AW ARDS 

STATE AWARDS 
TEXAS DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

Direct Programs 

Highway Planning and Construction 

Total Texas Department of Transportation 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES OF STATE AWARDS 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AND STATE AWARDS 

Federal 
CFDA 
Number 

20.205 

NIA 

Grant/Contract 
Identifying 

Award Number 

CSJ # 0220-01-023 

CSJ # 0220-01-023 

The accompanying notes to the schedule of expenditures of federal awards are an integral part of this schedule. 
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Expenditures 

$ 9,951,556 
9,951,556 

9,951,556 

$ 9,951,556 

$ 9,951,556 

$ 2,487,889 
2,487,889 

2,487,889 

$ 2,487,889 

$ 12,439,445 



lllDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 
NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AND STATE AW ARDS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017 

General 

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures ofFederal and State Awards (SEFSA) present the federal and 
state grant activity for the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority (the Authority) for the year ended 
December 31, 2017. The reporting entity is defined in Note I.A to the Authority's financial statements. 
The information in this Schedule is presented in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of 
Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit 
Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance) and the State of Texas Single Audit Circular. 
Because the SEFSA presents only a selected portion of the operations of the Authority, it is not intended 
and does not present the financial position, changes in net assets, or cash flows of the Authority. 

Basis of Presentation 

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State Awards is presented using the modified 
accrual basis of accounting, which is described in Note LB of the Authority's notes to the financial 
statements. Such expenditures are recognized following the cost principles contained in the Uniform 
Guidance and State of Texas Single Audit Circular, wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowable 
or are limited as to reimbursement. Federal grant funds are generally considered earned to the extent 
expenditures made under the provisions of the grant are made. The Authority has elected not to use the 10 
percent de minimis indirect cost rate allowed under the Uniform Guidance. 

Relationship to Federal and State Financial Reports 

Amounts reported in the accompanying schedule may not agree with the amounts reported in the related 
Federal and State financial reports filed with the grantor agencies because of accruals made in the schedule 
which will be included in future reports filed with agencies. 
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HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUIBORITY 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017 

Section I - Summary of Auditors' Results Description 

Financial Statements 

Type of auditors' report issued: Unmodified 

Internal control over financial reporting: 

• Material weakness( es) identified? No 

• Significant deficiencies identified 

' not considered to be material 
weaknesses? None reported 

Noncompliance material to the financial 
statements? No 

Federal Awards 

Internal control of major programs: 

• Material weakness( es) identified? No 

• Significant deficiencies identified 
not considered to be material 
weaknesses? None reported 

Type of auditors' report issued on 
compliance for major programs: Unmodified 

Any audit findings disclosed that are 
required to be reported in accordance with 2 
CFR section 200.516(a)? No 

Dollar threshold used to distinguish 
between Type A and Type B programs: $750,000 

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? Yes 

Identification of Major Federal Programs: Highway Planning and Construction 
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lllDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017 

Section I - Summary of Auditors' Results Description 

State Awards 

Internal control of major programs: 
• Material weakness(es) identified? No 
• Significant deficiencies identified 

not considered to be material 
weaknesses? None reported 

Type of auditors' report issued on 
compliance for major programs: Unmodified 

Any audit findings disclosed that are 
required to be reported in accordance with 
the State of Texas Sin~le Audit Circular? No 

Dollar threshold used to distinguish 
between Type A and Type B programs: $300,000 

Identification of Major State Programs: Texas Department of Transportation 
Highway Planning and Construction 
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lllDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

FOR THE YEARENDEDDECEMBER31,2017 

Section II - Findings and Questioned 
Costs 

Financial Statements 

NONE NOTED 

Section III - Findings and Questioned 
Costs 

Federal Awards 

NONE NOTED 

Section III - Findings and Questioned 
Costs 

State Awards 

NONE NOTED 

Description 

Description 

Description 
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HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 
CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017 

Federal regulations, Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations §200.511 states, "At the completion of 
the audit, the auditee must prepare, in a document separate from the auditor's findings described in 
§200.516, Audit Findings, a corrective action plan to address each audit finding included in the current 
year auditor's reports." 

1. Corrective Action Plan 

Not applicable 
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HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017 

Federal regulations, Title 2 U.S. Code ofFederal Regulations §200.511 states, "The auditee is responsible 
for follow-up and corrective action on all audit findings. As part of this responsibility, the auditee must 
prepare a summary schedule of prior audit findings." The summary schedule of prior audit findings must 
report the status of the following: 

• All audit findings included in the prior audit's schedule of findings and questioned costs and 
• All audit findings reported in the prior audit's summary schedule of prior audit findings except 

audit findings listed as corrected. 

1. Prior Audit Findings 

None reported 
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Item 3C



 
 
 
 

HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 
         

AGENDA RECOMMENDATION FORM 
 

 
               BOARD OF DIRECTORS        X                     AGENDA ITEM                     3C                   

PLANNING COMMITTEE           DATE SUBMITTED           03/19/18                   
FINANCE COMMITTEE     MEETING DATE        03/27/18  
TECHNICAL COMMITTEE    
 
 
1. Agenda Item:  RESOLUTION 2018-10 – APPROVAL OF 2017 ANNUAL COMPLIANCE 

REPORT.              
 
2. Nature of Request:  (Brief Overview)  Attachments:     X  Yes          No 
 
 Consideration and approval of Annual Compliance Report to the Texas Department for the  

Fiscal Year 2017.            
 
3. Policy Implication:  Board Policy, Local Government Code, Texas Government Code, Texas  

Transportation Code, TxDOT Policy                         
 
4. Budgeted:          Yes           No       X   N/A 
 
 
5. Staff Recommendation: Motion to approve Resolution 2018-10 – Approval of the 2017  

Annual Compliance Report as presented.          
 
6. Program Manager’s Recommendation:    X   Approved          Disapproved          None 
 
7. Planning Committee’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
8. Board Attorney’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
9. Chief Auditor’s Recommendation:   X   Approved          Disapproved          None 
 
10. Chief Financial Officer’s Recommendation:   X   Approved          Disapproved       _   None 
 
11. Development Engineer’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved        X   None 
 
12. Construction Engineer’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved        X   None 
 
13. Executive Director’s Recommendation:   X   Approved          Disapproved           None 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

 

Memorandum 
To: S. David Deanda, Jr., Chairman 

From: Pilar Rodriguez, PE, Executive Director 

Date: March 19, 2018 

Re: Approval of 2017 Compliance Report to the Texas Department of 
Transportation 

Background 
The compliance report is required under the Texas Administrative Code, Title 43, Part 1, Chapter 26, 
Subchapter G (Regional Mobility Authority Reports and Audits), as amended. 
 
Goal 
In order to comply with the Texas Administrative Code Requirement, the Board of Director must review 
and accept the Compliance Report. 
 
A copy of the 2017 Compliance Report is attached for your review and consideration.   
 
 
Options 
The Board of Directors could opt to not accept the Compliance Report. 
 
 
Recommendation 
Based on review by this office, approval of Resolution 2018-10 – Approval of 2017 Compliance 
Report is recommended. 
 
 
If you should have any questions or require additional information, please advise. 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 
BOARD RESOLUTION NO. 2018-10 

 
 

RESOLUTION APPROVING 2017 ANNUAL COMPLIANCE REPORT 
 
 

THIS RESOLUTION is adopted this 27th day of March, 2018, by the Board of Director of the 
Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority. 
  

WHEREAS, the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority (the “Authority”), acting 
through its Board of Directors (the “Board”); is a regional mobility authority created pursuant to 
Chapter 370, Texas Transportation Code, as amended (the “Act”); and 

 
WHEREAS, the Authority was created by Order of Hidalgo County (the “County”) dated 

October 26, 2004; Petition of the County dated April 21, 2005; and a Minute Order of the Texas 
Transportation Commission (the “Commission”) dated November 17, 2005, pursuant to 
provisions under the Act the Authority; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Authority is required to submit to the Texas Department of 

Transportation the annual compliance report pursuant to the Texas Administrative Code, Title 
43, Part 1, Chapter 26, Subchapter G (Regional Mobility Authority Reports and Audits), as 
amended; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Authority’s 2017 fiscal year commences on January 1, 2017 and ended 

on December 31, 2017; and 
  
WHEREAS, the Authority has reviewed the annual compliance report for Fiscal Year 

2017;  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 
HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY THAT: 

 
Section 1. The recital clauses are incorporated in the text of this Resolution as if fully 

restated. 
 
Section 2. The Board approves the annual compliance report for Fiscal Year 2017, hereto 

attached as Exhibit A. 
 

Section 3. The Board of Directors authorize the Executive Director to submit the 2017 
annual compliance report to the Texas Department of Transportation. 

 
***** 

 
 
 



 
Passed and Approved as to be effective immediately this 27th day of March, 2018, at a regular 
meeting of the Board of Directors of the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority at which a 
quorum was present and which was held in accordance with the provisions of Chapter 551, 
Texas Government Code. 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
       
S. David Deanda, Jr., Chairman 

 
 

 
Attest: 

 
 
 
             

Ricardo Perez, Secretary/Treasurer 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
EXHIBIT A 

 
HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY  

FISCAL YEAR 2017 COMPLIANCE REPORT 



Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority 

Compliance Report 
Texas Administrative Code Title 43, Part I, Chapter 26, Subchapter G 

§26.65(a) Annual Reports to the Commission 

Compliance Rule  Compliance Statement Certification

Rule §26.61 Written Reports: 

The annual operating and capital budgets 
adopted by the RMA year.   

HCRMA is in compliance. HCRMA adopted the FY 2018
Operating & Capital Budget on 
December 19, 2017. 

Any annual financial information and notices 
of material events required to be disclosed 
under Rule 15c2‐12 of the SEC.  

Not applicable.

To the extent not disclosed in another 
report required in this compliance report, a 
statement of any surplus revenue held by 
the RMA and a summary of how it intends 
to use the surplus revenue.  

Not applicable. HCRMA does not 
have surplus income at this 
time. 

An independent auditor's review of the 
reports of investment transactions prepared 
under Government Code, §2256.023.  

HCRMA is in compliance. HCRMA Board of Directors 
accepted the FY 2017 financial 
statement and independent 
audit on March 27, 2018, which 
included a review of investment 
transactions. 

Rule §26.62 Annual Audit: 

The RMA shall maintain its books and 
records in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles in the United 
States and shall have an annual financial and 
compliance audit of such books and records. 

HCRMA is in compliance. HCRMA Board of Directors 
accepted the FY 2017 financial 
statement and independent 
audit on March 27, 2018. 

The annual audit shall be submitted to each 
county or city that is a part of the RMA 
within 120 days after the end of the fiscal 
year, and conducted by an independent 
certified public accountant. 

HCRMA is in compliance. HCRMA has made the financial 
statement and independent 
auditors report available to all 
interested parties. 

All work papers and reports shall be 
retained for a minimum of four years from 
the date of the audit. 

HCRMA is in compliance. HCRMA’s record retention policy 
in compliance with this 
requirement. 

Rule §26.63 Other Reports to Counties and 
Cities: 

Provide other reports and information 
regarding its activities promptly when 
requested by the counties or cities. 

HCRMA is in compliance. All reports and activities are 
posted on the HCRMA web site 
at www.hcrma.net. 

Rule §26.64 Operating Records: 

The Department will have access to all 
operating and financial records of the RMA. 
The executive director will provide 
notification if access is desired by the 
department. 

HCRMA is in compliance.
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HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 
         

AGENDA RECOMMENDATION FORM 
 

 
               BOARD OF DIRECTORS        X                     AGENDA ITEM                     3D                   

PLANNING COMMITTEE           DATE SUBMITTED           03/08/18                   
FINANCE COMMITTEE     MEETING DATE        03/27/18  
TECHNICAL COMMITTEE    
 
 
1. Agenda Item:  RESOLUTION 2018-11 – APPROVAL OF ONE YEAR EXTENSION OF THE 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICE AGREEMENT WITH BRACEWELL LLP TO PROVIDE LEGAL 
SERVICES FOR THE HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY.    

 
2. Nature of Request:  (Brief Overview)  Attachments:     X  Yes          No 
 
 Consideration and approval of one year extension of the Professional Service Agreement with  

Bracewell llp to provide legal services for the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority.   
   
3. Policy Implication:  Board Policy, Local Government Code, Texas Government Code, Texas  

Transportation Code, TxDOT Policy                         
 
4. Budgeted:          Yes           No       X   N/A 
 
 
5. Staff Recommendation: Motion to approve Resolution 2018-11 – Approval of one year  

extension of the Professional Service Agreement with Bracewell LLP to provide legal  
services for the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority as presented.    

 
6. Program Manager’s Recommendation:       Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
7. Planning Committee’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
8. Board Attorney’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X   None 
 
9. Chief Auditor’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved          None 
 
10. Chief Financial Officer’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X_   None 
 
11. Chief Development Engineer’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X    None 
 
12. Chief Construction Engineer’s Recommendation:      Approved          Disapproved       X    None 
 
13. Executive Director’s Recommendation:   X   Approved          Disapproved           None 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

 
 

 

Memorandum 
To: S. David Deanda Jr., Chairman 

From: Pilar Rodriguez, PE, Executive Director 

Date: March 8, 2018 

Re: Approval of One Year Extension of the Professional Service Agreement with 
Bracewell, LLP to provide legal services for the Hidalgo County Regional 
Mobility Authority  

Background 
On April 13, 2014, the Authority entered into a Professional Service Agreement for Legal Services with 
the Law Office of Daniel G. Rios and Bracewell Giuliani.  The agreement entered was for an initial three 
(3) year period with the option to exercise two one-year (1) extensions after the three year period.  On 
March 28, 2017, the Authority extended the Legal Service Agreement with Bracewell, LLP for one year.  
 
Since execution of the Professional Service Agreement, Bracewell & Giuliani, LLP has formally changed 
its name to Bracewell, LLP and Law Office of Dan Rios resigned from representation.   
 
Goal 
In order to conduct business, general legal counsel services are required from time to time.  Counsel 
services may be provided in the areas of administrative law, public law, transportation law, real estate 
law, contract law, employment law and litigation. 
 
The terms of the Agreement with Bracewell, LLP will remain the same with no changes proposed at this 
time. 
 
Options 
The extension may be disapproved or authorized on a month-to-month basis to allow staff to solicit a 
Request for Proposals for Legal Services. 
 
Recommendation 
Based on review by this Office, Approval of Resolution 2018-11 – Approval of one (1) year extension to 
the Professional Service Agreement with Bracewell, LLP to provide Legal Services for the Hidalgo 
County Regional Mobility Authority is recommended. 
 
 
If you should have any questions or require additional information, please advise.  
 
 

 



 

 

#5427055.1 

HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY 

BOARD RESOLUTION No. 2018 – 11 

  
APPROVAL OF ONE YEAR EXTENSION TO THE PROFESSIONAL 
SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH BRACEWELL, LLP TO PROVIDE LEGAL 
SERVICES TO THE HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY 
AUTHORITY 
 

THIS RESOLUTION is adopted this 27th day of March, 2018, by the Board of Directors of the 
Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority at a regular meeting. 
 
 WHEREAS, the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority (the “Authority”), acting 
through its Board of Directors (the “Board”), is a regional mobility authority created pursuant to 
Chapter 370, Texas Transportation Code, as amended (the “Act”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Authority is authorized by the Act to address mobility issues in and 
around Hidalgo County; and  
 

WHEREAS, the Authority solicited Request for Proposals for Legal Services; and 
 
WHEREAS, on February 21, 2014, the Authority received a single response to the 

Request for Proposals for Legal Services; and 
 
WHEREAS, on March 19, 2014, the Board of Directors authorized Authority staff to 

negotiate a Professional Service Agreement with the Law Office of Daniel G. Rios, PC and 
Bracewell & Giuliani, LLP for Legal Services; and 
 

WHEREAS, on April 13, 2014, the Authority entered into a Professional Service 
Agreement for Legal Services with the Law Office of Daniel G. Rios and Bracewell & Giuliani, 
LLP; and 

 
WHEREAS, since the execution of the Professional Services Agreement, Bracewell & 

Giuliani, LLP has formally changed its name to Bracewell, LLP; and 
 
WHEREAS, Dan Rios, PC resigned from the representation; and the Authority has since 

engaged local counsel through a direct contract; and 
 
WHEREAS, the agreement was entered into for an initial three (3) year period with 

provisions to exercise two one-year extensions after the three (3) year period; and 
 
WHEREAS, on March 28, 2017, the Authority extended the Legal Service Agreement 

with Bracewell, LLP, for one (1) year; and 
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WHEREAS, the Board has determined it is necessary to exercise a one (1) year extension 
to the Legal Service Agreement with Bracewell, LLP;  

 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
OF THE HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY THAT: 

  
Section 1. The recital clauses are incorporated in the text of this Resolution as if fully 

restated. 
 
Section 2. The Board hereby approves a one (1) year extension to the Professional Service 

Agreement for Legal Service with Bracewell Law, LLP hereto attached as Exhibit 
A. 

 
Section 3. The Board authorizes the Executive Director to execute a one (1) year extension 

to the Professional Service Agreement for Legal Service with Bracewell Law, 
LLP as approved. 

 
***** 
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PASSED AND APPROVED AS TO BE EFFECTIVE IMMEDIATELY BY THE BOARD OF 
DIRECTORS OF THE HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUTHORITY AT A 
REGULAR MEETING, duly posted and noticed, on the 27th day of March, 2018, at which 
meeting a quorum was present. 
 
 
 
 
              
      S. David Deanda Jr., Chairman 
 
 
 
 
 
              
      Ricardo Perez, Secretary/Treasurer 
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EXHIBIT A 
ONE (1) YEAR EXTENSION FOR LEGAL SERVICE AGREEMENT WITH 

BRACEWELL, LLP 
DATED  

APRIL 13, 2018 
 
 
 

EXHIBIT B 
LEGAL SERVICE AGREEMENT WITH 

OFFICE OF DANIEL G. RIOS P.C. AND BRACEWELL & GIULIANI, LLP 
DATED 

APRIL 13, 2014 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



ONE YEAR EXTENSION TO LEGAL SERVICE AGREEMENT 

BETWEEN HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL MOBILITY AUHTORITY AND 

BRACEWELL, LLP 

DATED APRIL 13, 2014 

 

INITIAL AGREEMENT PERIOD FOR THREE YEARS WITH OPTIONAL TWO ONE-YEAR TERM 
EXTENSION 

 

ONE YEAR EXTENSION APRIL 13, 2017 

ONE YEAR EXTENSION EFFECTIVE APRIL 13, 2018 

 

 

 

BRACEWELL, LLP  HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL     

MOBILITY AUTHORITY 

 

 

 

By:________________________________           By:________________________________ 

        Blakely Fernandez, Partner           Pilar Rodriguez, Executive Director 

 

 

 

Date:  ________________________________  Date:  ________________________________ 
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AMENDMENT NO. 1 
Dated April 20, 2015 

Professional Services Agreement 

This first amendment ("AMENDMENT NO. 1") to that certain 2014 Professional Services Agreement by 

and among the Hidalgo County Regional Mobility Authority, a political subdivision of the State of Texas 

("RMA") and the Law Office of Daniel G. Rios ("RIOS") and Bracewell & Giuliani LLP 

("BRACEWELL," and together with Rios, the "FIRMS") (the "AGREEMENT"), for good and valuable 

consideration the acceptance of which is acknowledged by the RMA and the FIRMS, amends the terms of 

the AGREEMENT as follows: 

Section 4. Insurance. The FIRMS are each required to maintain professional liability 

insurance of not less than $2,000,000 $1.000.000. The coverage must extend a minimum 

of three years beyond the completion of legal services. 

This AMENDMENT NO.I , approved by the parties on the 281
h day of April, 2015, shall be effective for 

the term of the AGREEMENT. 

HIDALGO COUNTY REGIONAL 

MOBIL~Tn 

I - I By: 
Pilar Rodriguez, Executive Director 

LAW OFFICE OF DANIEL G. RIOS, P.C. 

By: 

BRACEWELL & GIULIANI LLP 

By: 
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